Public Document Pack

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date:

Friday, 28 February 2014

Time:

10.30 am

Place:

LB31-32 - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG

Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following
business

Deputy Chief Executive/Corporate Director for Resources
Constitutional Services Officer: Catherine Ziane-Pryor Direct Dial: 0115 8764298

AGENDA

Pages

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

3

MINUTES
Meeting held on 29 November 2013 (for confirmation)

4

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2013/14
Report of KPMG Audit Manager

5

CERTIFICATE OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2012/13
Report of KPMG Audit Manager

33 - 44

6

PROTECTING THE PUBLIC PURSE 2013
KPMG to deliver a presentation

45 - 62

7

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER 2013/14 - QUARTER 3
Report of Deputy Chief Executive / Corporate Director of Resources

63 - 76

8

A REVISED PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK FOR
NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
Report of the Director of Human Resources & Transformation

77 - 92

3-8

9 - 32

9

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2014/15 STRATEGY
Report of Deputy Chief Executive/ Corporate Director of Resources

93 - 118

10

PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE - REMOVAL OF CASTLE
CAVENDISH FROM THE REGISTER OF SIGNIFICANT
PARTNERSHIPS
Report of Director of Policy, Partnerships and Communications

119 - 130

11

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - PROGRESS MADE TO
DATE ON ISSUES REPORTED 2012/13 AND PROCESS FOR
PRODUCING 2013/14 STATEMENT
Report of Director of Strategic Finance

131 - 142

12

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR EAST MIDLANDS SHARED SERVICES
Report of Director of Strategic Finance

143 - 152

13

INTERNAL QUARTERLY REPORT 2013/14- QUARTER 3
Report of Director of Strategic Finance

153 - 174

14

AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND ANNUAL WORK
PLAN
Report of Director of Strategic Finance

175 - 180

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE CONSTITUTIONAL SERVICES OFFICER SHOWN
ABOVE, IF POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING
CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES

Agenda Item 3
NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting held at Loxley House on 29 NOVEMBER 2013 from
10.30 am to 12.07 pm
Councillor Sarah Piper
Councillor Thulani Molife
Councillor Mohammad Aslam
Councillor Georgina Culley
Councillor Michael Edwards
Councillor John Hartshorne
Councillor Toby Neal
Councillor Roger Steel
Councillor Malcolm Wood

(Chair)
(Vice-Chair)

(minutes 24 to 30)

(minutes 21 to 30)

indicates present at meeting
Others in attendance
Laura Catchpole Alice Johnson
Lynne North
-

Policy Officer
Policy Officer
Customer Liaison Officer

)
)
)

Paul Hutchings
Sue Sunderland

-

Manager
Director

)
)

Simon Burton
Pete Guest
Carole Mills

-

Shail Shah
Laura Wilson

-

Corporate Risk Specialist
Treasury Manager
Deputy Chief Executive/Corporate
Director for Resources
Head of Internal Audit
Constitutional Services Officer

)
)
)
)
)
)

18

KPMG

Resources

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Mohammad Aslam
Councillor Georgina Culley
19

Chief Executives

-

personal
ill

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

None.
20

MINUTES

The Committee confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2013 as a
correct record and they were signed by the Chair.

Page 3

Audit Committee – 29 November 2013

21

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER

Sue Sunderland, Director, KPMG, introduced the external auditors’ report which
summarised the key findings from the 2012/13 audit of the Council, including the financial
statements and Value For Money conclusion.
She provided the following information in addition to the letter in response to questions
and comments from the Committee:
(a)

the financial position of the authority is the same across the country and budget
savings will continue to be a pressure in future years;

(b)

the vulnerable elderly, children’s services and some aspects of housing are at most
risk due to budget cuts and an increase in demand for their services;

(c)

the continuing need to reduce costs and make savings is highlighted as a
significant risk but only in terms of the audit risk to the Value For Money conclusion.
It has received an unqualified conclusion because the authority is managing it well;

(d)

the challenge work referred to in the letter was a one-off as complaints from citizens
have to be investigated and attract a small additional fee because it is outside the
core audit work. The challenge was around the publicity code but the authority has
strengthened its arrangements so it should not be an issue in the future.

RESOLVED to note the Annual Audit Letter 2012/13.
22

OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL LETTER

Lynne North, Customer Liaison Officer, introduced the Interim Director of Policy,
Performance and Communications’ report, setting out the number of complaints dealt with
on behalf of the authority, and highlighted the following points:
(a)

the Ombudsman changed its business processes during 2012/13 so has not been
able to provide us with detailed information on the complaints received;

(b)

there are 16 fewer cases than last year and Nottingham is the second best
performing Core City;

(c)

next years letter will contain information relating to the new reporting process;

(d)

the authority continues to perform well and turn around enquiries/complaints in good
time;

She provided the following additional information in response to questions and comments
from the Committee:
(e)

Nottingham City Homes now has its own Complaints Manager and performance has
improved since they have taken up the post. They now provide full responses on
time;

(f)

there are 13 closed complaints regarding housing which is lower than previous
years;
Page 4

Audit Committee – 29 November 2013

(g)

through the Council’s complaints process, Have Your Say, it is possible to see if
there have been numerous complaints by the same person.

RESOLVED to note the report and the Ombudsman Annual Letter.
23

PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE HEALTH CHECKS AND UPDATE TO REGISTER
OF SIGNIFICANT PARTNERSHIPS

Alice Johnson, Policy Officer, introduced the Interim Director of Policy, Performance and
Communications’ report setting out the key findings from the partnership governance
health checks and the updated Register of Significant Partnerships.
She informed the Committee that Castle Cavendish have requested to be removed from
the Register of Significant Partnerships as they no longer meet the criteria. A health
check is currently being undertaken by Castle Cavendish to inform a final decision on
removal from the register, which will be discussed at February’s Audit Committee.
RESOLVED to
(1)

note the key findings from the partnership governance health checks;

(2)

approve the removal of the following partnerships from the Register of
Significant Partnerships:
(a) Working Nottingham;
(b) Joint Leadership Board;
(c) Core City Board;

(3)

note the changes to the partnership and policy landscape going forward.

24

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2013/14 – HALF YEARLY UPDATE

Pete Guest, Treasury Manager, introduced the Deputy Chief Executive/Corporate
Director for Resources’ report which set out treasury management actions and
performance from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013.
He informed the Committee that there is a risk to the authority if Co-op bank goes into
administration. The Treasury Management Panel is meeting regularly and plans are in
place to protect the authority’s money. The contract with the bank ends in March 2014
and will not be renewed.
RESOLVED to note the treasury management actions taken in 2013/13 to date,
specifically that:
•
no new long-term borrowing or debt rescheduling had been undertaken to 30
September 2013;
•
the average return on investments to 30 September 2013 was 0.677%;
•
between 1 April and 30 September 2013, daily cash flow performance was
above target at 100%.

Page 5

Audit Committee – 29 November 2013

25

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER (SRR) – QUARTER 2 2013/14 UPDATE

Simon Burton, Corporate Risk Specialist, introduced the Deputy Chief Executive/
Corporate Director for Resources’ report updating the Committee on the progress made
in reducing the threat levels of each strategic risk in the Council’s SRR for quarter 2
2013/14.
He provided the following additional information in response to questions and comments
from the Committee:
(a)

academisation of schools is reflected in the risk management action plan;

(b)

there has been an increase in birth rate and migration to the City which has resulted
in a demand for school places which is being addressed;

(c)

the Council is currently looking at the recruitment and retention of foster carers;

(d)

the Council has a good system to attract additional funding and each department
has a Business Partner so they are able to keep up to date with applying for funding
when it becomes available.

The Committee raised concerns about SR28 and whether there are plans in place for
winter care. The Committee was assured that the reports are a snapshot at the end of
each quarter and the risks are managed appropriately. The Chair can call an additional
meeting of the Committee if it feels that it needs to look at the risk in more detail.
RESOLVED to
(1)

note the progress made on reducing the seriousness of the Council’s
strategic risks, as reflected by their threat levels and direction of travel, for
quarter 2 2013/14, as detailed in Table 1 and Appendix 1 of the report;

(2)

note the results of the review of the Strategic Risk Register by Corporate
Leadership Team, as detailed in paragraph 4.4 of the report;

(3)

approve the Risk Management Framework, as detailed in Appendix 3 of the
report;

(4)

select SR12a – failure to provide the best educational outcome for children
and opportunities for young people to access further education and skills
training to contribute to the economic wellbeing of the City, in addition to
SR29 – failure to establish an effective Public Health function with adverse
impact on the citizen wellbeing and a failure to deliver the authority’s statutory
responsibilities, for specific scrutiny as part of the Strategic Risk Register
quarter 3 2013/14 update.

26

COUNTER FRAUD STRATEGY

Shail Shah, Head of Internal Audit, introduced the Director of Strategic Finance’s report
which detailed the Counter Fraud Strategy and the Counter Fraud Strategy for Schools.

Page 6

Audit Committee – 29 November 2013

RESOLVED to endorse the City Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy, as detailed in
Appendix 1 of the report, and the Counter Fraud Strategy for Schools, as detailed
in Appendix 2 of the report.
27

INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PLAN FOR EAST MIDLANDS SHARED SERVICES

Shail Shah, Head of Internal Audit, introduced the Director of Strategic Finance’s report
outlining the work undertaken to date by Nottingham City Internal Audit for East Midlands
Shared Services.
The Committee was assured that work is being done to upgrade the system to reduce the
amount of ‘down time’ and that although there is a backlog on accounts payable,
significant work is being done to get through the backlog and pay invoices on time.
RESOLVED to note the progress on the audit work planned and completed to date.
28

INTERNAL AUDIT HALF- YEAR REPORT 2013/14 – 1 APRIL TO 30
SEPTEMBER 2013

Shail Shah, Head of Internal Audit, introduced the Director of Strategic Finance’s report
which outlined the work of the Internal Audit service for the first half of 2013/14.
The Committee requested information on the schools budget reserves and how the
budget was differentiated between local authority schools and others.
RESOLVED to
(1)

note the performance of the Internal Audit service between 1 April and 30
September 2013;

(2)

select the Bulwell St Mary’s and Housing Rents audits for examination at the
28 February 2014 meeting;

(3)

require that Shail Shah circulate information on the schools budget reserves
and how the budget was differentiated between local authority schools and
other to the Committee.

29

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME – UPDATE

Shail Shah, Head of Internal Audit, introduced the Director of Strategic Finance’s report
which outlined the core functions of the Committee, the benefits that will arise for the City
Council and an outline annual work programme.
RESOLVED to endorse the updated work programme.
30

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED to note that the next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to take
place at 10.30 am on 28 February 2014 at Loxley House.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

External Audit Plan
2013/14
Page 9
Nottingham City Council

Agenda Item 4

February 2014

Contents
Page
The contacts at KPMG
in connection with this

Report sections

report are:

■ Introduction

2

■ Headlines

3

KPMG LLP (UK)

■ Our audit approach

4

Tel:

■ Financial statements - significant audit risks

10

■ Financial statements - other areas of audit focus

11

■ VFM audit approach

13

■ Audit team, deliverables, timeline and fees

15

Sue Sunderland
Director

+ 0044 115 945 4490

sue.sunderland@kpmg.co.uk

Paul Hutchings

Page 10

Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel:

+ 0044 115 945 4472

paul.hutchings@kpmg.co.uk

Kay Meats
Assistant Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel:

Appendices
1. Independence and objectivity requirements

19

2. Quality assurance and technical capacity

20

+ 0044 115 945 4485

kay.meats@kpmg.co.uk

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their
individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. This
summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. We draw your attention to this document which is available
on the Audit Commission’s website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk.
External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Sue Sunderland, the appointed engagement lead to the
Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact Trevor Rees on 0161 246 4000, or by email to
trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk, who is the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your
complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit
Commission, 3rd Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their telephone number is 0303 444
8330.
© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

1

Section one

Introduction

This document describes

Scope of this report

Structure of this report

how we will deliver our audit

This document supplements our Audit Fee Letter 2013/14 presented to
you in March 2013. It describes how we will deliver our financial
statements audit work for Nottingham City Council (‘the Authority’). It
also sets out our approach to value for money (VFM) work for 2013/14.

This report is structured as follows:

work for Nottingham City
Council.

We are required to satisfy ourselves that your accounts comply with
statutory requirements and that proper practices have been observed
in compiling them. We use a risk based audit approach.
The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going
process and the assessment and fees in this plan will be kept under
review and updated if necessary.
Statutory responsibilities

Page 11

Our statutory responsibilities and powers are set out in the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit
Practice.
The Code of Audit Practice summarises our responsibilities into two
objectives, requiring us to review and report on your:

■ Section 2 includes our headline messages, including any key risks
identified this year for the financial statements and Value for Money
audit.
■ Section 3 describes the approach we take for the audit of the
financial statements.
■ Sections 4 and 5 provide further detail on the financial statements
audit risks.
■ Section 6 explains our approach to VFM work.
■ Section 7 provides information on the audit team, our proposed
deliverables, the timescales and fees for our work.
Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members
for their continuing help and co-operation throughout our audit work.

■ financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement):
providing an opinion on your accounts; and
■ use of resources: concluding on the arrangements in place for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of
resources (the value for money conclusion).
The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies sets out the respective responsibilities of the auditor
and the Authority.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

2

Section two

Headlines

This table summarises the

Audit approach

headline messages. The
remainder of this report

Our overall audit approach is unchanged from last year. Our work is carried out in four stages and the timings for
these, and specifically our on site work, have been agreed with the Senior Finance Manager (Financial Planning and
Reporting).
Our audit strategy and plan remain flexible as risks and issues change throughout the year. We will review the initial
assessments presented in this document throughout the year and should any new risks emerge we will evaluate these
and respond accordingly.

provides further details on
each area.
Financial statements significant audit risks
and other areas of
audit focus

We have completed our initial risk assessment for the financial statements audit and have identified the following
significant risk:
■ LGPS triennial valuation – The Authority needs to have arrangements in place to provide assurance on the
actuarial figures contained in the financial statements.
Our initial assessment also identified the following areas of audit focus:

Page 12

■ New ledger system (Oracle) – move to new system from 1 April 2013.
■ New shared service (EMSS) – introduction of new arrangements for financial, payroll and HR services.
Specifically we will seek assurance that the previous control weaknesses around the payroll and accounts payable
systems have been addressed by the introduction of the new financial system and shared service arrangements.
These are described in more detail on pages 10 to 12. We will assess the Authority’s progress in addressing these risk
areas as part of our interim work and conclude this work at year end.
VFM audit approach

We have identified one risk assessment in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing financial resilience in
terms of its financial standing, including its medium term financial plan.
This risk is described in more detail on page 14.

Audit team,
deliverables, timeline
and fees

We have refreshed our audit team this year. Kay Meats replaces Maria Riley as the Audit Assistant Manager and will
be the main point of contact for all on site work.
Our main year end audit is currently planned to commence on 30 June 2014. Upon conclusion of our work we will
again present our findings to you in our Report to Those Charged with Governance (ISA 260 Report).

The planned fee for the 2013/14 audit is £228,420. This is unchanged from the position set out in our Audit Fee Letter
2013/14.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

3

Section three

Our audit approach

We undertake our work on

We have summarised the four key stages of our financial statements audit process for you below:

your financial statements in

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Jul Aug Sep

four key stages during 2014:
■ Update our business understanding and risk assessment.
■ Planning
(January to February).

1

■ Assess the organisational control environment.
Planning

■ Control Evaluation

■ Determine our audit strategy and plan the audit approach.
■ Issue our Accounts Audit Protocol.

(March to April).
■ Substantive Procedures

■ Evaluate and test selected controls over key financial systems.

(June to August).

Page 13

2

■ Completion (September).

Control
evaluation

■ Review the accounts production process.
■ Review progress on critical accounting matters.

■ Plan and perform substantive audit procedures.
3

Substantive
procedures

■ Conclude on critical accounting matters.

■ Identify audit adjustments.
■ Review the Annual Governance Statement.
■ Declare our independence and objectivity.

4

Completion

■ Obtain management representations.
■ Report matters of governance interest.
■ Form our audit opinion.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

4

Section three

Our audit approach – planning

During January and
February 2014 we complete

Our planning work takes place in January and February 2014. This
involves the following aspects:

our planning work.

affecting the Authority’s
financial statements and
discuss these with officers.

Planning

We assess the key risks

■ Update our business understanding and risk
assessment.

■ Assess the organisational control environment.
■ Determine our audit strategy and plan the audit
approach.
■ Issue our Accounts Audit Protocol.

We assess if there are any
Business understanding and risk assessment

central processes, including

We update our understanding of the Authority’s operations and identify
any areas that will require particular attention during our audit of the
Authority’s financial statements.

Page 14

weaknesses in respect of
the Authority’s IT systems,
that would impact on our
audit.

We identify the key risks affecting the Authority’s financial statements.
These are based on our knowledge of the Authority, our sector
experience and our ongoing dialogue with Authority staff. Any risks
identified to date through our risk assessment process are set out in
this document. Our audit strategy and plan will, however, remain
flexible as the risks and issues change throughout the year. It is the
Authority’s responsibility to adequately address these issues. We
encourage the Authority to raise any technical issues with us as early
as possible so that we can agree the accounting treatment in advance
of the audit visit.
We meet with the finance team on a bi-monthly basis to consider
issues and how they are addressed during the financial year end
closedown and accounts preparation.
Organisational control environment
Controls operated at an organisational level often have an impact on
controls at an operational level and if there were weaknesses this
would impact on our audit.

In particular risk management, internal control and ethics and conduct
have implications for our financial statements audit. The scope of the
work of your internal auditors also informs our risk assessment.
The Authority relies on information technology (IT) to support both
financial reporting and internal control processes. With the introduction
of a new ledger system (Oracle) for 2013/14 our IT auditors will assess
the control arrangements supporting the new system.
Audit strategy and approach to materiality

Our audit is performed in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK and Ireland). The Engagement Lead sets the
overall direction of the audit and decides the nature and extent of audit
activities. We design audit procedures in response to the risk that the
financial statements are materially misstated. The materiality level is a
matter of judgement and is set by the Engagement Lead.
In accordance with ISA 320 ‘Audit materiality’, we plan and perform our
audit to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are
free of material misstatement and give a true and fair view. Information
is material if its omission or misstatement could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Group audit
To support our audit work on the Authority’s group accounts, we seek
to place reliance on the work of other firms who are the auditors to the
Authority’ s subsidiary and associate undertakings. Where these
undertakings are significant, auditing standards require us to liaise with
these other firms in order to confirm that their programme of work is
adequate for our purposes and they satisfy professional requirements.
Other than the Authority, there are no other undertakings that we deem
to be significant in the context of the group audit. We will update this
assessment once the Authority has produced its group financial
statements for 2013/14.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

5

Section three

Our audit approach – planning (continued)

We will seek to rely on the

Accounts audit protocol

work of the auditors to the

At the end of our planning work we will issue our Accounts Audit
Protocol. This important document sets out our audit approach and
timetable. It also summarises the working papers and other evidence
we require the Authority to provide during our interim and final
accounts visits.

Authority’s subsidiary and
associate undertakings to
support our audit of the

Authority’s group accounts.
We will issue our Accounts
Audit Protocol following
completion of our planning

We met with the Senior Finance Manager (Financial Planning and
Reporting) to discuss mutual learning points from the 2012/13 audit.
These will be incorporated into our work plan for 2013/14. We revisit
progress against areas identified for development as the audit
progresses.

work.

Page 15
© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

6

Section three

Our audit approach – control evaluation

During March to April 2014
we will complete our interim

Our interim visit on site will be completed within 3 weeks from 10
March 2014. During this time we will complete work in the following
areas:

We assess if controls over
key financial systems were
effective during 2013/14. We
work with your internal audit
team to avoid duplication.

Control
Evaluation

audit work.

■ Evaluate and test controls over key financial systems
identified as part of our risk assessment.
■ Review the work undertaken by the internal audit
function on controls relevant to our risk assessment.
■ Review the accounts production process.
■ Review progress on critical accounting matters.

Accounts production process
We raised one recommendation in our ISA 260 Report 2012/13 relating
to the accounts production process:
■ Group statements – work with each group entity to ensure that the
audit of their financial statements is timed to enable signed audited
statements to be available by mid September at the latest.
We will assess the Authority’s progress in addressing this
recommendation and in preparing for the closedown and accounts
preparation.
Critical accounting matters

We work with your finance
team to enhance the

Page 16

efficiency of the accounts
audit.
We will report any significant
findings arising from our
work to the Audit
Committee.

Controls over key financial systems
We update our understanding of the Authority’s key financial processes
where our risk assessment has identified that these are relevant to our
final accounts audit and where we have determined that this is the
most efficient audit approach to take. We confirm our understanding by
completing walkthroughs for these systems. We then test selected
controls that address key risks within these systems. The strength of
the control framework informs the substantive testing we complete
during our final accounts visit.

We will discuss the work completed to address the specific risks we
identified at the planning stage. Wherever possible, we seek to review
relevant workings and evidence and agree the accounting treatment as
part of our interim work.
If there are any significant findings arising from our interim work we will
present these to the Audit Committee in July 2014.

Liaising with internal audit
In order to maximise the effectiveness of the audit resources deployed
we have a joint working protocol in place and will have discussions with
internal audit to understand our respective approaches and to ensure
there will be no duplication of effort.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

7

Section three

Our audit approach – substantive procedures

During July to August 2014
we will be on site for our

Our final accounts visit on site has been provisionally scheduled for the
period 30 June to 25 July 2014. During this time, we will complete the
following work:

We complete detailed testing
of accounts and disclosures
and conclude on critical
accounting matters, such as

Substantive
Procedures

substantive work.

■ Identify and assess any audit adjustments.

To comply with auditing standards, we are required to report
uncorrected audit differences to the Audit Committee. We also report
any material misstatements which have been corrected and which we
believe should be communicated to you to help you meet your
governance responsibilities.

■ Review the Annual Governance Statement.

Annual Governance Statement

■ Plan and perform substantive audit procedures.
■ Conclude on critical accounting matters.

specific risk areas. We then
Substantive audit procedures

required to the financial

We complete detailed testing on significant balances and disclosures.
The extent of our work is determined by the Engagement Lead based
on various factors such as our overall assessment of the Authority’s
control environment, the effectiveness of controls over individual
systems and the management of specific risk factors.

Page 17

agree any audit adjustments
statements.
We also review the Annual
Governance Statement for
consistency with our

Critical accounting matters

understanding.

We conclude our testing of key risk areas identified at the planning
stage and any additional issues that may have emerged since.

We will present our ISA 260
Committee in September

We will discuss our early findings of the Authority’s approach to
address the key risk areas with the Corporate Director of Resources in
September 2014, prior to reporting to the Audit Committee.

2014.

Audit adjustments

Report to the Audit

At the end of our on site work, we will hold a closure meeting, where
we will provide a schedule of audit differences and agree a timetable
for the completion stage and the accounts sign off.

We are also required to satisfy ourselves that your Annual Governance
Statement complies with the applicable framework and is consistent
with our understanding of your operations. Our review of the work of
internal audit and consideration of your risk management and
governance arrangements are key to this.
We report the findings of our final accounts work in our ISA 260
Report, which we will issue in September 2014.

During our on site work, we will meet with the Senior Finance Manager
(Financial Planning and Reporting) on a weekly basis to discuss the
progress of the audit, any differences found and any other issues
emerging.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

8

Section three

Our audit approach – other

In addition to the financial

Whole of government accounts (WGA)

Independence and objectivity confirmation

statements, we also review

We are required to review and issue an assurance statement on your
WGA consolidation and to confirm that this is consistent with your
financial statements. The audit approach has been agreed with HM
Treasury and the National Audit Office. Deadlines for production of the
pack and issue of our opinion on the pack have not yet been
confirmed.

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those
charged with governance, at least annually, all relationships that may
bear on the firm’s independence and the objectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff. The standards also place
requirements on auditors in relation to integrity, objectivity and
independence.

Elector challenge

The standards define ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those
persons entrusted with the supervision, control and direction of an
entity’. In your case this is the Audit Committee.

the Authority’s Whole of
Government Accounts pack.
We may need to undertake
additional work if we receive
objections to the accounts

The Audit Commission Act 1998 gives electors certain rights. These
are:

We will communicate with

■ the right to inspect the accounts;

you throughout the year,

■ the right to ask the auditor questions about the accounts; and

Page 18

from local electors.

both formally and informally.

■ the right to object to the accounts.
As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to the
accounts, we may need to undertake additional work to form our
decision on the elector's objection. The additional work could range
from a small piece of work where we interview an officer and review
evidence to form our decision, to a more detailed piece of work, where
we have to interview a range of officers, review significant amounts of
evidence and seek legal representations on the issues raised.
The costs incurred in responding to specific questions or objections
raised by electors is not part of the fee. This work will be charged in
accordance with the Audit Commission's fee scales.

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent.
APB Ethical Standard 1 Integrity, Objectivity and Independence
requires us to communicate to you in writing all significant facts and
matters, including those related to the provision of non-audit services
and the safeguards put in place which, in our professional judgement,
may reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and
the objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.
Appendix 1 provides further detail on auditors’ responsibilities
regarding independence and objectivity.
Confirmation statement
We confirm that as of February 2014 in our professional judgement,
KPMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and
professional requirements and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead
and audit team is not impaired.

Reporting and communication
Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating
the audit findings for the year, but also in ensuring the audit team are
accountable to you in addressing the issues identified as part of the
audit strategy. Throughout the year we will communicate with you
through meetings with the Deputy Chief Executive, Finance Team and
the Audit Committee. Our deliverables are included on page 16.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

9

Section four

Financial statements - significant audit risks

In this section we set out our
assessment of the
significant risks to the audit

The table below sets out the significant risk we have identified through our planning work that is specific to the audit of the Authority's financial
statements for 2013/14.

We will revisit our assessment throughout the year and should any additional risks present themselves we will adjust our audit strategy as
necessary.

of the Authority's financial
statements for 2013/14.

Significant audit risk

Impact on audit

For this area of significant
Risk

risk we have outlined the
impact on our audit plan.

LGPS
triennial
valuation

Audit areas affected
■ Pensions Liability

Page 19

■ Actuarial gains or
losses

During the year, the Local Government Pension Scheme for Nottinghamshire
(the Pension Fund) has undergone a triennial valuation with an effective date of
31 March 2013 in line with the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Administration) Regulations 2008. The Authority’s share of pensions assets and
liabilities is determined in detail, and a large volume of data is provided to the
actuary in order to carry out this triennial valuation.
The IAS 19 numbers to be included in the financial statements for 2013/14 will
be based on the output of the triennial valuation rolled forward to 31 March 2014.
For 2014/15 and 2015/16 the actuary will then roll forward the valuation for
accounting purposes based on more limited data.
There is a risk that the data provided to the actuary for the valuation exercise is
inaccurate and that these inaccuracies affect the actuarial figures in the
accounts. Most of the data is provided to the actuary by Nottinghamshire County
Council who administer the Pension Fund.

Our audit work
As part of our audit, we will need to agree the data provided to the actuary back
to the systems and reports from which it was derived, and test the accuracy of
this data.
We will liaise with the separate KPMG audit team for the Pension Fund, where
this data was provided by the Pension Fund on the Authority’s behalf.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

10

Section five

Financial statements - other areas of audit focus

In this section we set out
other areas of audit focus
and the impact on the audit
of the Authority's financial
statements for 2013/14.

For each area we have
outlined the impact on our
audit plan.

Professional standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations. We are not elaborating on these standard risks in this plan
but consider them as a matter of course in our audit and will include any findings arising from our work in our ISA 260 Report.
■ Management override of controls – Management is typically in a powerful position to perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Our
audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we carry out
appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that
are outside the normal course of business, or are otherwise unusual.
■ Fraudulent revenue recognition – We do not consider this to be a significant risk for local authorities as there are limited incentives and
opportunities to manipulate the way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate specific work into our audit plan
in this area over and above our standard fraud procedures.
The table below sets out other areas of focus we have identified through our planning work that are specific to the audit of the Authority's financial
statements for 2013/14.

Page 20

We will revisit our assessment throughout the year and should any additional risks present themselves we will adjust our audit strategy as
necessary.
Other areas of audit focus

Impact on audit
Risk

New ledger
system
(Oracle)

Audit areas affected
■ General ledger

Implementation of a new accounting system by a new shared service provider
(East Midlands Shared Services – EMSS) at 1 April 2013 increases the risk of
data being lost or migrated incorrectly during the transition from the Council’s
existing One World system. Changes to controls may be lead to weaknesses that
had not previously been present.
Our audit work
We will review the information the opening position in Oracle and ensure that the
information is complete and accurate against the One World system. We will
assess the design and operation of controls that have been implemented following
the move to Oracle and ensure that these controls are operating effectively.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

11

Section five

Financial statements - other areas of audit focus (continued)

For each area we have

Other areas of audit focus

Impact on audit

outlined the impact on our
audit plan.

Audit areas affected
Weakness
in controls

■ Payroll
■ Creditors
■ Cost of services

Last year, we flagged specific risks in relation to payroll and accounts payable.
The introduction of the new ledger system and shared service arrangements
should have addressed these weaknesses. Our audit work will focus on gaining
assurance that these risks have been addressed.
Risk
Payroll
In the past we have been unable to rely on controls to confirm the existence of
staff and related payroll expenditure. The Authority has taken steps to address
these weaknesses through the implementation of a new payroll and HR system.
The effectiveness of this will be assessed as part of our interim work.

Page 21

Accounts Payable
Weaknesses previously identified in controls over accounts payable should have
been addressed by the move to a new accounting system from 1 April 2013
(Oracle). This will be tested as part of our interim work.
Our audit work
Payroll
We will review the changes in controls as a result of the move to new systems
hosted by East Midlands Shared Services (EMSS), specifically in relation to the
implementation of an employee establishment and whether the controls around
existence are adequate. Further work may be required (for which an additional fee
will be charged) if the assurance provided is insufficient.
Accounts Payable
We will assess the design and operation of controls that have been implemented
following the move to Oracle. Further work may be required (for which an
additional fee will be charged) if control weaknesses remain.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

12

Section six

VFM audit approach

Our approach to VFM work

Background to approach to VFM work

follows guidance provided

In meeting their statutory responsibilities relating to economy,
efficiency and effectiveness, the Commission’s Code of Audit Practice
requires auditors to:

by the Audit Commission.

n

plan their work based on consideration of the significant risks of
giving a wrong conclusion (audit risk); and

n

carry out only as much work as is appropriate to enable them to
give a safe VFM conclusion.

To provide stability for auditors and audited bodies, the Audit
Commission has kept the VFM audit methodology unchanged from
last year. There are only relatively minor amendments to reflect the
key issues facing the local government sector.
The approach is structured under two themes, as summarised below.

Page 22

Specified criteria for VFM
conclusion

Focus of the criteria

Sub-sections

The organisation has proper
arrangements in place for securing
financial resilience.

The organisation has robust systems and processes to:

n

Financial governance

The organisation has proper
arrangements for challenging how it
secures economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

n

manage effectively financial risks and opportunities; and

n

Financial planning

n

secure a stable financial position that enables it to
continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

n

Financial control

The organisation is prioritising its resources within tighter
budgets, for example by:

n

Prioritising resources

n

Improving efficiency and
productivity

n

achieving cost reductions; and

n

improving efficiency and productivity.

We will report on the results of the VFM audit through our ISA 260 Report. This will summarise any specific matters arising, and the basis for
our overall conclusion. The key output from the work will be the VFM conclusion (i.e. our opinion on the Authority’s arrangements for
securing VFM), which forms part of our audit report.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

13

Section six

VFM audit approach (continued)

We will follow a risk based
Risk description and link to VFM conclusion

Preliminary assessment

effort on the areas of

Risk

greatest audit risk.

As at January 2014, the Authority is forecasting
that it will deliver its 2013/14 budget in overall
terms.

We will critically assess the controls the Authority has in
place to ensure a sound financial standing.

approach to target audit

Key VFM risk

We have identified one
specific VFM risk which we
will consider as part of our
risk assessment.
We will provide an update on

Page 23

how the Authority is
managing this risk in our ISA
260 Report.

Financial
standing

Looking ahead, the Authority’s draft medium
term financial plan (MTFP) as at December 2013
includes a provisional balanced budget for
2014/15.
There are projected budget shortfalls in both the
following two financial years, rising from £36m in
2015/16 to £55m in 2016/17. Significant savings
will be required to address these shortfalls as
reductions to local authority funding continue.

Specifically we will consider how the Authority’s MTFP
takes into consideration potential future funding
reductions and is sufficiently robust to ensure that the
Authority can continue to provide services effectively,
We will also review how the Authority is planning and
managing its savings plans.
Specific risk based work required: No

Against a backdrop of continued demand
pressures in Adult Social Care and Children in
Care services it will become increasingly difficult
to deliver savings in a way that secures longer
term financial and operational sustainability.

Link to VFM conclusion
This is relevant to the financial resilience
criterion of the VFM conclusion.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

14

Section seven

Audit team

Your audit team has been
drawn from our specialist
public sector assurance

“My role is to lead our
team and ensure the
delivery of a high quality,
valued added external
audit opinion.

department. Our audit team
were all part of the

Nottingham City Council
audit last year with the

I will be the main point of
contact for the Audit
Committee and
Executive Directors.”

exception of a new Assistant
Manager.
Contact details are shown

Page 24

on page 1.

Sue Sunderland

Paul Hutchings

Director

Manager

“I am responsible for the
management, review
and delivery of the
whole audit and
providing quality
assurance for any
technical accounting
areas. I will work closely
with Sue Sunderland to
ensure we add value. I
will liaise with the Senior
Finance Managers and
the Chief Internal
Auditor.”

The audit team will be
assisted by other KPMG
specialists as necessary.

“I will be responsible for
the on-site delivery of
our work. I will liaise with
the Finance and Internal
Audit Managers and
their teams. I will also
supervise the work of
our audit assistants.”
Kay Meats
Assistant Manager

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

15

Section seven

Audit deliverables

At the end of each stage of
our audit we issue certain
deliverables, including
reports and opinions.

Deliverable

External Audit Plan

■ Outlines our audit approach.

February 2014

■ Identifies areas of audit focus and planned procedures.

delivered to a high standard

Control evaluation

and on time.

Interim Report

■ Details and resolution of control and process issues.

July 2014

■ Identifies improvements required prior to the issue of the draft financial statements
and the year-end audit.

We will discuss and agree
each report as appropriate

Page 25

prior to publication.

Committee dates

Planning

Our key deliverables will be

with the Authority’s officers

Purpose

Substantive procedures
Report to Those
Charged with
Governance (ISA 260
Report)

■ Details the resolution of key audit issues.

September 2014

■ Communicates adjusted and unadjusted audit differences.
■ Highlights performance improvement recommendations identified during our audit.
■ Comments on the Authority’s value for money arrangements.

Completion
Auditor’s Report

■ Provides an opinion on your accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement).

September 2014

■ Concludes on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of resources (the VFM conclusion).
Whole of Government
Accounts

■ Provide our opinion on the Authority’s WGA pack submission.

September 2014

Annual Audit Letter

■ Summarises the outcomes and the key issues arising from our audit work for the year
(issue October 2014).

November 2014

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

16

Section seven

Audit timeline

We will be in continuous
dialogue with you

Key formal interactions with
the Audit Committee are:
■ February – External Audit

Regular meetings between the Engagement Lead and the Chief Executive and the Corporate Director of Resources

Communication

throughout the audit.

Presentation of
the External
Audit Plan

Plan;

Presentation
of the ISA260
Report

Presentation of the
Interim Report

Presentation
of the Annual
Audit Letter

■ July – Interim Report ;
■ September – ISA 260

Page 26

Jan

Report;

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

■ November – Annual Audit
Letter.

Interim audit
visit

Final accounts
visit

team and internal audit
throughout the year.
Our main work on site will
be our:

Audit workflow

We work with the finance

Audit planning

Control
evaluation

Substantive
procedures

Completion

■ Interim audit visit during
Continuous liaison with the finance team and internal audit

March.
■ Final accounts audit
during July and August.

Key:

l Audit Committee meetings.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

17

Section seven

Audit fee

The fee for the 2013/14 audit

Audit fee

of the Authority is £228,420.

Our Audit Fee Letter 2013/14 presented to you in March 2013 first set
out our fees for the 2013/14 audit. We have not considered it
necessary to make any changes to the agreed fees at this stage.

The fee has not changed
from that set out in our Audit
Fee Letter 2013/14 issued in

March 2013.

Our audit fee includes our work on the VFM conclusion and our audit of
the Authority’s financial statements.

Our audit fee remains

The planned audit fee for 2013/14 is £228,420. There has been no
increase in your fee from the previous year.

indicative and based on you

Audit fee assumptions

meeting our expectations of

The fee is based on a number of assumptions, including that you will
provide us with complete and materially accurate financial statements,
with good quality supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes.
It is imperative that you achieve this. If this is not the case and we have
to complete more work than was envisaged, we will need to charge
additional fees for this work. In setting the fee, we have assumed:

your support.

Page 27

Meeting these expectations
will help the delivery of our
audit within the proposed
audit fee.

■ the level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is
not significantly different from that identified for 2012/13;
■ you will inform us of any significant developments impacting on our
audit;
■ you will identify and implement any changes required under the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK
2013/14 within your 2013/14 financial statements;
■ you will comply with the expectations set out in our Accounts Audit
Protocol, including:
– the financial statements are made available for audit in line with
the agreed timescales;
– good quality working papers and records will be provided at the
start of the final accounts audit;

– requested information will be provided within the agreed
timescales;
– prompt responses will be provided to queries and draft reports;
■ internal audit meets appropriate professional standards;
■ internal audit adheres to our joint working protocol and completes
appropriate work on all systems that provide material figures for the
financial statements and we can place reliance on them for our
audit; and
■ additional work will not be required to address questions or
objections raised by local government electors or for special
investigations such as those arising from disclosures under the
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

Meeting these expectations will help ensure the delivery of our audit
within the agreed audit fee.
The Audit Commission requires us to inform you of specific actions you
could take to keep the audit fee low. Future audit fees can be kept to a
minimum if the Authority achieves an efficient and well-controlled
financial closedown and accounts production process which complies
with good practice and appropriately addresses new accounting
developments and risk areas.
Changes to the audit plan
Changes to this plan and the audit fee may be necessary if:
■ new significant audit risks emerge;
■ additional work is required of us by the Audit Commission or other
regulators; and
■ additional work is required as a result of changes in legislation,
professional standards or financial reporting requirements.
If changes to this plan and the audit fee are required, we will discuss
and agree these initially with the Corporate Director of Resources.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

18

Appendices

Appendix 1: Independence and objectivity requirements

This appendix summarises

Independence and objectivity

auditors’ responsibilities

Auditors are required by the Code to:

regarding independence and

■ carry out their work with independence and objectivity;

objectivity.

■ exercise their professional judgement and act independently of both
the Commission and the audited body;
■ maintain an objective attitude at all times and not act in any way
that might give rise to, or be perceived to give rise to, a conflict of
interest; and
■ resist any improper attempt to influence their judgement in the
conduct of the audit.

Page 28

In addition, the Code specifies that auditors should not carry out work
for an audited body that does not relate directly to the discharge of the
auditors’ functions under the Code. If the Authority invites us to carry
out risk-based work in a particular area, which cannot otherwise be
justified to support our audit conclusions, it will be clearly differentiated
as work carried out under section 35 of the Audit Commission Act
1998.
The Code also states that the Commission issues guidance under its
powers to appoint auditors and to determine their terms of
appointment. The Standing Guidance for Auditors includes several
references to arrangements designed to support and reinforce the
requirements relating to independence, which auditors must comply
with. These are as follows:

■ Audit staff are expected not to accept appointments as Governors
at certain types of schools within the local authority.
■ Auditors and their staff should not be employed in any capacity
(whether paid or unpaid) by an audited body or other organisation
providing services to an audited body whilst being employed by the
firm.
■ Firms are expected to comply with the requirements of the
Commission's protocols on provision of personal financial or tax
advice to certain senior individuals at audited bodies, independence
considerations in relation to procurement of services at audited
bodies, and area wide internal audit work.
■ Auditors appointed by the Commission should not accept
engagements which involve commenting on the performance of
other Commission auditors on Commission work without first
consulting the Commission.
■ Auditors are expected to comply with the Commission’s policy for
the Engagement Lead to be changed on a periodic basis.
■ Audit suppliers are required to obtain the Commission’s written
approval prior to changing any Engagement Lead in respect of
each audited body.
■ Certain other staff changes or appointments require positive action
to be taken by Firms as set out in the standing guidance.

■ Auditors and senior members of their staff who are directly involved
in the management, supervision or delivery of Commission-related
work, and senior members of their audit teams should not take part
in political activity.
■ No member or employee of the firm should accept or hold an
appointment as a member of an audited body whose auditor is, or
is proposed to be, from the same firm. In addition, no member or
employee of the firm should accept or hold such appointments at
related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a
strategic partnership.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

19

Appendices

Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework

We continually focus on
delivering a high quality
audit.
This means building robust
quality control procedures
into the core audit process
rather than bolting them on
at the end, and embedding
the right attitude and
approaches into

Page 29

management and staff.
KPMG’s Audit Quality
Framework consists of
seven key drivers combined
with the commitment of each
individual in KPMG.
The diagram summarises
our approach and each level
is expanded upon.

At KPMG we consider audit quality is not just about reaching the right
opinion, but how we reach that opinion. KPMG views the outcome of a
quality audit as the delivery of an appropriate and independent opinion
in compliance with the auditing standards. It is about the processes,
thought and integrity behind the audit report. This means, above all,
being independent, compliant with our legal and professional
requirements, and offering insight and impartial advice
to you, our client.
KPMG’s Audit Quality Framework consists of
seven key drivers combined with the
commitment of each individual in KPMG. We
use our seven drivers of audit quality to
articulate what audit quality means to KPMG.

We believe it is important to be transparent
about the processes that sit behind a KPMG
audit report, so you can have absolute
confidence in us and in the quality of our audit.
Tone at the top: We make it clear that audit
quality is part of our culture and values and
therefore non-negotiable. Tone at the top is the
umbrella that covers all the drivers of quality through
a focused and consistent voice. Sue Sunderland as the
Engagement Lead sets the tone on the audit and leads by
example with a clearly articulated audit strategy and commits a
significant proportion of her time throughout the audit directing and
supporting the team.
Association with right clients: We undertake rigorous client and
engagement acceptance and continuance procedures which are vital to
the ability of KPMG to provide high-quality professional services to our
clients.

technically enabled audit. All of our staff have a searchable data base,
Accounting Research Online, that includes all published accounting
standards, the KPMG Audit Manual Guidance as well as other relevant
sector specific publications, such as the Audit Commission’s Code of
Audit Practice.

Recruitment, development and assignment of
appropriately qualified personnel: One of the key
drivers of audit quality is assigning professionals
appropriate to the Authority’s risks. We take great
care to assign the right people to the right
clients based on a number of factors
including their skill set, capacity and relevant
experience.
We have a well developed technical
infrastructure across the firm that puts us in
a strong position to deal with any emerging
issues. This includes:
- A national public sector technical director
who has responsibility for co-ordinating our
response to emerging accounting issues,
influencing accounting bodies (such as
CIPFA) as well as acting as a sounding board
for our auditors.
- A national technical network of public sector audit professionals is
established that meets on a monthly basis and is chaired by our
national technical director.
- A dedicated Department of Professional Practice comprised of over
100 staff that provide support to our audit teams and deliver our webbased quarterly technical training.

Clear standards and robust audit tools: We expect our audit
professionals to adhere to the clear standards we set and we provide a
range of tools to support them in meeting these expectations. The
global rollout of KPMG’s eAudIT application has significantly enhanced
existing audit functionality. eAudIT enables KPMG to deliver a highly
© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

20

Appendices

Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework

We continually focus on
delivering a high quality
audit.
This means building robust
quality control procedures
into the core audit process
rather than bolting them on
at the end, and embedding

Commitment to technical excellence and quality service delivery:
Our professionals bring you up-to-the-minute and accurate technical
solutions and together with our specialists are capable of solving
complex audit issues and delivering valued insights.

Commitment to continuous improvement: We employ a broad
range of mechanisms to monitor our performance, respond to feedback
and understand our opportunities for improvement.

Our audit team draws upon specialist resources including Forensic,
Corporate Finance, Transaction Services, Advisory, Taxation, Actuarial
and IT. We promote technical excellence and quality service delivery
through training and accreditation, developing business understanding
and sector knowledge, investment in technical support, development of
specialist networks and effective consultation processes.

Our quality review results

foundations of well trained

Performance of effective and efficient audits: We understand that
how an audit is conducted is as important as the final result. Our
drivers of audit quality maximise the performance of the engagement
team during the conduct of every audit. We expect our people to
demonstrate certain key behaviours in the performance of effective and
efficient audits. The key behaviors that our auditors apply throughout
the audit process to deliver effective and efficient audits are outlined
below:

staff and a robust

■ timely Engagement Lead and manager involvement;

methodology.

■ critical assessment of audit evidence;

the right attitude and
approaches into

Page 30

management and staff.
Quality must build on the

We are able to evidence the quality of our audits through the results of
National Audit Office and Audit Commission reviews. The Audit
Commission publishes information on the quality of work provided by
KPMG (and all other firms) for audits undertaken on behalf of them
(http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/audit-quality-reviewprogramme/principal-audits/kpmg-audit-quality).
The latest Annual Regulatory Compliance and Quality Report (issued
June 2013) showed that we performed highly against the Audit
Commission’s criteria. We were one of only two firms to receive a
combined audit quality and regulatory compliance rating of green for
2012/13.

■ exercise of professional judgment and professional scepticism;
■ ongoing mentoring and on the job coaching, supervision and
review;
■ appropriately supported and documented conclusions;
■ if relevant, appropriate involvement of the Engagement Quality
Control reviewer (EQC review);
■ clear reporting of significant findings;
■ insightful, open and honest two-way communication with those
charged with governance; and
■ client confidentiality, information security and data privacy.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.

21

Page 31
© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG
Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (KPMG International), a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.
The KPMG name, logo and ‘cutting through complexity’ are registered
trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative (KPMG
International).

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32

Page 33

Certification of
grants and returns
2012/13 (REVISED
DRAFT)
Nottingham City Council
February 2014

Agenda Item 5

Contents

The contacts at KPMG

Page

in connection with this

report are:

■ Headlines

2

Sue Sunderland

■ Summary of certification work outcomes

3

■ Fees

6

■ Recommendations

7

Director
Tel:

0115 945 4490

sue.sunderland@kpmg.co,uk

Paul Hutchings
Manager

Page 34

Tel:

0115 945 4472

paul.hutchings@kpmg.co.uk

Maria Riley
Assistant Manager
Tel:

0115 935 3433

maria.riley@kpmg.co.uk

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their
individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. This
summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. We draw your attention to this document.
External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently
and effectively.
If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Sue Sunderland, who is the engagement leader
to the Authority (telephone 0115 945 4490, e-mail sue.sunderland@kpmg.co.uk who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response
please contact Trevor Rees (telephone 0161 236 4000, e-mail trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk) who is the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit
Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. Put
your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit Commission, 3rd Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to
complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their telephone number is 0303 444 8330.
© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

1

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Headlines

Introduction and
background

This report summarises the results of work on the certification of the Council’s 2012/13 grant claims and returns.

Certification results

We issued an unqualified certificate for one return but qualifications were necessary in three cases.

-

■ For 2012/13 we certified four returns with a total value of £320m (including £181m for the Housing and Council Tax Benefit return).
Pages 3 – 5

■ Housing and Council Tax Benefit return due to high levels of Council Tax benefit overpayment and Local Housing Allowance rate errors.
■ Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return due to uncertainty over the level of available capital allowances stated in the return.
■ Teachers’ Pensions return due to lack of evidence to support refund payments included in return.
■ All these returns except for the Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return had qualified certificates in 2011/12. Overall, the number of
qualified certificates is unchanged from 2011/12 as the National Non Domestic Rates return was qualified last year.
Audit adjustments

Page 35
The Council’s
arrangements

Adjustments were necessary to one of the Council’s grants and returns as a result of our certification work this year.

Pages 3 – 5

■ Only one return required adjustments compared with two last year (2011/12).
■ Housing and Council Tax Benefit return was adjusted by £790 for a small number of minor errors. No adjustments required to this return
last year.
The Council has adequate arrangements for preparing its grants and returns and supporting our certification work but some
improvements are required.

Pages 3 – 5

■ Certification of the Housing and Council Tax Benefit return was delayed this year. The return this year needed additional case testing.
This led to delays in the completion of our work by the 30 November 2013 certification deadline. With continuing support from the Council
we certified the return on 20 December 2013.
■ Looking ahead, the Council would benefit from having a timetable for the detailed case testing it undertakes. Officers have agreed that a
detailed forward plan for 2013/14 will be established linked to our certification requirements.
Fees

The Audit Commission changed its fee regime for certifying grants and returns in 2012/13, and set an indicative fee for the Council
of £23,450. Our actual fee (estimated) for the certification of grants and returns was £22,270. The difference was due to less work
than planned being carried out with a £1,180 fee reduction proposed (subject to approval by the Audit Commission).

Page 6

■ The actual fee (estimated) charged this year (£22,270) is significantly lower than last year (£50,542) mainly due to the change in fee
regime and we have changed our approach to accommodate this.
■ We certified four returns this year compared with six last year. Certification of the Housing Subsidy and School Centred Initial Teacher
Training returns undertaken in previous years was not required this year.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

2

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Summary of certification work outcomes

Overall, we certified four
grants and returns:

■ one was unqualified with
no amendment;

Detailed below is a summary of the key outcomes from our certification work on the Council’s 2012/13 grants and returns, showing where either
certification amendments were made as a result of our work or where we had to qualify our certificate.
A qualification means that issues were identified concerning the Council’s compliance with a scheme’s requirements that could not be resolved
through adjustment. In these circumstances, it is likely that the relevant grant paying body will require further information from the Council to
satisfy itself that the full amounts of grant claimed are appropriate.

■ two required a
qualification to our

Comments
overleaf

certificate; and
■ one required both a

Housing and Council Tax Benefit

Qualified
certificate

Significant
adjustment

Minor
adjustment

Unqualified
certificate

3

0

1

1

1

qualification to our

Page 36

certificate and some
amendments to the final

Pooling of Housing Capital
Receipts

2

figures.

Detailed comments are

National Non Domestic Rates
return

provided overleaf.
Teachers’ Pensions
return

3

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

3

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Summary of certification work outcomes (cont.)

This table summarises the

Ref

Summary observations

Œ

Housing and Council Tax Benefit

key issues behind each of
the adjustments or
qualifications that were
identified on the previous
page.

Amendment
- £790

■ Extensive further testing was required to cover 12 different forms of error across the four main benefit types (nonHRA rent rebate; HRA rent rebate; rent allowance; council tax benefit). These errors were identified either as part of
our initial testing or based on our knowledge from certification of the 2011/12 return.
■ The Council had completed all the initial testing required by the 30 November 2013 certification deadline, however, at
that date further testing was in progress. This delayed the completion of our work with certification of the return on 20
December 2013.
■ Our qualification letter to the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) reported 11 different error types across three
of the main benefit types (HRA rent rebate; rent allowance; council tax benefit). Areas with the highest volume of
assessment errors were:

Page 37

■ Benefit overpayment errors - 18 cases (27 errors).
■ Use of incorrect Statutory Maternity Pay rates - 10 cases (20 errors).
■ Application of incorrect tax credits - 8 cases (16 errors).
■ We noted in our 2011/12 certification report a continuing high level of benefit overpayment errors linked to council tax
benefit. However, the estimated error based on our sample testing for this specific error type continues to fall being
£84,700 this year (2011/12: £101,500).
■ Overall, the estimated error (and potential claw back of funding) in the return increased significantly to over £2.5m
compared with £0.8m in 2011/12. Over £1.7m of this estimated error related to the use of incorrect Local Housing
Allowance (LHA) rates for four rent allowance assessment cases we reviewed. Errors arise due to the scale and
complexity of individual claims covered by the return and can significantly affect the overall estimated error in the
return.
■ Our testing also found isolated minor errors in the assessment of three cases as follows:

■ Council Tax Benefit - liability paid at 100% rather than 50% in error (£729).
■ Rent Allowance - incorrect figure used for claimant’s rent (marina mooring fees and craft licence) (£44).
■ Rent Allowance – incorrect classification of benefit overpayment in return as a payment on account (£17).
■ The overall impact of these errors was to reduce the total subsidy claimed by £790. The Council’s previous auditor
noted no such errors in 2011/12.
© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

4

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Summary of certification work outcomes (cont.)

Ref

Summary observations

•

Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts

Amendment
None

■ Our review found that the Council’s basis for calculating available capital allowances at 31 March 2012 stated in the
return was unclear.
■

The return included £26.620m of brought forward capital allowances in its return. Supporting working papers
provided by the Council estimated the brought forward capital allowances at £127.565m based on cumulative capital
receipts from 2007/08. We did not review this estimate as it was outside the scope of our certification work.

■ Our review found that capital allowances included in the return were based on 2011/12 capital receipts only. The
Council provided a reconciliation and supporting evidence confirming that the £26.620m was based on 2011/12
capital receipts only.

Page 38

■ We reported the uncertainty over the basis of calculating capital allowances in our qualification letter to the
Department for Communities and Local Government. The value of available capital allowances could be understated
and therefore not utilised in future although this would only be the case if capital receipts increased significantly from
their current level. This is a new qualification issue for 2012/13.

Ž

Teachers’ Pensions return

None

■ Our testing found a refund payment of £9,375 classified within the return as a short term pension payment. The
Council agreed this error and we certified a replacement return including corrected amounts for short term pensions
and refunds. This had no effect on the overall balance (final adjustment refund) due to the Council from Teachers’
Pensions.
■ The Council was unable to provide us by the certification deadline with evidence to support £32,672 of refunds
included in the return. Transfer of the Council’s payroll (including teachers) to the new shared service provider (East
Midlands Shared Services) was stated as the reason for delays in providing evidence. We reported the lack of
evidence in our qualification letter to Teachers’ Pensions.
■ Both qualification issues are new for 2012/13.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

5

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Fees

Our overall fee for the
certification of grants and

returns has been contained
within the original estimate.
The actual fee is estimated
to be £1,180 less than the
indicative fee as we carried
out less work than planned.

Breakdown of certification fees 2012/13
National Non
Domestic
Rates return,
£2,820

Breakdown of fee by grant/return

Housing
subsidy, £930
Housing and Council Tax Benefit

Pooling of
Housing
Capital
Receipts,
£1,910

Page 39

the Audit Commission.

(estimated)

(actual)

16,610

34,880

1,910

1,926

National Non Domestic Rates return

2,820

3,340

930

8,010

-

747

School centred initial teacher training
Housing subsidy
Total fee

subject to confirmation by

2011/12 (£)

Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts
Teachers’ Pensions return

This reduction in fee is

2012/13 (£)

-

1,639

22,270

50,542

Housing and
Council Tax
Benefit,
£16,610
The Audit Commission changed its fee regime for certifying grants and returns in 2012/13. It set an indicative fee for the Council of £23,450.
Based on the actual work we carried out we estimate that the actual fee charged will be lower than the indicative fee by £1,180. The reason for
the estimated fee being less than the indicative fee was the change in requirement to no longer certify the School Centred Initial Teacher Training
grant originally included in the indicative fee.
Of the above fee, a fee reduction of £1,180 is still subject to confirmation by the Audit Commission, and so our fee information is presented as
‘estimated’ rather than final.
In order to accommodate the reduced fee regime we adapted our approach including working with the Council to increase the level of testing
carried out by the Council to support our work. This worked reasonably well but we have discussed ways of improving this including
recommending that the Council puts a timetable in place for the detailed testing of Housing and Council Tax benefit cases it undertakes to
support our certification work. This should help prevent any delays in certifying returns as well as minimise certification fees in the future.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

6

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Recommendations

We have given each recommendation a risk rating and agreed what action management will need to take. We will follow up these recommendations during next year’s
audit.
Priority rating for recommendations

Œ

Issues that are fundamental and material to your overall
arrangements for managing grants and returns or
compliance with scheme requirements. We believe that
these issues might mean that you do not meet a grant
scheme requirement or reduce (mitigate) a risk.

Issue

Ž

Issues that would, if corrected, improve your
arrangements for managing grants and returns or
compliance with scheme requirements in general, but
are not vital to the overall system. These are generally
issues of best practice that we feel would benefit you if
you introduced them.

Comment

Responsible officer and target date

Agreed.
The Council did complete
all of the initial testing for
the subsidy claim .
Further testing and 40+
sampling identified by
KPMG condensed the
time available for
extended checks to be
completed.

Head of Revenues, Benefits and
Welfare Rights
By 31 March 2014

• Issues that have an important effect on your

Implication

arrangements for managing grants and returns or
complying with scheme requirements, but do not need
immediate action. You may still meet scheme
requirements in full or in part or reduce (mitigate) a risk
adequately but the weakness remains in the system.
Recommendation

Priority

Page 40

Housing and Council Tax Benefit
Certification delay
Council did not complete all
testing required in time to
meet 30 November 2013
deadline set by the DWP.

Possible delays and penalties in
the payment of future Housing
and Council Tax Benefit grant by
the DWP.

1

Put in place a timetable for
completion of both initial and
further testing required to
support the certification of
future Housing and Council Tax
Benefit returns to meet
certification deadlines.

Œ

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

7

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Recommendations (cont.)

Issue

Implication

Recommendation

Priority

Comment

Responsible officer and target date

-

•

For 2013/14 Council Tax
Benefit (CTB) is no
longer a feature of
subsidy.
This is because National
CTB is abolished and
Local Authorities are
required to introduce local
Council Tax Reduction
(CTR) schemes.
Therefore any
expenditure incurred is
not covered by subsidy.
The service will agree
scope with Internal Audit
for CTR controls in this
area.

Revenues & Benefits Business
Support Manager
By 31 May 2014

•

Agreed.
Part of routine quality
assurance checks
including:
§ High value payment
checks;
§ Home visits for all
payments; and
§ Quality assurance
checks through Team
Leaders.

Housing and Council Tax Benefit (continued)
Benefit overpayment
errors
High volume of errors for
Council Tax Benefit
assessments.

Risk of increasing level of error in
future Housing and Council Tax
Benefit returns.

2

Identify the reasons for Council
Tax benefit overpayments and
take action to address these.

Page 41
Local Housing Allowance
(LHA) errors
Use of incorrect LHA rates
for Rent Allowance
assessments significantly
increased estimated in
2012/13 return.

Risk of increasing level of error in
future Housing and Council Tax
Benefit returns.

3

Carry out a rolling review of
claimant assessments for rent
allowance that include LHA to
confirm accuracy of rates used.
For future assessments,
strengthen checks on LHA
rates to confirm their accuracy.

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

8

Certification of grants and returns 2012/13

Recommendations (cont.)

Issue

Implication

Recommendation

Priority

Comment

Responsible officer and target date

Agreed.
In dialogue with DCLG to
clarify capital allowance
level.

Jim Driver
By 31 March 2014

Agreed.
The missing evidence
arose as a result of the
transfer of the service to
EMSS.
Responsibility for
completing the return and
providing working papers
has now been fully
transferred to EMSS and
a responsible officer
identified.
EMSS has been made
aware of the
requirements.

Senior Finance Manager (Financial
Reporting)
By 31 May 2014

Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts
Available capital
allowances

Allowances available to the
Council may be understated.

4

Resolve uncertainty reported in
our 2012/13 qualification letter.

•

Basis for the calculation of
capital allowances
available to the Council is
unclear.
Teachers’ Pensions
Evidence

Page 42

Council unable to provide
evidence by the
certification deadline to
support the refunds figure
included in the 2012/13
return.

Amounts included in future
returns for refunds may be
incorrect unless supporting
evidence is available.

5

Ensure evidence to support
refunds is available when
compiling future returns.

Risk of qualified certificates
being given on future returns.

Ž

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

9

Page 43
© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG
Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights
reserved.
The KPMG name, logo and ‘cutting through complexity’ are registered
trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative (KPMG
International).

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44

Agenda Item 6

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 28 February 2014
Title of paper:

PROTECTING THE PUBLIC PURSE 2013

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):

DIRECTOR
FINANCE

Report author(s) and
contact details:

Shail Shah
Head of Internal Audit
( 0115-8764245
* shail.shah@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

OF

STRATEGIC Wards affected: All

Other colleagues who
have provided input:
Recommendation(s):
1
Note and comment on the Audit Commission’s findings and recommendations.

1.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

This report summarises key messages derived from the Audit Commission
Report Protecting the Public Purse 2013 (PPP).
1.1. Fraud costs local government an estimated £2 billion pound a year.
Every pound lost through fraud is not available to meet council
objectives and provide public services.
1.2. The harm caused by fraud is not just financial. It deprives citizens of
services and ultimately affects a Council’s reputation and undermines
public trust.
1.3. Generally fewer frauds were detected in 2012/13 than in 2011/12. This
may be due to the reduction in Council’s capacity to investigate fraud
due to austerity measures.
1.4. The report draws on a number of case studies demonstrating good
practice, including using Nottingham City Council’s pro-active
approach to identifying potential Single Person Discount fraud which
resulted in an estimated additional collectable £1.2 million Council
Tax.
1.5. Council’s face must face challenges due to reduced funding and new
national counter-fraud arrangements. In order to effectively counter
fraud Council’s should plan to focus on non-benefit fraud and maintain
their capacity to investigate it following the introduction of the Single
Fraud Investigation Services
1.6. Councillors have a crucial role in deterring and detecting fraud by
providing corporate leadership demonstrating a zero tolerance towards
fraud and ensuring associated counter fraud policies and procedures
are in place and used.

Page 45

1.7. In summary the City Council has made many of the arrangements
outlined in the report, including:•

Using Audit Commission best practice guidance for developing
fraud arrangements

•

Investigating frauds identified via data matching exercises including
the National Fraud Initiative

•

Promoting a rigorous counter fraud culture

•

Developing a clear Counter Fraud Strategy (CFS)

•

Ensuring sufficient resources are available to tackle fraud

•

Using resources effectively, including working in partnership where
feasible

•

Preparing for the introduction of the SFIS

1.8. The proposed internal Audit Plan for 2014/15 includes a review of the
effectiveness of the Council’s Counter Fraud arrangements as
measured against the good practice reflected in the report. The results
of this review will be presented to this Committee.

2.

BACKGROUND
2.1. Good governance policies and procedures are essential when
allocating and controlling Council resources and supporting effective
delivery of the Council’s strategic and operational objectives.
2.2. The Committee endorsed the CFS at its 29 November 2013 meeting,
expressing the Council’s zero tolerance towards fraud.
2.3. The CFS emphasises that the Council expects its culture to be one of
honesty and opposition to fraud. Councillors and colleagues at all
levels are expected to lead by example by personally complying with
and ensuring wider and comprehensive adherence to rules,
procedures and practices which should feature straightforward,
effective, well documented controls that are legally sound and honest.
2.4. The Audit Commission annually reviews the incidences of fraud
reported by local authorities. PPP is a report summarising its findings
and reflecting on the trends found.
2.5. The purpose of the publication is to enable council’s to develop
focused plans and strategies for tackling fraud; and target resources
on are as where prevention and detection can have the most impact.

Page 46

2.6. KPMG, the Council’s External Auditor, are in attendance at this
meeting to discuss an Audit Commission presentation on the
publication and answer the Committees questions.

Page 47

3.

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR
THOSE DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

None
4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS
REPORT

Counter Fraud Strategy – Audit Committee, 29 November 2013
Protecting the Public Purse 2013 – Audit Commission
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/2013/11/protecting-the-public-purse2013/

Page 48

Protecting the Public Purse
Fraud Briefing 2013
Nottingham City Council

Page 49

Agenda
• Introduction and purpose of your Fraud Briefing
• Protecting the Public Purse (PPP) 2013 report – national picture
• Interpreting fraud detection results
Page 50

• The local picture
• Questions?
And do not forget
–Checklist for those charged with governance (Appendix 2 of PPP 2013)
–Questions councillors may want to ask/consider (Appendix 3 of PPP 2013)

Introduction

• Fraud costs local government in England over
£2 billion per year (source: National Fraud Authority)

Page 51

• Fraud is never a victimless crime

• Councillors have an important role in the fight
against fraud

Purpose of Fraud Briefing at your council
• Opportunity for councillors to consider fraud detection
performance, compared to similar local authorities
• Reviews current counter fraud strategy and priorities
Page 52

• Discuss local and national fraud risks
• Reflect local priorities in a proportionate response to
those risks
Your council is compared with the metropolitan districts and unitary
authorities of the west midlands, east midlands and east of England regions

National Picture 2012/13
Total cases detected107,000, with a value of £178
million (excluding social housing fraud)
Other
£38.5 m illion

Page 53

Council tax
discount
£19.5 m illion
Housing benefit
and Council tax
benefit
£120 m illion

Nationally, the number of detected frauds has fallen
by 14% since 2011/12 and the value by less than 1%

Interpreting fraud detection results
• Contextual and comparative information needed to
interpret results
• Detected fraud is indicative, not definitive, of counter
fraud performance (Prevention and deterrence should not be overlooked)
Page 54

• No fraud detected does not mean no fraud committed
(Fraud will always be attempted and even with the best prevention measures some
will succeed)

• Councils who look for fraud, and look in the right way,
will find fraud (There is no such thing as a small fraud, just a fraud that has
been detected early)

Your council is highlighted in yellow in the graphs that follow

The local picture
How your council compares to other Midlands and East of England
metropolitan districts and unitary authorities
Total detected cases and value 2012/13 (excluding social housing fraud)

Page 55

Nottingham detected: 1,495 cases, valued at £1,070,990

Midlands and East of England metropolitan districts and unitary
authorities 2012/13
Housing benefit (HB) and Council tax benefit (CTB) fraud
Detected cases and detected cases as a percentage of HB/CTB caseload

Page 56

Nottingham detected: 178 cases, valued at £586,490
Midlands and East of England average:
332 cases, valued at £698,296

Midlands and East of England metropolitan districts and unitary
authorities 2012/13
Council tax (CTAX) discount fraud
Detected value and detected value as a percentage of council tax
income

Page 57

Nottingham detected: 950 cases, valued at £296,000
Midlands and East of England average:
188 cases, valued at £53,054

Midlands and East of England metropolitan districts and unitary
authorities with housing stock 2012/13
Social housing fraud
Properties recovered and properties recovered as a percentage of
housing stock

Page 58

Nottingham recovered: no properties
Midlands and East of England average: 36 properties

Midlands and East of England metropolitan districts and unitary
authorities with housing stock 2012/13
Right to buy fraud
Detected cases and detected value

Page 59

Nottingham detected: no cases
Midlands and East of England metropolitan districts and
unitary authorities combined only detected a total of 5 cases,
with a total value of £168,590

Midlands and East of England metropolitan districts and unitary
authorities 2012/13
Disabled parking (Blue Badge) fraud
Detected cases

Page 60

Nottingham detected: 355 Blue Badge frauds
Midlands and East of England average: 18 cases

Nottingham City Council
Other frauds
• Procurement: 1 case, valued at £6,000
(Ave per Midlands and East of England Met & UA: 5 cases, valued at £963)

• Insurance: 1 case, valued at £5,000
(Total Midlands and East of England Met & UA: 3 cases reported, valued at £53,500)

• Social care: 2 cases, no value recorded
Page 61

(Total Midlands and East of England Met & UA: 5 cases, valued at £140,874)

• Economic & Third sector: no cases
(Total Midlands and East of England Met & UA: 1 case, valued at £34,730)

• Internal fraud: 10 cases, valued at £44,136
(Ave per Midlands and East of England Met & UA: 6 cases valued at £17,791)

Correctly recording fraud levels is a central element in assessing fraud risk
It is best practice to record the financial value of each detected case

Any questions?

Page 62

Agenda Item 7
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 28 FEBRUARY 2014
Title of paper:

Strategic Risk Register (SRR) – Quarter 3 (Q3)
2013/14 Update

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):

Report of the Deputy Chief
Wards affected: ALL
Executive & Corporate Director
for Resources
Simon Burton – Corporate Risk Specialist
0115 87(63432)
simon.burton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
Alison Michalska - Corporate Director Children and Families
Helen Blackman - Director of Safeguarding
Candida Brudenell - Director of Quality and Commissioning
Claire Richmond - Director Policy Partnerships & Communication
Liz Jones - Head of Corporate Policy
Steve Harrison - Information Specialist

Report author(s) and
contact details:
Other colleagues who
have provided input:

Recommendation(s):
1
Review previously selected risks:
o SR12a - Failure to provide the best educational outcome for children and
opportunities for young people to access further education and skills training to
contribute to the economic wellbeing of the City (see Appendix 1) (presentation by
Alison Michalska Corporate Director Children and Families)
2
Consider and critically appraise the progress made on reducing the seriousness of the
Council’s strategic risks as reflected by their threat levels and Direction of Travel (DoT)
for Q3 2013/14 (see Table 1 and Appendix 2).
3
Note the results of the review of the SRR by CLT
4
Select one or more strategic risks from Appendix 2 for specific scrutiny as part of the
SRR Q4 2013/14 Update
1.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1

The recommendations are made in line with the Audit Committee’s risk
management role in providing assurance on the adequacy of the Council’s Risk
Management Framework and the associated control environment by reviewing the
mechanisms for assessing and managing risk. This report presents the latest CLT
review of the strategic risks faced by the Council.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

Threat level reduction progress

2.2

Progress in reducing the seriousness of our strategic risks is assessed by a
combination of each risk’s overall threat level and DoT. This rounded assessment
gives a clearer picture of progress in reducing the risk threat level and is
summarised in Table 1.

2.3

Several SRR risks have been assessed by risk owners as improving, stable or at
target. Eight risks are red, reflecting a range of delivery pressures and challenges
the Council has to respond to.

Page 63

2.4

Of the 14 strategic risks within the SRR:
o Six strategic risks are at target
o A further two strategic risks show an improved DoT
o However, SR6 - Failure to safeguard vulnerable children shows a deteriorating
position
Table 1 shows the strategic risks ranked in order of threat level and DoT (highest to
lowest threat level):
TABLE 1: Risk Threat Level & DoT in rank order at Q3 2013/14
SR
No.

Threat
Level

Strategic Risk Description

Red rated strategic risks (8)
Failure to safeguard vulnerable children

15

Failure to reduce levels of crime and anti-social
behaviour (ASB)

12

8b

Failure to implement and embed effective information
management structures, polices, procedures,
processes and controls to support the council’s
immediate and future regulatory, legal, and business
requirements (updated Q1 2013/14)

12

11a

Failure to accurately predict and respond to financial
pressures supporting the development and delivery of
the medium term financial plan (updated Q1 2013/14)

12

12a

Failure to provide the best educational outcome for
children and opportunities for young people to access
further education and skills training to contribute to the
economic wellbeing of the City (under review)

12

30

Failure to create an organisational environment that
supports delivery of Council priorities (new risk
added Q1 2013/14)

12

26

Failure to support Nottingham citizens and
communities in minimising the negative impact of
welfare changes

28

Failure to ensure a financially sustainable ASC
system to respond to significant increases in demand
for care while protecting our most vulnerable citizens

6
7a/b

16 to 12

12

Amber rated strategic risks (6)
3

Failure to mitigate the impact of the economic climate
on the Nottingham City and its citizens

9
At target

25a

Failure to embed a corporate approach to
commissioning, informed by citizen need, which drives
delivery of improved services at significantly lower
cost

12 to 9
At target

Page 64

DoT
(Q2–Q3)

TABLE 1: Risk Threat Level & DoT in rank order at Q3 2013/14 (continued)
SR
No.

Threat
Level

Strategic Risk Description

DoT
(Q2–Q3)

Amber rated strategic risks (6)
2a

Of the reputation of the City

6
At target

10

Failure to maintain good standards of governance

6
At target

24

Failure to ensure effective systems are in place to
manage health and safety risks

6
At target

5a

Failure to safeguard vulnerable adults

8 to 6
At target

Green rated strategic risks - There are no green rated risks at Q3.
DoT key:

Reducing Threat Level

Stable Threat Level

Increasing Threat Level

Appendix 2 identifies individual risk owners, detailed risk threat level assessments
between March 2013 (Q4 2012/13) and January 2014 (Q3 2013/14) and the
projected dates when target threat levels will be achieved.
2.5

Review of new, emerging and existing SRR risks

2.5.1 SR6 - Failure to safeguard vulnerable children: With the improvement in the threat
assessment of SR26 Welfare reform, SR6 is now the Council’s most serious risk
and showing a deteriorating position on Q2. A surge in demand attributed to
changes in the assessment framework and the impact of national awareness of
safeguarding has significantly increased (by a 1/3) the number of cases being
managed at a time when the service was carrying vacancies. While this has been
addressed in the short term by agency staff with a recruitment exercise underway,
this does have financial implications.
To assist with the management of service demands in the medium term, a new
service, Children and Family Direct, has been established as an initial contact
service ensuring an early, timely and effective response for families and children in
need through prompt early advice and signposting for families in need of support.
For families and children in need of safeguarding the service prioritises and
escalates cases quickly, accessing an improved selection of appropriate
interventions and case allocation matched to qualified social workers in the most
serious situations.
There is a reputational risk with a number of inquests pending arising from incidents
of self harm. There have been a number of actions developed to respond to rising
incidents of self-harm, including additional support to schools and pupils from the
CAMHS service. In addition, all key professions are receiving further training in
identifying individuals at risk of self harming with a view to implementing effective
early interventions.
Although there is an increase in the level of risk for this quarter, the mitigations in
place are considered adequate to bring the risk to target, if the current funding is
Page 65

maintained. Caseloads are more manageable ensuring that children receive a
better service and families receive a more timely response.
2.5.2 SR8b - Failure to implement and embed effective information management
structures, polices, procedures, processes and controls to support the council’s
immediate and future regulatory, legal, and business requirements: The level of risk
remains unchanged at 12. A number of key Information Governance (IG) proposals
have been approved by CLT that will significantly improve the underlying
constituent risks. A stronger IG management framework will reduce the authority’s
exposure to risk through a planned approach to improvement.
These
improvements address matters of compliance, but also business need being
aligned to key elements of transformational change (for example the Customer
Access Programme and Commercialism) as well as the ongoing efficiency,
effectiveness and reputation of the Council.
2.5.3 SR11a - Failure to accurately predict and respond to financial pressures supporting
the development and delivery of the medium term financial plan remains
unchanged for this quarter assessed at 12. The Grant Settlement for 2014/15 is
now known and is marginally better than had been anticipated. However, the
expected longer term position remains extremely challenging.
2.5.4. SR12a - Failure to provide the best educational outcome for children and
opportunities for young people to access further education and skills training to
contribute to the economic wellbeing of the City: Recent changes to the school
inspection regime have significantly impacted on the regulatory view of the City’s
secondary provision. Inspections of seven secondary schools and academies in the
City conducted in December 2013 under the new framework, deemed all schools to
be inadequate and flagged a number of common issues and themes.
In response to this, Nottingham City Council and key partners have established the
Nottingham City Schools Challenge Board to drive city-wide improvement and
monitor school action plans to provide challenge and support to improve standards
in inadequate schools. As well as local authority representatives, the Board
membership includes representation from Ofsted, the Department for Education,
national and local leaders of education and governance and will be led by an
independent Chair. This Board will provide the rigour and drive to improve
standards and deliver on required improvements.
There is also an increasing focus on the quality of Further Education Provision, with
a new FE Commissioner having been appointed. It is important that we develop
closer links to our local FE provision to ensure that the local offer meets the needs
and aspirations of local learners and the local economy.
With the appointment of a new Corporate Director and in light of recent events, a
commitment has been made to rescope the strategic risk for Q4 to more explicitly
address issues and themes identified through the school inspections, namely:
o Achievement and progress – although KS4 results have improved year on
year Nottingham City is still behind national averages and the progress made by
young people was inadequate in all 7 schools

Page 66

o Quality of teaching & learning – this is made up of a number of constituent
risks from the adequacy of learning and development opportunities for newly
qualified teachers, issues with supply of good quality teachers into City schools,
the ineffective use of additional Pupil Premium funding to support learning for
those eligible
o Behaviour and attendance – Nottingham City’s performance with regards to
attendance has long been an issue. The inspections in December highlighted
high levels of absenteeism as a significant issue in schools, which impact
dramatically on a child’s ability to learn. Inspectors also noted a poor pupil
attitude to learning which resulted in disruptions to lessons
o Quality of leadership and governance – School leadership, including
governors, play a key role in securing improvement. Further work needs to be
done to ensure school leadership is robust and challenging and that governing
bodies has the tools and ability to challenge poor outcomes for pupils
The existing RMAP (attached as Appendix 1) has received a minor update for Q3
with the risk remaining stable at 12. For Q4 the RMAP will be rescoped to ensure
the key areas of focus are included, with refreshed mitigating actions in place to
drive improvement. Key enablers, such as maintaining a strong partnership with
schools, will remain vital elements of any mitigation.
2.5.5 xSR16a - Failure of partners including the City Council to work effectively together
to achieve vision and outcomes in the Nottingham Plan to 2020 entered the SRR in
December 2008. The risk has received several reviews and updates and has
remained at target 8 for nine consecutive quarters. The risk includes four
constituent risks which are all at their target threat level:
o Failure to align Council and partners’ resources to the objectives and targets in
the Nottingham Plan (at target 8)
o Failure to effectively performance manage the Nottingham Plan (at target 4)
o Changes in government policy and public sector funding cuts (at target 20)
o Partners disengagement from ON partnership (at target 4)
Since 2010, One Nottingham partners have consistently demonstrated their support
for the Nottingham Plan and their commitment to working together to deliver it.
It will be noted that Changes in government policy and public sector funding cuts,
remains high risk. Although mitigations have been implemented, including horizon
scanning, analysis of policy implications and working with partners to identify and
implement opportunities and mitigations to public expenditure cuts and Government
policy changes, these have limited effect on the level of assessed threat. This is
reflected in the high target threat level. CLT agreed to delegate the risk to be
managed by the Policy Partnerships and Communications Directorate with ongoing
monitoring through the annual partnership governance health checks.
2.5.6 SR25a - Failure to embed a corporate approach to commissioning, informed by
citizen need, which drives delivery of improved services at significantly lower cost:
originally entered the SRR in Q1 of 2010/11 scoped around delivering improved
outcomes through the implementation and embedding of the Commissioning
Framework. A review completed in Q4 2012/13 rescoped the risk around the third
phase of the Commissioning Programme.

Page 67

As rescoped the risk was assessed at 12 since which mitigations have reduced the
level of risk such that the risk is now assessed as improving and at target (9). This
reflects progress made in relation to a number of constituent risks including
partial/inconsistent implementation, agreeing strategic vision for implementation
and a lack of alignment between citizen consultation, commissioning, market
development and procurement:
o The commissioning strategy is now integrated with the procurement strategy
contributing to a consistent approach to procurement aligned to the principles of
the Commissioning Strategy
o The use of market development plans and position statements have proved
effective in engaging/developing the market place and promoting innovation,
extending citizen choice and meeting current and future citizen need
o The commissioning strategy has led to large scale joint reviews engaging cross
departmental and external partners which have been effective in developing
holistic responses focussed on addressing citizen need
Although significant constituent risks remain around consistent implementation and
limited understanding, knowledge or skills for commissioning (both 12), identified
mitigations are broadly assessed as adequate to bring the two remaining red risks
to target (8).
2.5.7 SR26 - Failure to support Nottingham citizens and communities in minimising the
negative impact of welfare changes entered SRR in Q2 2010/11 and until this
quarter has remained the Council’s highest risk at 16. Q3 2013/14 sees an
improving position with threat assessment reduced from 16 to 12. This change
results from significant improvement to three of the constituent risks:
o Failure to meet increased demand for services, particularly welfare advice,
hardship funds and homelessness (20 to 16)
o Failure to provide effective information and advice for citizens likely to be
affected by welfare changes relating to current benefits (12 to 8)
o HB under occupancy rules changes results in an increase in recovery action
resulting in increased eviction rates and homelessness (16 to 8)
These improvements stem from a number of mitigations:
o Demand for services is being closely monitored to ensure the most vulnerable
citizens receive the help they need. This has resulted in significant changes to
our hardship arrangements and continued close working with the advice sector
o Work to maximise the use of Discretionary House Payment (DHP) and to target
this effectively has contributed to managing the risk around information and
advice to affected citizens and has helped to mitigate the impact of the Housing
Benefit (HB) under-occupancy changes
o Work to ensure that introduction of HB under occupancy changes did not result
in large scale eviction and homelessness has included the development of an
Eviction Prevention Protocol and very close joint working with Nottingham City
Homes to ensure tenants are effectively engaged and supported to help them
deal with this change
o The introduction of the benefit cap has resulted in limited impact, due to the
small number of households affected and early work to manage these impact

Page 68

o Medium term actions and longer term systems change have also been
developed to enable those citizens who can work to supported into work and
those who are unable to work continue to be effectively supported. This is being
overseen by a Programme Board
Sanctions and the CTSS for 2014/15 may mean that despite the identified
mitigations and improvement, the level of risk could increase again.
2.5.8 xSR29 - Failure to establish an effective Public Health function impacting citizen
wellbeing and a failure to deliver the authority's statutory responsibilities as
originally scoped dealt with the transfer of the Public Health function. With the
successful conclusion of the transfer, attention shifted to consider ongoing delivery
risks with a specific focus on service integration. The Director of Public Health has
committed to updating the Directorate Risk Register for Q4 when further
consideration will be given to the requirement or otherwise for a continued Public
Health Strategic Risk. The Director for Public Health will deliver a presentation on
the outcome of this work to Audit Committee as part of the SRR Q4 Update. CLT
agreed to close SR29 - Failure to establish an effective Public Health function.
2.6

Future Audit Committee reviews
The provision to select strategic risks for review allows Audit Committee to direct
attention to areas of risk considered potentially significant to the Committee’s
operations and remit. The Committee is invited to select two strategic risks from
Appendix 2 for more detailed examination in the SRR Q4 2013/14 Update.
Selection might be based on the time elapsed since the risk was last reviewed,
changes in the risk’s threat level (or DoT) or relevance to current local or national
matters of interest or concern.

3.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR
THOSE DISCLOSING CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT INFORMATION

3.1

Quarter 3 2013/14 Strategic Risk Management Action Plans.

4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

4.1

SRR Q2 Update reported to Audit Committee 29 November 2013.

APPENDICIES
Appendix
1
2

Description
SR12a - Failure to provide the best educational outcome for children
and opportunities for young people to access further education and
skills training to contribute to the economic wellbeing of the City
(RMAP available for review by Audit Committee)
Nottingham City Council Strategic Risk Register - Report Summary

Page 69

APPENDIX 1

SR12a - Failure to ensure the best educational outcome for children & opportunities for young people
to access further education & skills training to contribute to the economic wellbeing of the City.

This risk is scoped around ensuring that the match and quality of educational outcomes meet the wider economic and community needs of the city.
Changes in Government policy regarding inspection of LA school improvement services, changes within the School Access and Improvement Service
and the increasing autonomy of schools (particularly academisation) are reflected in the constituent risks. This is a significant risk whose effective
management has wide reaching implications for other priorities and risks for the city including crime, health, employment and reputation.

Page 70
3

Opening (Oct 13)
Threat level
(LxI=??)
3

4

12

Previous (Oct 2013)
DoT
Threat level
Improving
(LxI=??)
Stable
Deteriorating
12
3
4

Tolerate

N. Lee, Acting Head of School Access &
Improvement
Date completed:
Jan 2014
Review date:
Mar 2014
A. Conquer, Head of Ed. Partnership
RISK SUMMARY
Current (Oct 2013)
Target (April )
DoT
Overall risk mitigation effectiveness
Threat level
Improving
Threat level
(Adequate, Yet to secure improvement, Inadequate)
Stable
(LxI=??)
(LxI=??)
Deteriorating
12
12
3
4
3
4
Yet to secure improvement

A. Michalska
Completed by:
Corporate Director Children & Families

Owner:

3

SR12a - Failure to ensure the best educational outcome for children & opportunities for young people to access further education & skills training
to contribute to the economic wellbeing of the City.
RISKS TO BE MANAGED
Risk
Ref.

R2

R3

Page 71

R4

R5

R7

R8

Risk Description (cause, risk & impact)

Date
Identified
identified
by

The diminishing influence of LA in the
changing educational landscape risks a loss of
focus on positive outcomes for children and
01/10/13 AC & NL
young people and thus alignment with local
employment opportunities and the economic
needs of the city.
Absence of a statutory requirement to offer
careers advice/guidance risks children not
01/10/13 AC & NL
having access to/receiving independent advice
to support improved career choices
Insufficient intervention capacity/flexibility, the
diminishing influence of the LA through
academisation increases the risk of schools
01/10/13 AC & NL
entering Ofsted category or hitting DFE
intervention triggers to the detriment of
outcomes for children and young people
Reaction to academisation by existing
Governors, diminution of the role of Governors
resulting from academisation contributes to a
difficulty in recruiting/retaining high quality
01/10/13 AC & NL
school governors to provide good leadership
and learning settings impacting
attainment/learning outcomes
Lack of capacity in existing schools and
continuing academisation risks additional
school places being determined by commercial
01/10/13 AC & NL
interests rather than demand with a shortfall or
over-supply of places and a two tier system of
education
The risks above collectively present a
reputational/credibility risk to the service but
01/10/13 AC & NL
also the council as a whole

Risk
owner

Proximity
(date
when
could
impact)

Latest
Opening
Threat Level
e.g. 2x4=8

Previous
Threat Level Threat Level
e.g. 2x4=8
e.g. 2x4=8

DoT
(

Improving
Stable
Deteriorating)

Risk
Target
Proposed mitigation
effectiveness
Mgt
Threat Level
Action (Adequate, Yet
e.g. 2x4=8
to secure
improvement,

Status
(Raised,
Open,
Closed)

AM

Now

4

4

16

L

I

4

4

16

4

4

16

Treat

Yet to secure
improvement

Open

NJ

Now

3

3

9

L

I

3

3

9

3

3

9

Treat

Yet to secure
improvement

Open

AM

Now

3

4

12

L

I

2

4

8

2

4

8

Treat

Yet to secure
improvement

Open

AM

Now

3

3

9

L

I

2

3

6

2

3

6

Treat

Adequate

Open

AM

Now

2

4

8

L

I

2

4

8

2

4

8

Tolerate

Adequate

Open

AM

Now

3

3

9

L

I

3

3

9

3

3

9

Tolerate

Adequate

Open

SR12a - Failure to ensure the best educational outcome for children & opportunities for young people
to access further education & skills training to contribute to the economic wellbeing of the City.
EXISTING MANAGEMENT ACTIONS

ADDITIONAL MANAGEMENT ACTIONS
Description of additional actions to put in
Person
place (mandatory where current risk mitigation
accountable

ALL

Date action
Review
due to be
date
effectiveness is "Inadequate")
completed
A high frequency of placement changes for children in care risks poor attainment particularly at secondary level with subsequent high levels of continuing support.
Risk
Ref.

Issue
Ref.

Description of actions already in
place to mitigate the identified risks

Person
accountable

Agree education policy document "Learning
NL/AC
Jan-14
Excellence" with partners (schools,
academies, parents, FE) to provide focal
point for Nottingham objectives,
cooperation and improvement
The diminishing influence of LA in the changing educational landscape risks a loss of focus on positive outcomes for children and young people and thus alignment with
local employment opportunities and the economic needs of the city.
1, 2, 4

Page 72

2
2

Ongoing support for school to school
partnerships
Build relationships with schools and
academies

AC
AC

2, 4

Growth Plan to galvanise business sector
and generate employment opportunities

CH

2

LA has a monitoring and influencing role in
terms of standards in particular secondary
education

NL

2

01/03/14
Work to build relationships with likely
potential providers/academies who are yet
to enter the local market place

AC

Ongoing

03/01/00

01/03/14

Articulate role and build standing with
schools, academies, communities

NL

Ongoing

01//07/14

Challenge Board established to develop
cross partner approach and support city
leadership on education

AM

Dec-13

01/12/14

EXISTING MANAGEMENT ACTIONS

ADDITIONAL MANAGEMENT ACTIONS
Description of additional actions to put in
Person
place (mandatory where current risk mitigation
accountable

ALL
Date action
Risk
Issue Description of actions already in
Person
Review
due to be
Ref.
Ref. place to mitigate the identified risks
accountable
date
effectiveness is "Inadequate")
completed
A high frequency
of placement
changes
for careers
children advice/guidance
in care risks poorrisks
attainment
secondary
level with
subsequent
high levels
of continuing
Absence
of a statutory
requirement
to offer
childrenparticularly
not havingataccess
to/receiving
independent
advice
to support
improvedsupport.
career
choices
3

Nottingham & Nottinghamshire Futures
contracted to provide independent careers
advice
Undertake active contract management
and performance management

NJ

Cross border skills panel to be developed
NJ
Jul-14
01/03/14
to complement employment needs of the
conurbation
3
NJ
Give consideration to undertaking
NJ
01/03/14
consumer review of careers
advice/guidance
Insufficient intervention capacity/flexibility, the diminishing influence of the LA through academisation increases the risk of schools entering Ofsted category or hitting
DFE intervention triggers to the detriment of outcomes for children and young people
4

Work with colleagues to review and revise
internal corporate processes which
adversely impact service performance

AC/NL

01/03/14

Page 73

4

Recruitment of additional intervention
NL
Apr-14
01/07/04
resources
4
Build relationship/credibility with DfE
NL
Ongoing
01/07/14
Performance Division to propose alternative
intervention to academisation for failing
schools
Reaction to academisation by existing Governors, diminution of the role of Governors resulting from academisation contributes to a difficulty in recruiting/retaining high
quality school governors to provide good leadership and learning settings impacting attainment/learning outcomes
5
5

5

Governor Service in place
Offer professional review of governance to
up skill Governors and raise the profile and
enhance the standing of the service

AC
AC

01/03/14
01/03/14

Develop Governor cohort approach
- active recruitment
- up skilling of existing Governors,
- retention of specific Governors opting out
of academies for complementary roles

NL/AC

Ongoing

01/03/14

EXISTING MANAGEMENT ACTIONS

ADDITIONAL MANAGEMENT ACTIONS
Description of additional actions to put in
Person
place (mandatory where current risk mitigation
accountable

ALL
Date action
Risk
Issue Description of actions already in
Person
Review
due to be
Ref.
Ref. place to mitigate the identified risks
accountable
date
effectiveness is "Inadequate")
completed
A
highoffrequency
placement
changes
for childrenacademisation
in care risks poor
at secondary
level withbysubsequent
levelsrather
of continuing
support.
Lack
capacity inofexisting
schools
and continuing
risksattainment
additionalparticularly
school places
being determined
commercialhigh
interests
than demand
with a
shortfall or over-supply of places and a two tier system of education
7

Dedicated team in place with relationships
with schools and academies

NL

Develop coherent strategy for provision of
school places - components / work streams

The risks above collectively present a reputational/credibility risk to the service but also the council as a whole
8
Communications plan in place to manage
AC
When we have secured shared vision for
incident prepared with Comms and
education in the City through the Charter Marketing
there is a need to develop a partnership
communication strategy/marketing plan.

NL

Jul-14

01/01/15

AC

Jul-14

01/07/15

Page 74

APPENDIX 2

Nottingham City Council Risk Register - Report Summary

SR6

Failure to safeguard vulnerable children

Failure to reduce levels of crime and anti-social
SR7a/b
behaviour (ASB)

SR8b

Page 75

Failure to implement and embed effective information
management structures, polices, procedures,
processes and controls to support the council’s
immediate and future regulatory, legal, and business
requirements (updated Q1 2013/14)

Failure to accurately predict and respond to financial
SR11a pressures supporting the development and delivery of
the medium term financial plan (updated Q1 2013/14)
Failure to provide the best educational outcome for
children and opportunities for young people to access
SR12a
further education and skills training to contribute to the
economic wellbeing of the City (under review)

SR30

SR26

Financial

H&S

Citizen
well-being

Reputation

Legal

Risk description

Corp Mit

Ref.

Highest Pri

SR criteria
Date
threat
level &
DoT

Threat level (seriousness) & DoT
2012/13
2013/14
DoT

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Target
Threat
Level

Date

March

Jun-13

Oct-13

Jan-14

Apr-14

Threat Level

15 (3x5)

15 (3x5) R

15 (3x5)

15 (3x5)

10 (2x5)

DoT

Improving
Mar-13
12 (3x4)

Improving
Jun-13
12 (3x4)

Stable

Date
Threat Level

Oct-13
12 (3x4)

Deteriorating
Jan-14
12 (3x4)

Apr-14
8 (2x4)

DoT

Improving

Improving

Stable

Stable

Jun-13

Oct-13

Jan-14

Apr-14

12 (3x4) C

12 (3x4)

12 (3x4)

9 (3x3)

Date
Threat Level

Updated
risk

DoT

N/A

Stable

Stable

Date
Threat Level

Jun-13
12 (3x4) C

Oct-13
12 (3x4)

Jan-14
12 (3x4)

Stable

Stable

Stable

DoT

Updated
risk

6 (3x2)

Date

Mar-13

Mar-13

Oct-13

Jan-14

Apr-15

Threat Level

12 (3x4) R

12 (3x4)

12 (3x4) C

12 (3x4) R

8 (2x4)

DoT

Deteriorating

Stable

Stable

Stable

Jun-13

Oct-13

Jan-14

Mar-14

12 (3x4) C

12 (3x4)

12 (3x4)

9 (3x3)

N/A

Stable

Stable

Date

Failure to create an organisational environment that
supports delivery of Council priorities (new risk added
Q1 2013/14)

Threat Level

Date

Mar-13

Jun-13

Oct-13

Jan-14

Apr-14

Failure to support Nottingham citizens and communities
in minimising the negative impact of welfare changes

Threat Level

16 (4x4) R

16 (4x4)

16 (4x4)

12 (3x4)

9 (3x3)

DoT

Stable

Stable

Stable

Improving

New
risk

DoT

Managing Accountability
Corporate
Lead
Director
Director or
(Risk
Senior
Owner)
Colleague
A. Michalska
CD - Children &
Families

H. Blackman
Director
Safeguarding

J. Kelly
CD-Comm

E. Orrock
Comm Safety
Exec.
Coordinator

C. Mills
Deputy Chief
Exec. / CD-Res

M. Gannon
Director IT

T. Kirkham
Strategic
Finance
Director
N. Lee Head of
School Access
A. Michalska
& Imp Acting
CD - Children &
A. Conquer
Families
Head of Ed
Partnerships
C. Mills
Deputy Chief
Exec. / CD-Res

I. Curryer
Chief Exec.

R. Henderson
Head of Service
Change &
Improvement

C. Mills
Deputy Chief
Exec. & CD-Res

L. Jones
Head of
Corporate
Policy

SR28

SR3

Failure to ensure a financially sustainable adult social
care system to respond to significant increases in
demand for care while protecting our most vulnerable
citizens
Failure to mitigate the impact of the economic climate
on Nottingham City and its citizens

Financial

H&S

Citizen
well-being

Reputation

Legal

Risk description

Corp Mit

Ref.

Highest Pri

SR criteria
Date
threat
level &
DoT

Threat level (seriousness) & DoT
2012/13
2013/14

Q3

Target
Threat
Level

DoT

Q4

Q1

Q2

Date

Mar-13

Jun-13

Oct-13

Dec-13

Mar-14

Threat Level

12 (4x3)

12 (4x3)

12 (4x3)

12 (4x3)

6 (2x3)

DoT

Stable

Stable

Stable

Improving

Date
Threat Level

Mar-13
9 (3x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

Jun-13
9 (3x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

Oct-13
9 (3x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

Jan-14
9 (3x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

Apr-12
9 (3x3)

DoT
Date

Mar-13

Jun-12

Oct-13

Jan-14

Mar-14

Threat Level

12 (3x4) C

12 (3x4)

12 (3x4)

9 (3x3)

9 (3x3)

DoT

N/A

Improving

Stable

Improving
AT TARGET

Date

Mar-13

Jun-13

Oct-13

Jan-14

Oct-12

SR2a

Threat Level

6 (2x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

6 (2x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

6 (2x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

6 (2x3)
Stable
AT TARGET

6 (2x3)

Page 76

Failure to embed a corporate approach to
commissioning, informed by citizen need, which drives
SR25a
delivery of improved services at significantly lower cost
(updated Q4 2012/13)

SR10

SR24

SR5a

Of the reputation of the City

DoT

Failure to maintain good standards of governance

Failure to ensure effective systems are in place to
manage health and safety risks

Failure to safeguard vulnerable adults

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL (DoT):
Improving (reducing) threat level

Date

Jan-13

Jun-13

Sep-13

Jan-14

Mar-13

Threat Level

9 (3x3)

6 (2x3)

6 (2x3)

6 (2x3)

6 (2x3)

DoT

Stable

Improving
AT TARGET

Stable
AT TARGET

Stable
AT TARGET

Date

Mar-13

Jun-13

Oct-13

Jan-14

Dec-13

Threat Level

9 (3x3)

6 (2x3)

6 (2x3)

6 (2x3)

6 (2x3)

DoT

Stable

Improving
AT TARGET

Stable
AT TARGET

Stable
AT TARGET

Date

Mar-13

Jun-13

Oct-13

Jan-13

Oct 2014

Threat Level

8 (2x4)

8 (2x4)

8 (2x4)

6 (2x3)

DoT

Stable

Improving

Improving

6 (2x3)
Improving
AT TARGET

Stable threat level

Deteriorating (increasing) threat level

Managing Accountability
Corporate
Lead
Director
Director or
(Risk
Senior
Owner)
Colleague
H. Jones A. Michalska
CD - Children & Director of Adult
Families
Assessment

D. Bishop
CD - Dev

N. Jenkins
Head of
Economic
Development

A. Michalska
CD - Children &
Families

C. Brudenell
Director of
Quality and
Commissioning

I. Curryer
Chief Exec.

C. Richmond
Dir Policy
Partnerships &
Comms

G. O'Connell
C. Mills
Director Legal &
Deputy Chief
Democratic
Exec. & CD-Res
Services
P. Millward
C. Mills
Head of Service
Deputy Chief
Emergency
Exec. & CD-Res
Planning
H. Jones Dir
A. Michalska Comm Inclusion
CD - Children & E. Yardley Dir
Families
Access &
Reablement

Agenda Item 8
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 28 February 2014
Title of paper:

A revised Performance Management Framework for
Nottingham City Council

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):

Wards affected: All
Carole Mills, Corporate Director for
Resources
Angela Probert, Director Human
Resources & Transformation
Chris Common, Organisational Planning & Performance Manager
0115 8763435
chris.common@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
Carole Mills, Corporate Director for Resources
0115 8763838
carole.mills@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Report author(s) and
contact details:
Other colleagues who
have provided input:

Richard Henderson, Head of Change and Improvement
0115 8763443
richard.henderson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
Chris Lowry, Corporate Business Planning Consultant
0115 8763434
chris.lowry@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Recommendation(s):
1

1.

That the Committee consider and approve the revised Performance Management
Framework for adoption

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
To gain Audit Committee’s approval of the adoption of a revised Performance
Management Framework (PMF) by the Council as part of its remit to ensure good and
improved governance of the Council’s services.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1.

The Executive and Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) are pursuing the Good to Great
ambitions for the City and establishing a strong performance culture which places
citizens at the heart of everything the Council does. This has provided an ideal
opportunity to refresh our long-standing performance framework to ensure that it is
best placed to enable achievement of these ambitions and priorities.

2.2.

CLT approved the adoption of the revised PMF on 21 January 2014.

2.3.

Key Changes
The new PMF:
• is simpler, up to date and reflects prevailing good practice

Page 77

•
•
•

aligns with the Council’s commissioning cycle (Analyse, Plan, Do, Review/Revise)
(Figure 1)
Sits within the context of Good to Great, Citizens at the Heart and the current
external environment (policy, economic, demographic and financial)
Reflects the availability and use of Covalent as the corporate business
management tool

Figure 1

2.4.

The revised PMF sets out the high level approach the Council will take to performance
management, ensuring that all are:
•
•
•
•
•

2.5.

Clear about what to achieve, by when and by whom
Focussing resources and action on the right outcomes
Aware of how things are going
Reporting on progress – to both internal and external audiences
Able to quickly access effective support.

The revised PMF:
•
•
•

sets out the principles of our performance culture and how this can be
sustained
applies to all levels of Council activity
defines the roles, responsibilities and reporting arrangements for all involved
Page 78

•

•

has a broad scope, which includes strategic business planning, risk
management, workforce planning, performance appraisal (which has also been
substantially refreshed) and performance monitoring and management at team,
service, departmental and organisational levels
has wider links to the Council’s Transformation Portfolio.

2.6.

The key to the success of the PMF as a driver for achievement and improvement is for
it to be embraced as an integral part of our day-to-day activity.

2.7.

The Organisational Planning & Performance team will work with colleagues across the
authority to embed and develop the PMF to ensure that it helps to deliver our
ambitions and the best outcomes for the City and its citizens.

2.8.

Next Steps
This is the short to medium term key actions for taking the PMF forward:
•
•
•
•

•
•
3.

Support for the adoption and roll out from CLT (approval confirmed 21 January
2014)
Formal approval at Audit Committee (February 2014)
Dedicated lunchtime learning events to introduce the PMF and the findings/next
steps from the Covalent Implementation project review
Work with Business Partners (HR, Finance & IT) and Change Consultants
within Change and Improvement as advocates of the PMF across the
organisation in their particular areas of work
Raising awareness through Nottingham Manager/Directors forums
In depth briefing sessions with departmental Executive Officers and
performance leads to explain the PMF and how to optimise its use.

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR THOSE
DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
Revised Performance Management Framework, January 2014 – attached.

4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT
None.

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80

Nottingham City Council
Performance Management Framework
Context
Introduction
Our performance management framework (PMF) seeks to drive improvement and achieve the best results for Nottingham and its citizens. It enables
a consistent, streamlined and joined-up approach to all performance activity throughout the organisation. The PMF also provides some of the
evidence and information needed to effectively commission and deliver services.

Page 81

The Executive Board and Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) are pursuing the Good to Great ambitions for the City and embedding a strong
performance culture which places citizens at the heart of everything the Council does. This presents the ideal time to refresh our long-standing
performance framework and ensure that it will help us to achieve our key priorities for the City.
This new PMF sets out the high level approach to performance management, ensuring that all are:
• clear about what to achieve, by when and by whom;
• focusing resources and action on the right outcomes;
• aware of how things are going – successes and where things need to improve;
• reporting on progress - to both internal and external audiences;
• equipped with key tools and skills to improve overall business management;
• able to quickly access effective support.
Each department, service and team will need to apply and supplement the framework in ways that best suit their context and needs. Joining things
up and working together as one-council alongside our external partners will help achievement of the Council’s and City’s ambitions.

Transparency and Challenge
Councils no longer have formal external assessment of overall performance. Alongside any existing publication of results and performance, a
transparent system of self regulation and accountability is important to objectively demonstrate how things are going. The City Council is using the
Local Government Association’s (LGA) ‘Taking the Lead’ approach for sector lead improvement and a corporate ‘peer challenge’ is being considered.
Elements of adult and children’s social care and education services are still externally assessed and inspected by the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) and Ofsted.

Page 1 of 12

Organisational Performance Management Approach
The Performance Management Cycle
The PMF’s four cyclical and continuous stages – ANALYSE - PLAN - DO – REVIEW / REVISE - reflect those used in our commissioning activity.
Figure 1

Page 82
Each of these four phases is explained on the following pages.

Page 2 of 12

ANALYSE – Understand, assess and analyse need
Understanding the needs of users, citizens and their environment is critically important. This is analysed in the context of:

Page 83

•

The Council Plan which is informed by: the majority political group’s manifesto, Central Government policies and public opinion;

•

Current legislation and any regulatory considerations;

•

Nottingham’s overarching community strategy - The Nottingham Plan;

•

Citizen demographics – including age profile, gender and ethnicity. The Nottingham Insight webpage provides more information including
datasets such as the Census and Indices of Deprivation;

•

Wider emerging social trends such as increased joblessness;

•

Customer satisfaction and feedback about how services are being provided along with views on what is important to be delivered. The
Council’s approach to working with/interacting with citizens and customers is set out in the Citizen First programme. Customer satisfaction
details appear on the Nottingham Insight webpage;

•

Past performance is also an important when considering how we are progressing, as it allows services to identify and analyse any patterns or
trends

•

Internal workforce composition - such as demographics, skills and talents, engagement etc. Information appears on the Council’s intranet.

An evaluation of the impact on the service(s) of change should be undertaken after implementation to determine return on investment, benefits and
learning. Services may have experienced several changes and analysing their impact (eg: drivers, investments and savings) is beneficial.

Page 3 of 12

PLAN - Setting the vision and long term ambitions
Figure 2 shows how the PMF elements link strategic plans to individual colleague objectives in a golden thread. At each level, SMART* performance
indicators (PIs) and key actions are used to measure and track delivery:

Majority Political
Group Manifesto

National
Policies

Public Opinion
(inc. ‘Citizen First’)

The Nottingham Plan
to 2020

Council Plan (4 year)
Our purpose, priorities and values

Page 84

Departmental Plans
(optional)

Directorate Business Plans (4 year)

Set out how each Department
will help deliver the Council
Plan priorities

Set out how each director will help deliver the Council Plan priorities.
Integrated with financial and workforce planning and risk management

Major Capital
Programmes

Service Level Plans
(optional)

e.g. NET^, Housing

Set out how each service will
help deliver the directorate and
Council Plan priorities

* SMART = Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Timed
^ NET = Nottingham Express Transit (‘Tram’)

Page 4 of 12

Individual Objectives
(Performance Appraisals)
Demonstrate how each person
contributes to the delivery of their
team/service/directorate/
department plans and ultimately
the council-wide objectives

The Council Plan
The Council’s current purpose, priorities and values are set out in the Council Plan 2012-15. This outlines key priorities and what will be done to meet
them. It also shows how the Council contributes to the strategic priorities set out for the City in The Nottingham Plan. It formally embraces the
leading political group’s manifesto into Council policy.
The Council Plan takes into account various environmental factors including the national economic picture, the City’s demographics and government
policies. It is also informed by citizens’ views through the Citizen First strategy, which drives good customer service and interaction.
The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out how resources will be aligned to deliver the Council Plan objectives and the annually updated
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) translates the objectives in the various levels of plan into the detailed budget.

Directorate Business Plans
Each service directorate produces a four year business plan to match the lifespan of the Council Plan. Each plan identifies a set of SMART key
actions, which contribute to the delivery of the Council Plan. Achievement is measured using PIs and a risk assessment/plan. These plans also
feature a budget, workforce plan and risk management plan to ensure that the objectives can be delivered in the current and future context.

Page 85

Major Capital Programmes
Where a major programme is managed separately due to its size and complexity e.g. Nottingham Express Transit (NET) development or Housing
Strategy, this can relate directly to objectives in the Council Plan and so warrants a separate management and reporting stream outside the
directorate business plans.

Optional Plans
Some departments choose to have a departmental plan setting out the high level themes, approach and “tone” for their work. Some services and
teams may choose to create more detailed operational level plans to help focus activity and increase the likelihood of achievement.

Personal Objectives
Each colleague has an annual performance appraisal meeting with their line manager at which personal objectives and milestones for the year ahead
are set. These show how each person contributes to their directorate plan (and therefore the Council Plan objectives). They may also show how
their work links to their service level plan.

Accountability - Everyone at the Council plays a part in the PMF. Table 1 overleaf shows how these responsibilities are distributed:

Page 5 of 12

Councillors
Senior Management
Colleagues

Page 86

Full Council
• Approve the overall priorities and budget for the Council.
Council Executive
• Make budget recommendations to Council and approve the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
• Oversight of Council Plan priorities and manifesto commitments (which are embraced within Council policy).
Audit Committee
• Oversight of corporate governance - internal control, risk management and financial reporting
• Approve and critically appraise application of the PMF.
Corporate Leadership Team (CLT)
• Strategic responsibility for achieving Council priorities
• Oversight of corporate performance, taking necessary action and focussing resources
• Deliver the MTFS and MTFP.
Corporate Directors
• Deliver departmental objectives
• Accountable for their department’s overall and operational performance
• Help deliver the Council’s strategic priorities
• Deliver within budget and strive to achieve better value for money/reduce net cost.
Directors/Heads of Service
• Deliver service objectives
• Accountable for their service’s operational performance
• Develop colleagues and teams to ensure they deliver their objectives and contribute to the Council’s strategic objectives
• Deliver services on time, to standard and within budget and identify and implement net cost reductions.
Organisational Planning and Performance (OPP) Team
• Champion and administer the PMF and Covalent performance management IT system
• Drive performance improvement through the development of innovative initiatives such as the use of Covalent
• Act as a corporate centre of excellence for performance management
• Support CLT on performance management.
Departmental Performance Leads
• Ensure corporate performance information is provided through Covalent and the system is optimised to report and manage performance in
each department.
Departmental CDB ‘Champions’
• Work collaboratively with OPP to ensure the PMF, Covalent and other key performance management processes and initiatives are understood
and adopted by managers in each department
• Work collaboratively with OPP to share best practice and embed a consistent performance management culture.
All Colleagues
• Achieve their personal objectives and contribute to those of their team/service/department
• Take responsibility for individual performance and development
• Understand how they contribute to the Council Plan objectives.

Page 6 of 12

DO - Deliver the objectives, implement the plans
The Council’s plans are live documents which set out what will be done in the period ahead. They are updated to reflect emerging issues such as
citizen or regulator feedback and any political changes at central or local level and ensure they remain focussed on delivering outcomes.

Colleague Competencies
The Council uses a set of nine competencies in a Competency Framework against which each colleague is assessed as part of their annual
performance appraisal. This is supported by the colleague performance management policy.
The Competency Framework outlines that managers ensure that the PMF is used effectively within their services and ensure that it links to their risk
and financial management activities. Most importantly, managers must demonstrate that they manage performance and base decisions on reliable
performance information and other insight.

REVIEW / REVISE – monitor, challenge, review and revise
Page 87

Covalent
Covalent is the Council’s system to collect, report and analyse performance across the whole organisation, which enables directorates to manage
their performance information and take action where required. Covalent is a business and performance management software tool used to provide
consistency and effectiveness in the approach to performance and business management at any required level. For example, it can be used to
provide up-to-date performance information in the various performance meetings and forums.

Departmental Performance Review
Each department’s leadership team convenes a dedicated monthly and/or quarterly meeting to consider their performance in connection with their
departmental and Council Plan priorities. Covalent-generated dashboards and reports should be used wherever possible to ensure information being
considered is consistent with all areas of the Council. The functionality of the system enhances the discussions and considerations.

Corporate Performance Review
Each member of CLT is able to consider performance in ‘real time’ through a tailored Covalent-generated dashboard or report specifically for their
department which is particularly focussed on the Council Plan and its agreed set of Council priorities. This supplements the performance 121
meetings held with each of their directors and associated portfolio holder(s), which occurs at least quarterly and ahead of the CLT performance
discussion.
The OPP Team support the quarterly Corporate Delivery Board (CDB). This comprises CLT and the Council Leader. CDB focuses on reviewing
and challenging overall corporate performance, aligning resources to improve areas of greatest need and checking that capital and transformation
programmes are achieving change and driving improvement in the right way.

Page 7 of 12

Councillors and Performance
Each Executive councillor is able to consider performance in ‘real time’ of their particular portfolio/area of interest through a tailored Covalent
generated dashboard or report.
A dedicated Council Executive Panel (Executive + CLT) meets quarterly to solely discuss Council Plan performance within 2 – 3 weeks of CDB. CLT
are therefore able to bring issues directly to the Executive’s attention.

Communicating Performance
The Council is committed to transparency and citizens are able to access up-to-date performance information on Nottingham Insight and the Open
Data Website. Information is also included in the citizens’ newsletter; The Nottingham Arrow - published four times a year. A more comprehensive
annual report on overall performance is published each summer and discussed at a meeting of the full Council.
Performance headlines and the achievement of any important milestones are routinely reported through the official Twitter account and Facebook
page.

Page 88

Each quarter, important performance issues are published in the internal newsletter - Impact - to raise colleagues’ awareness. Covalent-generated
reports are also posted on the intranet.
Table 2 shows the sequence of collation and consideration of performance following the end of each quarter:
1

WEEKS AFTER QUARTER END
Previous quarter performance info collated/collected on Covalent by services
Departmental Leadership Teams (DLT) performance review meetings
Corporate Directors performance discussions with Portfolio Holders
Corporate Delivery Board (CDB)
Council Executive Panel/Board
Performance information published (intranet/plasmas/internet/Impact)

Page 8 of 12

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Performance Review and Challenge
Performance information needs to be actively used to achieve outcomes and drive improvement. The OPP team provide corporate support and
objective challenge to ensure that the Council achieves the best it can for the City at every level.
Challenge and review occurs at all levels in the organisation and includes the review of past performance, learning lessons, benchmarking and
looking ahead to what needs to be done next. Figure 3 illustrates the regular sequence of review and challenge that takes place.

Figure 3: Review and Challenge Sequence

Page 89

Colleagues
Performance Appraisals
(PA) with manager to
review progress against
objectives
Formal PA review (6
months and year end)
supplemented by 121s
in between

Service Teams,
Sections, Directors
Regular meetings to
review progress
against Strategic
Business and
Operational Plans

Departments
DLTs meet at least
quarterly to review
performance
progress against
departmental and
Council Plan
priorities

Organisational Planning
and Performance Team
Challenge and support
departments to make
continual performance
improvement through
adoption of best practice
performance management
and the PMF.

Page 9 of 12

Corporate Directors
CDB reviews Council
Plan performance
quarterly
Corporate Directors and
portfolio holders meet
regularly to discuss
progress

Councillors
Executive Panel meets
to consider performance
against key objectives
each quarter
Portfolio Holders meet
Corporate Directors
monthly/quarterly to
discuss performance

Other Forms of Challenge
The other forms of review that focus on particular service areas at certain times are shown in Table 3:
WHAT

DETAILS

Consultations and
surveys

There is a wealth of detailed feedback from specific surveys and consultation exercises available. Information is gleaned from our
annual citizens’ survey, public debates and local councillor surgeries; much of this is available from the Nottingham Insight web site.

Complaints,
Compliments and
Comments

The public are encouraged to feedback to the Council on the services we provide through the Have Your Say facility. Each directorate
is provided with a monthly update of any comments, complaints or compliments to inform their decision making.

Statutory Inspections

The central inspection regime is much reduced but some statutory inspections remain:
• Adult and Children’s Social Care - Care Quality Commission
• Education - Ofsted
• Youth offending - Her Majesty’s Inspection of Probation
• Financial probity, value for money and governance - external auditors (currently KPMG, as at December 2013)

Sector Led
Improvement

LGA Peer Challenge

Page 90

Performance Benchmarking
Comparing the City Council with other providers and agencies helps it to understand the wider context, provides potential to learn from others and to
achieve more. There are several benchmarking tools and services used to compare performance and costs such as those provided by organisations
such as the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Association (CIPFA), the Society of Information Technology Managers (SOCITM) and the
Department of Education’s Local Area Initiative Tool (LAIT).
To support councils in comparative and benchmarking exercises, CIPFA’s Nearest Neighbours Model adopts a scientific approach to measuring the
similarity between authorities. Services are recommended to use the model to select benchmarking comparators. In September 2011 (latest figures),
the top 10 authorities closest to Nottingham City Council according to the model were (in descending order of similarity):
1. Newcastle-upon-Tyne 2. Salford 3. Liverpool 4. Gateshead 5. Manchester 6. Norwich 7. Sheffield 8. Lincoln 9. Leicester 10. Wolverhampton

Revision
Plans need to be continually reviewed and potentially revised as communities change, government policies evolve and new needs and priorities
emerge as public expectations and requirements constantly evolve.
The Council Plan is annually reviewed and refreshed to focus action on its delivery. Necessary changes are fed into all level of plans. Any
potential amendments to plans are reported to and discussed by councillors at the start of the year in order for the changes to be agreed and
implemented. Directorate Business Plans PIs, actions and risks within each directorate’s business plans are also reviewed annually.

Page 10 of 12

PMF Review
The Audit Committee holds overall responsibility for the PMF. This demonstrates the Council’s commitment to sound and effective corporate
governance and ensures a high profile for internal control, risk management and financial reporting. The PMF is annually reviewed by the OPP to
ensure it remains fit for purpose. This review takes account of the current internal and external environment and looks ahead to future changes.

Risk Management
Risk management is a complementary activity to performance management which help colleagues to deliver all kinds of objectives. Risk
management helps anticipate uncertain future events; risks - so that they can be avoided or minimised and opportunities – so that they can be
optimised. Actions are then agreed to manage the likelihood and/or the impact of the risk occurring. Performance management helps to identify risks,
highlights when risks are deteriorating and provides mechanisms to drive effective risk management activity. For further details - risk management

Transformation

Page 91

The Council works hard to shape outcomes that are focused on meeting the needs of its citizens through the commissioning and provision of high
quality, value for money services that are sustainable and fit for purpose now and into the future. To support this, there is a Transformation Portfolio of
dedicated programmes and projects of change that are shaped by the 2020 vision for Nottingham in the Nottingham Plan, the Good to Great agenda
and Placing Citizens at the Heart of what we do.
It is expected that these programmes will also help to secure significant cost reductions and mitigate future cost increases particularly through the ‘big
ticket’ programmes, which sit within the Transformation Portfolio.

Other Frameworks, Strategies and Policies
The PMF links to and supported by a number of other frameworks, strategies and policies that apply across the Council, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Colleague Performance Management Policy
Competency Framework
Commissioning Framework
Corporate Governance framework
Financial regulations
Medium term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
People Management Handbook
Performance Appraisals
Risk Management Strategy
Workforce Planning Strategy

Page 11 of 12

Further Information and Support
These are key contacts for performance management across the Council (as at December 2013).

Page 92

Children and Families Department

Sophie Russell
Andy Shone

63432
64843

Communities Department

Tina Ormsby
Steve Chartres

63425
63698

Development Department

Rachel Mottram
Debbie Mellors

64295
63953

Resources Department / Chief Executive’s Group

Evonne Rogers
Frank Robinson

63747
63757

Organisational Planning and Performance

Chris Common
General enquiries

63435

Corporate Director with overall corporate responsibility for Performance Carole Mills

Councillor Portfolio Holder Lead for Performance

Page 12 of 12

63838

Cllr Graham Chapman 63783

Agenda Item 9

AUDIT COMMITTEE – 28 FEBRUARY 2014

Title of paper:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2014/15 STRATEGY

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):
Report author(s) and
contact details:

Carole Mills, Deputy Chief Executive Wards affected: All
& Corporate Director for Resources
Tony Kirkham, Director of Strategic Finance
0115 8764157
E-mail: tony.kirkham@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
Pete Guest, Treasury Management Officer
Tel: 0115 8764163
E-mail: pete.guest@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Other colleagues who
have provided input:

Recommendation(s):
1
Audit Committee are asked to consider and comment on the proposed 2014/15
Treasury Management and Investment Strategies, attached as Annex 1, prior to its
consideration by City Council on 3 March 2014.
1.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury
Management Code of Practice and Prudential Code are both adopted by the Council.
There is a requirement for authorities to nominate a body within the organisation to be
responsible for scrutiny of treasury management activity. It is considered that the City
Council’s Audit Committee is the most appropriate body for this function.
In undertaking this function, the Audit Committee holds the responsibility to provide
effective scrutiny of treasury management policies and practices, and to deliver this in
advance of the associated annual strategies being formally approved by Council in
March. This provides an opportunity for detailed scrutiny and analysis of the Treasury
Management and Investment Strategy by those charged with governance.

2.

BACKGROUND
Treasury management is the management of an organisation’s borrowings and
investments, the effective management of the associated risks and the pursuit of
optimum performance or return consistent with those risks.
The treasury management function is governed by provisions set out under Part 1 of
the Local Government Act 2003, whereby the City Council must have regard to the
CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Code of Practice.
The City Council retains external advisors to provide additional input on treasury
management matters. The service provided includes economic and interest rate
forecasting, advice on strategy, portfolio structure, debt restructuring, investment
policy, creditworthiness, credit ratings and other counterparty criteria and technical
assistance on other related matters, as required.

Page 93

1

3.

PROPOSED TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2014/15
(ANNEX 1)
This document sets the strategic context, within the Council’s planning cycle, for how
treasury management activity will take place in the forthcoming year. Within this
context, the objectives of the strategy are:
•
•

•

To achieve the lowest net interest rate costs on the City Council’s external debt,
whilst recognising the risk management implications
To protect the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) from fluctuations in
interest rates and to prevent the need for excessive borrowing in future years,
when rates may be unfavourable
To maintain the security and liquidity of external investments, and within those
parameters, to seek to maximise the return on such investments.

The main elements of the proposed strategy for 2014/15 are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
4.

Borrowing requirement and strategy (Annex 1, Section 3)
Debt restructuring (Annex 1, Section 4)
Debt repayment (Minimum Revenue Provision statement (Annex 1, Section 5)
Housing Revenue Account strategy (Annex 1, Section 6)
Investment strategy (Annex 1, Section 7)
Prudential indicators (Annex 1, Appendix A)
Risk Management Action Plan (Annex 1, Appendix B)

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR THOSE
DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
None

5.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT
None

Page 94

2

ANNEX 1

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15

CONTENTS
SECTION
1 Context
2 Strategic Principles
3 Overall Borrowing Requirement and Strategy
4 Debt Restructuring
5 Minimum Revenue Provision Statement
6 Housing Revenue Account Treasury Management Strategy
7 Investment Strategy
8 Liquidity Management
9 Reporting Process
10 Training
11 Management of Risk

PAGE
2
4
5
6
6
7
8
12
12
13
13

TABLES
TABLE
1 Projected Movements in Interest Rates 2013 - 2016
2 Strategic Principles Link to Prudential Indicators
3 Total Borrowing Requirement 2014/15
4 Eligible Counterparties for Investment 2014/15

PAGE
3
4
5
11

APPENDICES
ITEM
A – Schedule of Prudential Indicators, 2013/14 to 2016/17
B – City Council Treasury Management Risk Management Action Plan
C – Glossary of Treasury Management Technical Terms

PAGE
14
17
23

Executive Board 25 February 2014
Audit Committee 28 February 2014
City Council 3 March 2014

Page 95

ANNEX 1 PAGE 1

TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2014/15
1. Context
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
The MTFS sets out the arrangements for the planning and management of the Council’s finances.
Strategic Principle G sets out the overall context for the Council’s treasury management activities, as
follows:
G1

G2

G3

All borrowing and debt management activity will be carried out in accordance with
the annually approved Treasury Management Strategy and the Manual of Treasury
Management Practices and Procedures, and within approved Prudential Indicators,
having the highest regard for prudence, affordability and sustainability in the longer
term.
The management of the treasury investment portfolio will be in accordance with the
approved investment strategy, with all investments complying with counterparty
limits and restrictions.
Appropriate use of prudential borrowing to fund capital investment will be made
within prudential indicators and subject to medium term affordability.

The Debt Portfolio
The Council’s debt portfolio comprises borrowing raised to finance capital expenditure not met from
other sources over the years. Its management is a key element of the Treasury Management Strategy.
At 31 March 2014 the total value of the portfolio will be c £709m (excluding Private Finance Initiative
notional ‘debt’), borrowed at an average interest rate of 3.69%. This figure includes £100m raised
from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) in 2012/13 to finance a required capital contribution for
the Nottingham Express Transit (NET) Phase 2 scheme. This borrowing was raised in advance of
need, to take advantage of low interest rates and the cash is expected be expended in early 2015.
In 2014/15 total debt is forecast to increase to c £754m (again, excluding PFI-related debt), with the
average interest rate forecasted to rise to 3.71%.
The Investment Portfolio
An investment portfolio is also maintained to ensure that the Council’s surplus cash (working capital,
plus cash-backed reserves and provisions and any borrowing raised in advance of need) earns interest
whilst being held. The average value of investments during 2013/14 was circa £201m (excluding
monies held by the Council as the ‘accountable body’ for other organisations and the remaining
deposits in Icelandic banks). During 2014/15 an average balance of circa £188m is forecast.
The average return on investments during 2013/14 is expected to be circa 0.67% and, with short-term
interest rates expected to remain at their current levels throughout 2014, a similar return is expected in
2014/15. Some improvement in yield may be seen towards the end of the financial year, if there is an
expectation of increases in the base interest rate by the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC).
Market Conditions
The Treasury Management Strategy seeks to protect the Council from market related risks by
proactively monitoring key factors such as interest rates and economic opinions, both nationally and
globally. The adopted strategy will continue to be regularly reappraised and, if necessary, realigned to
reflect market conditions and changes to interest rate forecasts.
Economic Background
The MPC has previously indicated that it would not increase the base interest rate from its current
level of 0.50% until the unemployment rate fell below 7.0%. Although the January 2014 figure for
Page 96
ANNEX 1 PAGE 2

unemployment was recorded at 7.1%, the MPC were quick to confirm that a 7.0% rate would not be
an automatic trigger point and that the base interest rate was likely to remain at 0.50% until 2016, in
order to ensure that the recovery in the UK economy remained established and sustainable. Current
inflation figures are at the target level provided to the MPC (2.0%) and there is little indication that
these will rise significantly in 2014, to trigger an early increase in the base interest rate.
Current growth data suggests that the strong figures in 2013 (+1.9%) may not be maintained through
2014. The consumer debt-funded element of the growth remains predominant, with businesses still
reluctant or unable to obtain credit to fund significant expansion, despite Government initiatives.
Outlook for interest rates
The Bank of England base rate has remained at its all-time low of 0.50% since March 2009. The
current forecast is for this rate to be unchanged until quarter 2 of 2016.
Table 1 shows interest rates at 31 December 2013, together with projections to the end of March
2016, based on latest estimates provided by the Council’s advisors. Short-term money rate forecasts
are used to inform decisions on the investment of surplus monies. Interest rates for long-term
borrowing are directly linked to the Gilt rates for the appropriate period.

TABLE 1: PROJECTED MOVEMENTS IN INTEREST RATES 2013 - 2016
SHORT TERM MONEY RATES LONG TERM GILT RATES
END
BASE
YEAR
3
6
12
5
20
50
PERIOD RATE
MONTHS MONTHS MONTHS YEARS YEARS YEARS
Dec
0.50
0.45
0.63
0.81
1.60
3.45
3.60
2013
Mar
0.50
0.45
0.65
0.90
1.70
3.35
3.45
2014
Jun
0.50
0.45
0.65
0.95
1.75
3.40
3.50
Sep
0.50
0.50
0.70
0.95
1.85
3.45
3.55
Dec
0.50
0.55
0.75
0.95
1.95
3.55
3.60
Mar
0.50
0.65
0.80
1.00
2.00
3.60
3.65
2015
Jun
0.50
0.70
0.85
1.05
2.00
3.60
3.70
Sep
0.50
0.75
0.90
1.10
2.05
3.65
3.75
Dec
0.50
0.80
0.95
1.20
2.10
3.70
3.80
Mar
0.50
0.90
1.00
1.30
2.20
3.75
3.85
2016
Interest rate forecasts are usually prepared with an ‘upside’ and a ‘downside’ risk, because they may
move by more or less than forecast. The current predominant risk is that rates may rise more quickly
than forecast, if inflationary pressures need to be addressed.
Credit Outlook
The credit risk of further banking failures has diminished, both in the UK and elsewhere. However,
this improvement has been accompanied by a sea-change in Government attitudes towards financial
institutions. Regulations are proposed in the UK, Europe and the USA to avoid the need for future
state bail-outs of failing banks, by ensuring that shareholders, bond holders and unsecured creditors
participate in any future recovery processes. This has already been evidenced in the UK with the Cooperative Bank’s recent recapitalisation, which required many existing holders of bank debt to accept
losses (‘haircuts’) to enable the bank to survive.
This new ‘bail-in’ approach, when fully incorporated, will have significance for future investment in
financial institutions by local authorities, who would have to share in the ‘haircut’ process, in the event
of the failure of the counterparty. As a consequence, diversification between creditworthy
counterparties and the use of alternative investment products will assume a greater importance, to
mitigate this bail-in risk.
Page 97

ANNEX 1 PAGE 3

2. Strategic Principles
The Council’s treasury management activities will be undertaken with the following strategic aims and
objectives:
1. To achieve the minimum interest rate cost on external debt, whilst recognising the risk
management implications;
2. To protect the capital value of external cash investments and ensure the liquidity of those
investments;
3. To provide an income stream from investments and maximise this stream, within the stated
parameters of security and liquidity;
4. To apply mitigation to the risks associated with treasury management activity;
5. To seek to follow best practice at all times.
The actual outcomes against these strategic principles can be assessed by the use of prudential
indicators (PIs) and associated commentary. Table 2 lists which of the PIs set out in Appendix A
relate to each of the principles.
TABLE 2: STRATEGIC PRINCIPLES LINK TO PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
PRINCIPLE PIs
1
2i, 2iii, 2iv, 2v, 3i, 3ii, 3iii, 3v,
2
3iv, 3v, 3vi
3
3iv, 3v
4
3v
5
3v
Within these principles, specific strategies will be adopted in 2014/15 in respect of:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Borrowing
Debt rescheduling
Provision for repayment of debt
Management of the HRA debt portfolio
Investments
Liquidity management
Reporting
Training, and
Management of risk.

These strategies are addressed in the following paragraphs.

3. Overall Borrowing Requirement and Strategy
The Council undertakes borrowing to:
•
•

Finance capital expenditure not met from other sources (e.g. grants, capital receipts etc.)
Replace maturing debt (net of minimum revenue provision)
Page 98
ANNEX 1 PAGE 4

•

Finance cash flow in the short-term.

The primary risks associated with the management of a debt portfolio are the uncertain future
fluctuations in interest rates and an uneven loan maturity profile, requiring large amounts of debt to be
replaced in any single period. To mitigate this risk, the debt portfolio is managed with the aim of
reducing the annual revenue cost of borrowing and evenly spreading the debt maturity profile. Table
3 shows the estimated total borrowing requirement for 2014/15, reflecting the current approved capital
programme:
TABLE
2014/15

3:

TOTAL

BORROWING

REQUIREMENT
£m
13.8

Debt maturing during the year
Unsupported borrowing 2014/15:
HRA

-

General Fund
Less: revenue provision for repayment:

143.4

HRA
General Fund
TOTAL

- 1.0
-31.6
124.6*

*NOTE: £100m advance borrowing already raised, December 2012
The Council can raise borrowing from a variety of sources:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)
UK local authorities
Money markets
Commercial banks and other institutions
UK pension funds
Capital markets (stock issues, bills etc)
Structured finance
Local authority bond issues.

The Council has previously raised most of its debt from the Government’s PWLB, which continues to
be one of the cheapest and most flexible sources of longer-term borrowing. However, alternative
sources of debt continue to be investigated. The type, period, and timing of new borrowing will be
determined by the Chief Finance Officer (CFO), under delegated authority, taking into account the
following factors:
•
•
•
•

Expected movements in interest rates
The maturity profile of existing debt
The impact on the medium term financial strategy
Prudential Indicators and limits.

With an average return on external investments of less than 1%, and the cost of long-term borrowing
in excess of 4%, the Council has, in recent years, adopted a strategy of using surplus cash to meet
borrowing requirements where possible, rather than investing it externally. This ‘internal borrowing’
Page 99

ANNEX 1 PAGE 5

approach is expected to continue in 2014/15, although it is likely that some longer-term external debt
will be required, to ensure a minimum cash-backed investment balance.
From 1 April 2013, the Localism Act gave councils additional legal powers under a General Power of
Competence. Those powers include, in theory, the opportunity to use financial instruments such as
derivatives, which enable the management of risks associated with future movements in interest rates.
However, the General Power of Competence does not provide explicit approval for such instruments
and requires a test case, through legal proceedings, for such approval to be confirmed. Consequently,
the authority does not intend to use standalone derivatives in the forthcoming financial year. Should
the legal position change, City Council approval would be required to effect the necessary change in
strategy and to develop an appropriate risk management framework.
The Council has a limited exposure to ‘embedded derivatives’, through its holding of debt raised from
commercial banks, with periodic repayment options available to the lenders. However, the total
exposure to this market debt at 1 April 2014 is £49m, of which £34m is potentially subject to demands
for early repayment in 2014/15. This sum represents only 4.5% of total debt and the risks associated
with any demands for early repayment are managed within the overall treasury risk management
strategy.

4. Debt Restructuring
Opportunities for debt restructuring, which involves the premature replacement of existing debt with
new loans for different periods and at different rates, will be monitored and appropriate action taken
by the CFO under delegated authority, taking into account the following factors:
•
•
•
•

The debt maturity profile
Ongoing revenue savings
The impact of premiums and discounts
The impact on Prudential Indicators.

Existing PWLB variable rate debt and market loans with lender repayment options will be monitored
against prevailing interest rates. Where beneficial to do so, restructuring into fixed-rate products may
be undertaken, to reduce the risk of future interest rate movements.
The current wide margin between borrowing and repayment interest rates for fixed-rate PWLB debt
means that there would be a large financial penalty for such debt repayment, making rescheduling of
this debt unlikely in the short-term.

5. 2014/15 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement
Under the Local Authorities (Capital Finance & Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2008 (S.I. 2008/414), councils must produce an annual statement on their policy for making a
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for the repayment of outstanding debt. For 2014/15, the Council
will adopt the following policies in determining its MRP:
•

•
•

For all General Fund capital expenditure financed through borrowing prior to 31 March 2008,
the regulatory method (designated by the Regulations as Option 1) will be adopted – MRP will
be 4% of the opening capital financing requirement (CFR)
For General Fund capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008, and financed by supported
borrowing, the regulatory method will also be adopted (Option 1)
For all existing HRA supported borrowing, there is no current requirement to make an annual
MRP and this approach will be continued
Page 100

ANNEX 1 PAGE 6

•

•

For all capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008, and financed by unsupported borrowing
(both General Fund and HRA), the authority will adopt the asset life method (Option 3). The
MRP will be based on the capital expenditure divided by a determined asset life, either through
an annuity loan or via equal annual repayments of principal
The MRP in respect of Private Finance Initiative schemes and finance leases, brought onto the
Council’s balance sheet under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) will match
the annual principal repayment for the associated deferred liability. The impact on the
Council’s revenue account is therefore neutral.

6. Housing Revenue Account Treasury Management Strategy
Background
From 1 April 2012, the Council’s HRA became self-sufficient, with the adoption of a 30-year business
plan enabling the future maintenance and development of its housing stock to be financed from rent
income, but with no further central Government subsidy. To achieve this position, the Government
repaid £66m of outstanding HRA debt in March 2012. As a consequence, the HRA Capital Financing
Requirement (i.e.: the overall need to borrow to finance capital assets) was reduced to £284.3m at 1
April 2012. A separate debt portfolio was created for the HRA at that date, with an appropriate
proportion of the Council’s existing PWLB and market loan debt being allocated to this new portfolio.
Regulation requires that councils with an HRA should adopt specific strategies for the management of
related debt and investments.
Proposals for 2014/15
The following policies are proposed for 2014/15:
•
•

•

•

•

The HRA will continue to meet the annual interest costs of its original external debt portfolio
Any new external long-term borrowing raised by the Council will be allocated between the
General Fund and the HRA as required and will take account of the specific needs of those
separate organisations in terms of loan type, amount, timing and period
The HRA will continue its policy of making no Minimum Revenue Provision in its revenue
account for debt repayment, other than for specific existing and future prudential borrowing
(see section 5)
Any temporary internal borrowing from the General Fund by the HRA, arising as a result of
existing debt maturing and not being replaced, will be re-charged to the HRA revenue account
at an interest rate equivalent to the Council’s average cost for temporary external debt
Where considered appropriate to the HRA’s business plan, such temporary borrowing from the
General Fund may be fixed, both in period and interest rate, subject to the agreement of both
parties

• Net cash surpluses held by the HRA (working capital plus reserves etc) will be calculated on a
daily basis, with interest credited to the HRA revenue account. That interest rate will be based
on the average 3-month Government Treasury Bill yield, which reflects the risk-free nature of
the investment return.

7. Investment Strategy 2014/15
Investment Policy
All external investments will be made in accordance with the Council’s adopted investment policy and
prevailing legislation and regulation. In line with the CIPFA Code of Practice and DCLG guidance,
the Council’s general policy objective is to invest its surplus funds prudently. The investment
priorities are:
•

Security of the invested capital

Page 101

ANNEX 1 PAGE 7

•
•

Liquidity of the invested capital
And, commensurate with security and liquidity, an optimum return on investments.

Introduction
The key change to the Council’s investment strategy in 2014/15 is in respect of the proposed
Regulations to be introduced by the Government, providing for a ‘bail-in’ by any failing financial
institution, requiring holders of debt, including fixed deposits, to bear the initial costs of any losses see Section 1, Credit Outlook (Annex 1, pages 3 - 4).
To mitigate against this new risk, the Council will seek to further reduce the sums invested externally,
through the continued application of surplus monies to meet internal borrowing - see Section 3
(Annex 1, pages 5 - 6). In addition, the following changes to the Council’s investment strategy are
proposed:
•
•
•
•

The inclusion of alternative investment products within its approved counterparty list such as
bank ‘covered bonds’, which would be protected from any future ‘bail-in’ proposals
Further diversification of investments, through the adoption of lower cash limits for individual
institutions
The application of shorter investment duration to institutions with lower credit ratings
An extension of the maximum duration for investments with other UK local authorities to 5
years.

Specific Investment Criteria
The selection of counterparties eligible for investment in 2014/15 has been based on advice received
from our advisors and has taken into account all appropriate credit ratings for those institutions (using
the lowest available rating supplied by the three main agencies). In addition to the use of counterparty
credit rating information, a range of other factors have been taken into account:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Other sovereign support mechanisms
Country credit ratings
Credit Default Swap rates (where quoted)
Share prices (where quoted)
Economic fundamentals, corporate developments etc
Press articles and reports
Market sentiment and momentum
Any other information pertinent to the security of the investment.

Investment counterparties
All investments are required to be categorised as ‘Specified’ or Non-Specified’, based upon criteria
within the DCLG guidance. To qualify as a Specified Investment, the investment has to be:
•
•
•
•

In sterling only
For a maximum period of 364 days
With a counterparty of a high credit quality, as determined by the Council
Not defined as capital expenditure under section 25(1) (d) in SI 2003 No 3146.

By definition, any investments not meeting the above requirements are deemed to be Non-Specified
investments. The Council is required to have particular regard to the security of Non-Specified
investments and to impose a ceiling on the proportion of its investment portfolio that can be held
within this category.
Page 102

ANNEX 1 PAGE 8

The proposed investment instruments identified for use in 2014/15 have been selected based on the
criteria detailed above:
a) Specified investments (high credit quality, < 365 days duration)
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

UK banks - call accounts, term deposits, Certificates of Deposit (CDs) and covered bonds –
with the retention of the existing requirement for a minimum individual credit rating of A- (or
equivalent)
Overseas banks – as UK banks, with an additional requirement for a minimum sovereign credit
rating of AA+ (or equivalent) for all non-UK institutions
Local authority deposits
Supranational bonds (the debt of international organisations such as the European Investment
Bank, the World Bank etc.)
UK Government Debt Management Account Deposit facility (DMADF) deposits, Treasury
Bills and UK Gilts
Money Market Funds (instant access) - Variable Net Asset Value (VNAV) or Constant Net
Asset Value (CNAV) Funds
Other Pooled Funds - VNAV notice Funds, with 1-5 day access.

b) Non-specified investments (any investment of lower credit quality or > 364 days)
•
•
•
•

UK and overseas banks – term deposits with a maximum period of 2 years
Local authority deposits – with a maximum period of 5 years
Negotiable instruments (CDs, covered bonds, Supranational Bonds, Gilts etc, with a secondary
resale market) – with a maximum maturity limit of 5 years
Housing Associations (registered providers with a strong regulatory framework, low debt:
revenue ratios, a high proportion of income from Government subsidies and a good likelihood
of Government support) – with a maximum maturity limit of 2 years.

Approved investment counterparty list
A proposed approved counterparty list, based on the above specifications, has been drawn up in liaison
with the Council’s external advisors, and details are provided in Table 4 (Annex 1, Page 11). Regular
monitoring and evaluation of credit ratings and other criteria will be maintained, and appropriate
action taken, based on this combined evaluation. Actions may include; reducing the period for new
investments below the maximum sum or period (but not above the adopted limits); suspending
counterparties from the approved list for further investment; or requesting repayment of deposits,
where terms allow.
Maximum limits on periods of investment and maximum sums to be deposited have been applied to
individual institutions, based on the evaluation of the adopted criteria and strengthened through
reference to the size of the investment portfolio, banking group structures and country limits. In
particular:
•

•
•

Group limits – where more than one bank on the counterparty list is included within a banking
group (e.g. Bank of Scotland and Lloyds TSB Bank), the individual limits will also apply to the
group as a whole
The Council’s bank – to accommodate short-term cash management, an unlimited maximum
sum for up to 5 days is provided for the Council’s own bank
Country limits – other than for UK institutions, a total investment limit will apply to all
counterparties in a particular country. No more than 15% of the total investment portfolio, at
the time of the deposit, will be placed with any one country
Page 103
ANNEX 1 PAGE 9

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Overall country limit – in addition, no more than 25% of the investment portfolio, at the time
of the deposit, will be placed with non-UK banks in total
Period limits (term deposits) – the maximum approved duration for bank term deposits without
a secondary market will be 2 years
Period limits (negotiable instruments) – the maximum approved duration for negotiable
instruments such as covered bonds, CDs, Government Gilts and Supranational Bonds which
have a secondary market (i.e. can be sold before maturity) will be 5 years
UK local authorities – an individual limit of £20m per authority and a maximum period of 5
years will apply
UK Government DMADF* – no limit to the maximum sum or period
UK Government Treasury Bills* - no limit to the maximum sum or period
Government Gilts (bonds issued by the UK Government) – a maximum sum of £20m and a
maximum period of five years
CNAV instant access MMFs (individual) – an individual limit of £10m per Fund, with a
further over-riding limit of 0.50% of the net asset value of the Fund
VNAV instant access MMFs (individual) – an individual limit of £10m per Fund, with a
further over-riding limit of 0.50% of the net asset value of the Fund
Short-term Pooled Funds (individual) - an individual limit of £5m per Fund, with a further
over-riding limit of 0.50% of the net asset value of the Fund
All MMF and other Pooled Funds (total) - an overall total limit of £100m in all pooled funds
will also be applied
Supranational Bonds – an individual limit of £20m and a maximum period of five years
Housing Associations (Registered Providers) – an individual limit of £10m and a maximum
period of two years
Non-Specified Investments – the maximum proportion to be held in non-specified investments
will be 25% of the portfolio at the time of investment.

* Deposits with the U.K. Government, either directly into the DMADF, or in the form of Treasury
Bills, are treated as an ultimate ‘safe haven’ for cash deposits and therefore no limits are applied to
the amount or the period of deposit.

Page 104

ANNEX 1 PAGE 10

TABLE 4: ELIGIBLE COUNTERPARTIES FOR INVESTMENT 2014/15
INV.
TYPE
Term
deposit,
call a/c,
covered
bonds,
CDs.

COUNTRY
U.K.

Australia

Canada

Finland
France

Germany
Netherlands

Singapore

Term
deposit

Sweden
Switzerland
U.S.
U.K.

Govt.
Gilts

U.K.

MMFs

World-wide

Pooled
Funds
Supranational
Bonds
Other

World-wide
World-wide
U.K.

COUNTERPARTY
Bank of Scotland / Lloyds TSB
Barclays Bank
Council’s current bank
HSBC Bank
Nationwide Building Society
RBS / Nat West
Santander UK
Standard Chartered
Australia & NZ Banking Group
Commonwealth Bank of Aus
National Australia Bank Ltd
Westpac Banking Corporation
Bank of Montreal
Bank of Nova Scotia
Canadian Imp. Bank of Comm.
Royal Bank of Canada
Toronto-Dominion Bank
Nordea Bank Finland
Pohjola
BNP Paribas
Credit Agricole SA
Credit Agricole CIB
Société Générale
Deutsche Bank AG
Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten
ING Bank
Rabobank
DBS Bank Ltd
Overseas-Chinese Bank Corp.
United Overseas Bank
Svenska Handelsbanken
Credit Suisse
JP Morgan
Local authorities
Govt. Debt Mgt Deposit Facility
Government Treasury Bills
Bonds issued by the UK
Government
Instant access funds (CNAV or
VNAV)
VNAV notice funds (1-5 days)
E.g. European Investment
Bank/Council of Europe/World
Bank
Housing Associations
Page 105

20
20
20
20
20
20
20
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
N/A
N/A
N/A

MAX
PERIOD
(TERM
DEPOSITS)
2 years
2 years
5 days
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years
5 years
-

20

N/A

5 years

10

N/A

N/A

5

N/A

N/A

20

N/A

5 years

10

2 years

N/A

MAX
SUM
£m

MAX PERIOD NEGOTIABLE
INSTRUMENTS
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
N/A
-

ANNEX 1 PAGE 11

IMPORTANT NOTES TO TABLE 4:
Limiting Factors
The Council’s bank – to accommodate short-term cash management, an unlimited maximum sum for
up to 5 days is provided for the Council’s own bank
Groups - where more than one institution is included within a banking group, the individual limit will
apply to the total investment in that group
Countries - a maximum of 15% of the investment portfolio to be invested in any one country
(excluding the UK) at the time of investment, with a maximum of 25% of the portfolio, at the time of
investment, in non-UK banks in total.
Money Market Funds and other Pooled Funds – an overall limit of £100m in all CNAV and VNAV
Funds is to be applied at all times
Non-Specified investments – a maximum of 25% of the portfolio to be held as non-specified
investments, at the time of investment.
Investment management
Counterparties - all investments will be limited to institutions based on the adopted criteria. A
schedule of eligible counterparties will be maintained. Their credit ratings and other relevant
information will be analysed and monitored on a regular basis by the Council and its advisors, to
ensure the security of monies invested
Maximum sums - total investments with individual counterparties, groups, and non-UK institutions,
as detailed in Table 4, will apply at all times
Liquidity - the maximum period for investment will be 2 years for bank term deposits and 5 years for
investments with a secondary market. In order to maintain liquidity and reduce the associated risk, the
average period for investments will be monitored and reported on a regular basis.
Return - within the criteria detailed above, an appropriate return will be sought
Reporting - details of the investment portfolio, use of counterparties and the rates of return will be
included in all reports to the Audit Committee and Executive Board. In addition, regular monthly
reports will be provided to the Treasury Management Panel (see Section 9).

8. Liquidity Management
The Council maintains a cash flow forecasting model to determine short-term cash requirements and
to determine the maximum period for which surplus funds may be externally invested. To avoid being
forced to borrow monies on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments, this model is
complied on a prudent basis, and limits on the level of long term investments are set, with reference to
the Council’s MTFP and its cash flow forecast.

9. Reporting Process
Following approval of the Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15, the reporting of activity and
performance during the year will be, as a minimum:
•

Quarterly reports to the officer Treasury Management Panel – see below
Page 106

ANNEX 1 PAGE 12

•
•

A mid-year report to Audit Committee and Executive Board
An outturn report to Audit Committee and Executive Board.

Any required changes to the Strategy, or the associated Prudential Indicators, will be reported to a
meeting of the full City Council for consideration and approval, in accordance with CLG guidance.
The Treasury Management Panel (comprising the CFO, Director of Strategic Finance, Head of
Corporate and Strategic Finance, Treasury Management Officer and other senior finance colleagues)
will scrutinise regular reports on treasury management activity throughout the year.

10.Training
The revised CIPFA Code of Practice requires the CFO to ensure that all councillors tasked with
treasury management responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury management function, receive
training appropriate to their needs and understand fully their roles and responsibilities.

11.Management of Risk
Risk management plays a fundamental role in treasury activities, due to the value and nature of
transactions involved. Appendix B details the specific risks identified in respect of treasury
management within the Council and the adopted Risk Management Action Plan. This Plan is
reviewed at regular intervals at meetings of the Treasury Management Panel.

Page 107

ANNEX 1 PAGE 13

APPENDIX A
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2013/14 – 2016/17
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
Actual
Est
Est
£m
£m
£m

2015/16 2016/17
Est
Est £m
£m

1. PRUDENCE INDICATORS
i) Capital Expenditure
General Fund
HRA
ii) CFR at 31 March
General Fund
HRA
PFI-related debt
iii) External Debt at 31 March
Borrowing
Other (PFI debt)
Gross debt

78.9
44.2
123.1

101.8
60.7
162.5

191.5
77.1
268.6

49.4
48.0
97.4

32.1
34.5
66.6

553.0
283.3
66.0
902.3

563.8
282.3
93.4
939.5

675.5
281.3
237.3
1,194.1

663.9
280.3
231.9
1,176.1

669.5
279.3
221.9
1,170.7

776.7
66.0
842.7

708.9
93.4
802.3

754.3
237.3
991.6

741.7
231.9
973.6

746.3
221.9
968.2

13.37%
12.46%

14.19%
11.81%

14.89%
11.52%

15.21%
11.19%

£m
882.3
842.3

£m
1091.6
1041.6

£m
1083.6
1033.6

£m
1078.2
1028.2

282.3
319.8
37.5

281.3
319.8
38.5

280.3
319.8
39.5

279.3
319.8
40.5

6.99%
93.01%

0-50%
50-100%

0-50%
50-100%

0-50%
50-100%

0-50%
50-100%

9.82%
1.80%
5.99%
19.67%
35.54%
16.41%
10.77%

0-25%
0-25%
0-25%
0-50%
0-50%
0-25%
0-75%

0-25%
0-25%
0-25%
0-50%
0-50%
0-25%
0-75%

0-25%
0-25%
0-25%
0-50%
0-50%
0-25%
0-75%

0-25%
0-25%
0-25%
0-50%
0-50%
0-25%
0-75%

£17.0m

£60.0m

£50.0m

£40.0m

£40.0m

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

2. AFFORDABILITY INDICATORS
i) Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
General Fund
14.55%
HRA
13.45%
ii) Impact of capital investment decisions
Council Tax Band D (per annum)
+ £1.10
HRA rent (per week)
+ £0.56
£m
882.0
iii) Authorised limit for external debt
882.0
iv) Operational Boundary for ext. debt
v) HRA limit on indebtedness
HRA CFR
283.3
HRA Debt Cap (CLG prescribed)
319.8
Difference - headroom
36.5

3. TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS
i) Limit on variable interest rates- debt
ii) Limit on fixed interest rates- debt
iii) Fixed Debt maturity structure
- under 12 months
- 12 months to 2 years
- 2 to 5 years
- 5 to 10 years
- 10 to 25 years
- 25 to 40 years
- 40 years and above
iv) Sums invested for >364 days
- in-house limit
v) Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Treasury Management in the Public
Services
vi) Credit risk

Provided in Annex 1, Section 7

Page 108

ANNEX 1 PAGE 14

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
1) Prudence Indicators
i)

‘Estimate of total capital expenditure’ – a “reasonable” estimate of total capital expenditure to
be incurred in the next 3 financial years, split between the General Fund and the HRA.
- This estimate takes into account the current approved asset management and
capital investment strategies.

ii) ‘Capital financing requirement’ (CFR) – this figure constitutes the aggregate amount of
capital spending which has not yet been financed by capital receipts, capital grants or
contributions from revenue, and represents the underlying need to borrow money long-term.
An actual figure at 31 March each year is required, together with estimates for the next three
financial years.
- This approximates to the previous Credit Ceiling calculation and provides an indication of
the total long-term debt requirement.
- The figure includes an estimation of the total debt brought ‘on-balance sheet’ in respect of
PFI schemes and finance leases.
iii) ‘External debt’ - the actual level of gross borrowing (plus other long-term liabilities, including
the notional debt relating to on-balance sheet PFI schemes and leases) calculated from the
balance sheet, with estimates for the next three financial years.
2) Affordability Indicators
i)

‘Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream’ – expresses the revenue costs of the Council’s
borrowing (interest payments and provision for repayment) as a percentage of the total sum to
be raised from government grants, business rates, council and other taxes (General Fund) and
rent income (HRA). From 1 April 2012, the General fund income figure includes revenue
raised from the Workplace Parking Levy.
- These indicators show the impact of borrowing on the revenue accounts and enable a
comparison between years to be made. The increase in the General Fund ratio reflects the
falling grant from government and the impact of the extension of the NET capital scheme,
funded from specific Government grant and the Workplace Parking Levy income streams.

ii)

‘Incremental impact of capital investment decisions’ – expresses the revenue consequences of
future capital spending plans to be met from unsupported borrowing and not financed from
existing budget provision, on both the level of council tax and weekly housing rents.
- This is a key indicator, which provides a direct link between the capital programme and
revenue budget and enables the revenue impact of additional unsupported capital
investment to be understood.

iii) ‘Authorised limit for external debt’ – this represents the maximum amount that may be
borrowed at any point during the year. An estimate for the next three financial years is
required.
- This figure allows for the possibility that borrowing for capital purposes may be
undertaken early in the year, with a further sum to reflect any temporary borrowing
as a result of adverse cash flow. This represents a ‘worst case’ scenario.
Page 109

ANNEX 1 PAGE 15

iv) ‘Operating boundary for external debt’ – this indicator is a working limit and represents the
highest level of borrowing is expected to be reached at any time during the year - It is
recognised that this operational boundary may be breached in exceptional circumstances.
v) ‘HRA limit on indebtedness’ – from 1 April 2012, a separate debt portfolio has been
established for the HRA. The CLG have imposed a ‘cap’ on the maximum level of debt for
individual authorities and the difference between this limit and the actual HRA CFR
represents the headroom available for future new borrowing.
3) Treasury Management Indicators
i)

‘The amount of net borrowing which is at a variable rate of interest’ - expressed either as an
absolute amount or a percentage. Upper and lower limits for the next three financial years are
required.
- A high level of variable rate debt presents a risk from increases in interest rates. This figure
represents the maximum permitted exposure to such debt.

ii) ‘The amount of net borrowing which is at fixed rate of interest’ - expressed either as an
absolute amount or a percentage. Upper and lower limits for the next three financial years are
required.
- Fixed rate borrowing provides certainty for future interest costs, regardless of movements
in interest rates. The lower limit is effectively the counterpart to the upper limit for variable
rate borrowing.
iii) ‘Upper and lower limits with respect to the maturity structure of the authority’s borrowing’ –
this shows the amount of fixed rate borrowing maturing in each period, expressed as a
percentage of total fixed rate borrowing.
- This indicator is designed to be a control over having large amounts of fixed rate debt
falling to be replaced at the same time.
iv) ‘Total sums invested for periods of greater than 364 days – a limit on investments for periods
longer than 1 year. A three-year estimate is required.
- This indicator is designed to protect the liquidity of investments, ensuring that large
proportions of the cash reserves are not invested for long periods.
v) The adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public
Services’. This is not a numerical indicator, but a statement of good practice.
- The Council adopted the Code on 18 February 2002. Revised Codes, issued in
2009 and 2011, have subsequently been incorporated within the Council’s strategy
and procedures.
vi) Credit risk – The Council monitors a range of factors to manage credit risk, detailed in its
annual Treasury Management Strategy (section 7).

Page 110

ANNEX 1 PAGE 16

APPENDIX B

1
2
3
4
5

Likelihood
Remote
Unlikely
Possible
Likely
Almost Certain

Low Seriousness

Likelihood (L)

Risk Management Action Plan (RMAP)
5
4
3
2
1

5
4
3
2
1
1

10 15 20 25
8 12 16 20
6
9 12 15
4
6
8 10
2
3
4
5
2
3
4
5
Impact (I)

Medium Seriousness

1
2
3
4
5

Impact
Negligible
Minor
Moderate
Major
Catastrophic

High Seriousness

Page 111

Summary Business Risk: SRR17 – Failure to protect the Council’s investments
Completed by:
Owned by:
Completed:
Next Review:
DCEX/CD – Resources and
DCEX/CD - Resources
Feb 2014
may 2014
Treasury Management Panel
4.48 (average)
3.64 (average)
Prevailing Summary risk Threat Level (LxI)
Target summary Risk Threat Level
(1.60 x 2.80 )
(1.40 x 2.60)
Summary risk mitigation effectiveness
Effective
(Effective, yet to secure improvement, may not be enough)
Risks under risk management:
Current Risk
Target
Risk Ref:
Description
Rating Score
Risk Rating
(LxI)
Score (LxI)
1
Inappropriate investment of monies with counterparties (TMP 1.1)
1x4=4
1x3=3
2
Failure to maximise recovery of Icelandic bank deposits (TMP 1.1, 1.2, 1.8)
3x1=3
2x1=2
3
Inappropriate investment strategy (TMP 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.8, 3, 4 & 11)
2x3=6
2x3=6
4
Inappropriate borrowing strategy (TMP 1.2, 1.3, 1.5 & 1.8)
1x3=3
1x3=3
5
Inappropriate management of debt portfolio (TMP 1.2, 1.3, 1.5 & 1.8)
1x3=3
1x3=3
6a
Failure of the Council’s bankers (TMP 1.1, 1.2, 1.8)
1x3=3
1X3=3
6b
Transition to new banking contract (TMP 1.1, 1.2, 1.8)
2x3=6
1x3=3
7
Poor cash management (TMP 1.2, 1. 8)
2x2=4
2x2=4
8
Colleague fraud (TMP 1.7 & 5)
2x3=6
2x2=4
9
Failure to comply with CIPFA Code or respond legislation changes (TMP 1.6)
1x3=3
1x3=3
ANNEX 1 PAGE 17

Current Management Action / Controls Acting on Risk?
Delete as applicable: Some
Risk
Ref.
1

Page 112

Current
Management/actions
in place

Adequacy of
action/control to
mitigate risk

• Continued use of
external advisors –
Arlingclose contract
renewed from April ’13
to March ‘17
• Use of counterparties
list based on range of
formal credit ratings
and wider market
intelligence and advice
• Limits set for amounts
and time periods with
individual institutions
• Counterparty limits
amended as and when
required and future
investments suspended
if deemed appropriate
• TM and investment
strategy reviewed and
amended as required
• Quarterly review of the
investment portfolio
carried out at TM
Panel meetings.
• Monitoring of wider
economic environment
provided by advisors,
with amendments to the
existing strategy, as
required.

EFFECTIVE

Additional
management
action/ controls
• Maintain
current
arrangements

• Internal audit
plan includes
16 scheduled
audit days per
annum.

Responsibility for
additional action
CD
D/
HoS
CM

TK

Critical success
factors of
additional actions

Key Dates
Additional
Progress
controls
review
complete
frequency

• Weekly check by
Deputy S151
officer of current
investments.

Ongoing

Ongoing

• Latest Internal
Audit report
findings are
strong (Jan ’13)

Ongoing

As received

Ongoing

As required

• TM Panel meets
regularly to
review the overall
position.

Ongoing

Quarterly

• Implementation of
amendments to
the investment
strategy when
appropriate

Ongoing

Subject to
regular
review
as required

ANNEX 1 PAGE 18

2

Page 113
3

• Co-ordination of action,
through the LGA, to
ensure maximisation of
recovery of sums
deposited in Icelandic
Banks
• Membership of LGA
Icelandic Banks
Steering Committee.
• Retention of legal
advisors, in UK and
Iceland, through LGA

EFFECTIVE

CM

• Regular updates
provided on proposed
actions, latest recovery
levels and forecasts for
future receipts

• TM Panel
meets regularly
to review the
overall
position.

• Sale of balance of
Landsbanki claim in
2013/14

• Sale proceeds
to exceed NPV
of projected
future
repayments

• Retention of external
advisors.
• Regular reviews of
interest rate forecasts
• Up to date knowledge
of existing and
developing investment
products through
regular attendance at
seminars and
workshops
• Regular review of the
investment strategy
• Monitoring of wider
economic activity and

EFFECTIVE

TK

• Heritable Bank
recoveries at 94%
(August ’13)

Ongoing

Ongoing

• Landsbanki and
Glitnir Bank
deposits
confirmed as
priority creditors,
with recoveries of
around 100%
forecasted

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Quarterly

Auction, Jan
2014

Completed

• Sale of
Landsbanki claim
completed, Feb
2014

CM

TK

• TM colleagues
work with
advisors and
colleagues to keep
abreast of wider
economic
conditions and
respond
accordingly.

Ongoing

Quarterly

• TM Panel meets
regularly to
review the overall
position.

Ongoing

At least
quarterly and
as required

ANNEX 1 PAGE 19

4

Page 114
5

prompt response
• CFO action under
delegation (and in
consultation with
portfolio holder) to
respond quickly to
emerging issues.
• Regular reviews (at
least quarterly) with
formal changes
implemented as req’d
• Identification and
monitoring of annual
borrowing requirement
• Monitoring of PWLB
borrowing rates
• Use of alternative loan
products as appropriate
• Regular review of
arrangements and
possibilities
Fundamental review of
capital programme has
taken place, informing
new capital strategy.
• Retention of strong
external advisors
• Regular monitoring of
debt maturity profile
• Establishment and
maintenance of a
liability benchmark, to
monitor Minimum
Revenue Provision
against debt and Capital
Financing Requirement
• Opportunities for
rescheduling identified
and implemented

• Weekly meetings
with portfolio
holder

Ongoing

Ongoing

EFFECTIVE –
subject to Capital
Programme review

EFFECTIVE

•

Capital
programme
review
completed

•

New capital
strategy
considered by
Executive
Board in
2012.

• Maintain
existing
arrangements
• Continued
strong
performance of
external
advisors

CM

TK

JA

CM

TK

• Sufficient
resources
identified to cover
capital
expenditure and
cash flows
• Continued regular
review by TM
Panel.
• Approval of new
Capital Strategy
by Exec Board in
2012.
• Continued regular
review by TM
Panel

Weekly

Ongoing

Ongoing

Quarterly

Ongoing

Quarterly

2012

At TM Panel
meetings

Quarterly

ANNEX 1 PAGE 20

• Monitoring of credit
rating and other
financial data in respect
of Council’s bankers
• Liaison with other LAs
using the same bank
• Re-tendering of bank
contract w.e.f. 1 April
2014

EFFECTIVE

6b

• Appointment of new
bankers
• Temporary extension of
existing contract to
enable transition
between banks
• Liaison between new
and outgoing bank

EFFECTIVE

• Use of cash forecasting
models, with regular
monitoring
• Continuous adaptation
of model in the light of
prevailing and forecast
circumstances
• System of delegation
and approved processes
• Separation of duties
between treasury
management dealing
and accounting
• Use of professional
indemnity insurance
• Governance checks in
place – e.g.: review by
deputy s151 officer and
TM Panel in place and
satisfactory outcomes

EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE

Page 115

6a

7

8

CM

TK

• Average overnight
balance reduced
• Major income
credited to
alternative bank
account
• Bank
recapitalisation
achieved

Complete

Dec 2013

CM

TK

• Review by TM
Panel

At TM Panel
meetings

30 Sep ‘14

• Maintain
existing
arrangements

CM

TK

• Regular review by
TM Panel

At TM Panel
meetings

At least
Quarterly

• Periodic
system tests
• Maintain
existing
arrangements –
to be changed
if testing
identifies any
issues
• Maintenance
of an updated
Treasury
Management

CM

TK

• Satisfactory
outcome of
internal audit
review
• Continuing
satisfactory
outcome of
checks by deputy
s151 officer and
system tests.
• TM Panel review
is robust

Internal audit
reports

Quarterly

• Minimise cash
sums held with
bank overnight.
• Provision of
alternate
banking facility
• Continued
monitoring of
current bank
status

Ongoing
TM Panel
meetings

Ongoing

Ongoing

ANNEX 1 PAGE 21

to date

9

• Formal adoption of
Code in place since
inception.
• Updates are reflected in
annual review of TM
and Investment
Strategies
• Review of requirements
to take place as early as
possible
• Training on accounting
issues
• Regular attendance at
treasury workshops and
seminars

EFFECTIVE

Manual of
Procedures and
Practices
• Existing
arrange-ments
to continue
• LAAP Bulletin
updates to be
identified
through
specific
closedown
action note

CM

TK

• Continued
application of
current
arrangements
• Revisions are
promptly and
accurately
reflected
• Satisfactory
internal audit
review outcome
• Robust appraisal
by TM Panel

Ongoing
Ongoing

Annual TM
and
investment
strategy

Annual

Audit report

TM Panel
meetings

At least
quarterly

Page 116
ANNEX 1 PAGE 22

APPENDIX C
GLOSSARY OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT TECHNICAL TERMS
TERM
Bank Rate
Capital Expenditure
Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)
Certainty Rate
(PWLB)
Certificates of Deposit
CNAV
Credit Default Swaps
Credit Rating

Debt maturity
Debt maturity profile
Diversification
European Investment
Bank (EIB)

Funding For Lending
Scheme
Government Gilts

Int. Financial
Accounting Standards
(IFRS)
Minimum Revenue
Provision
Money Market Funds
(MMF)
MMFs - CNAV
MMFs - VNAV

Negotiable
Instruments
Non-Specified
Investments

DEFINITION
The official interest rate set by the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy
Committee and what is generally termed at the “base rate”.
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of capital assets.
The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes
representing the cumulative capital expenditure of the local authority that
has not been financed.
A 0.20% discount offered on new loans from PWLB in return for
submission of information on future borrowing requirements.
Tradeable debt instrument issued by financial institution with fixed
interest rate and maturity.
See Money Market Funds
A financial instrument for swapping the risk of debt default; the buyer
effectively pays an insurance premium against the risk of default.
A formal opinion issued by a registered rating agency of a counterparty’s
(or a country’s) future ability to meet its financial liabilities; these are
opinions only and not guarantees.
The date when an investment or loan is scheduled to be repaid.
An analysis of the maturity dates of a range of loans/investments.
The spreading of investments among different types of assets or between
markets in order to reduce risk.
A non-profit bank created by the European Union principally to make or
guarantee loans to EU members for projects contributing to regional
development within the Union. Funding is raised through the issuance of
bonds, guaranteed by member states.
A Government/Bank of England scheme to provide banks with cheaper
funding with the aim of increasing banks’ overall net lending activity.
Bonds issued by the UK Government. They take their name from ‘giltedged’: being issued by the UK government, they are deemed to be very
secure as the investor expects to receive the full face value of the bond to
be repaid on maturity.
Guidelines and rules set by the International Accounting Standards Board
that companies and organisations follow when compiling financial
statements.
An annual provision that the Authority is statutorily required to set aside
and charge to the Revenue Account for the repayment of debt associated
with expenditure incurred on capital assets
Pooled funds which invest in a range of short term assets providing high
credit quality and high liquidity.
Constant Net Asset Value - a term used in relation to the value of a unit
share in a pooled fund. The value of a share is always £1.
Variable Net Asset Value - a term used in relation to the value of a unit
share in a pooled fund. A proportion of the assets may be valued at
market value, rather than purchase price, reducing the value of the share
on a temporary basis.
Term used for instruments such as Certificates of Deposits, Covered
Bonds, Medium Term Notes and Corporate Bonds, where it is possible to
realise the investment on the secondary market before maturity.
Term used in the CLG guidance. It includes any investment for periods
greater than one year or those with bodies that do not have a high credit
Page 117
ANNEX 1 PAGE 23

Pooled funds
Premiums and
Discounts
Private Finance
Initiative

Prudential Code

Prudential Indicators

PWLB

Quantitative Easing

Revenue Expenditure

Specified Investments

Supranational Bonds
Term Deposits
Treasury Bills
Treasury Management
Code
Unsupported
Borrowing
VNAV

rating, use of which must be justified.
Funds in which several investors collectively hold units or shares. The
assets in the fund are held as part of a pool.
A penalty or payment arising from the premature repayment of debt. The
calculation is dependant on the relative level of interest rates for the
existing loan and current market rates.
A way of funding major capital investments, without immediate recourse
to the public purse. Private consortia are contracted to design, build, and
in some cases manage new projects. Contracts can typically last for 30
years, during which time the asset is leased by a public authority.
Developed by CIPFA as a professional code of practice to support local
authority capital investment planning within a clear, affordable, prudent
and sustainable framework and in accordance with good professional
practice.
Indicators determined by the local authority to define its capital
expenditure and asset management framework. They are designed to
support and record local decision making in a manner that is publicly
accountable; they are not intended to be comparative performance
indicators.
Public Works Loans Board. A statutory body operating within the United
Kingdom Debt Management Office, an Executive Agency of HM
Treasury. The PWLB's function is to lend money from the National
Loans Fund to local authorities and other prescribed bodies, and to
collect the repayments.
The process used by the Bank of England to directly increase the quantity
of money in the economy. The Bank buys assets from private sector
institutions and credits the seller’s bank account. The seller has more
money in their bank account, while their bank holds a claim against the
Bank of England (known as reserves). The end result is more money out
in the wider economy.
Expenditure to meet the continuing cost of delivery of services including
salaries and wages, the purchase of materials and capital financing
charges.
Term used in the CLG Guidance for Local Authority Investments.
Investments that offer high security and high liquidity, in sterling and for
no more than 1 year. UK government, local authorities and bodies that
have a high credit rating.
Debt issued by international organisations such as the World Bank, the
Council of Europe and the European Investment Bank
Deposits of cash with terms attached relating to maturity and rate of
return (interest).
Government-issued short-term loan instrument
CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public
Services.
Borrowing which is self-financed by the local authority. This is also
sometimes referred to as Prudential Borrowing.
See Money Market Funds

Page 118

ANNEX 1 PAGE 24

Agenda Item 10

AUDIT COMMITTEE – 28 February 2014
Title of paper:

Partnership Governance – removal of Castle Cavendish from
the Register of Significant Partnerships

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):
Report author(s) and
contact details:

Director of Policy, Partnerships
Wards affected:
and Communications
Laura Catchpole, Corporate Policy Team
0115 87 64964
Laura.catchpole@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
John Marsh, Locality Manager (Lead Officer)
Rob Smith, Internal Audit

Other colleagues who
have provided input:

Recommendation(s):
1
To approve the removal of Castle Cavendish from the Register of Significant
Partnerships

1.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1

It is recommended that Audit Committee approve the proposed removal of
Castle Cavendish from the Register of Significant Partnerships as they do not
fit the criteria of a significant partnership.

1.2

As requested by the Audit Committee on the 29 November 2013, we have
undertaken a new Health Check of Castle Cavendish with lead officer and
audit colleagues. The Castle Cavendish Foundation is a local registered
charity, working in one area within Nottingham City. Our conclusions are that
the present work of Castle Cavendish is neither crucial to the delivery of the
council’s objectives, nor is it financially significant for the council, nor is there
a significant risk of damage to the Council’s reputation by failure of the
organisation to deliver.

1.3

The Health Check undertaken by the Lead Officer, score ‘good’ or ‘excellent’
in most categories of governance. A copy is provided in Appendix 1.

1.4

Appendix 2 provides a more detailed analysis regarding the decision to
recommend its removal from the register. The analysis is based on the criteria
as defined in the Partnership Governance Framework.

1.5

Nottingham City Council does have a contract with Castle Cavendish via the
grant aid agreement, which makes them responsible for using Area Based
Grant with Area 4 to work with a range of local providers to deliver community
outcomes as described in the grant agreement. This grant agreement is being
managed by the Quality & Commissioning Team through quarterly reporting
and Castle Cavendish are also required to provide an update to Area
Committee 4, twice a year. The Programme Manager reports that no issues
have been flagged in the first half of the year and they are on the whole,
exceeding their targets.

Page 119

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council has a long and successful history of working in partnership
across the public, private, voluntary and third sector. The benefits and
opportunities of working in partnership are well understood but risks can arise
from collaborative working and the Council must ensure that its involvement in
partnerships does not expose it to an unacceptable level of risk.

2.2

The Partnership Governance Framework includes an annual ‘health check’ of
each partnership which is significant to the City Council in terms of strategic,
reputational or financial importance. This health check is designed to identify
any risks to the Council from its involvement in any of the partnerships. The
results of these health checks are reported to Audit Committee along with
remedial actions that are needed to protect the Council from an unacceptable
level of risk.

2.3

The partnerships that are deemed significant to the Council in terms of their
strategic, reputational or financial importance are listed in the Register of
Significant Partnerships. Any changes to the register are reported to Audit
Committee annually.

2.4

Each partnership on the Register of Significant Partnerships is asked to
complete an annual self-assessment of the ‘health’ of the partnership’s
governance, giving a score as to how well they meet the criteria.

2.5

Castle Cavendish has been listed on the Register of Significant Partnerships,
since the inception of the register in 2009, although it was initially listed as the
Nottingham Development Company. No issues have been flagged to
Executive Board/Audit Committee through the annual health checks and
reporting during this time.

3.

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR THOSE
DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
None.

4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

4.1

Partnership Governance Framework, approved by the Executive Board
Commissioning Sub Committee on 13 May 2009 and updated November
2012.

Page 120

APPENDIX 1 – Castle Cavendish Health Check
PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE HEALTH CHECK GUIDANCE
The health check is a guide for an annual assessment of a partnership’s governance
and capacity. The aim is to make an overall assessment of the effectiveness of the
partnership; identify whether there is any strategic, reputational or financial risk to the
Council through its membership of the partnership; and lead to proposals for
changes/improvements.
Some of the detailed definitions and examples may not be directly applicable. There
may be some additional definitions of good governance that the nominated lead
officer will need to apply given the specific circumstances or arrangements for a
partnership. Evidence to support the findings of the health check will be held by the
nominated lead officer.
This health check does not substitute for the partnership itself reviewing its
governance and performance. The Council’s nominated lead officer and chief officer
have a responsibility to support and advise the partnership to carry out its own
review and take any action required to improve its governance.
The health check has 4 categories:
Score Category
1
Excellent

Description
There is an excellent system of governance designed to
achieve the partnership’s and the council’s objectives; any
potential strategic, reputational or financial risks for the
council are noted and well managed; performance is on
track.

2

Good

There is a basically sound system of governance, but some
weaknesses that may threaten some of the partnership’s
and the council’s objectives; any concerns regarding
management of potential strategic, reputational or financial
risks to the council are minor; performance is mainly on
track

3

Some key
areas for
improvement

There are some significant weaknesses that could threaten
some of the partnership’s and the council’s objectives; there
are some significant concerns about potential strategic,
reputational or financial risks to the council and their
management; performance is not on track in some areas

4

Many key
weaknesses

Governance and controls are generally weak leaving the
partnership’s system open to significant error or abuse; the
partnership’s and council’s objectives are unlikely to be met;
there are many significant concerns about strategic,
reputational or financial risks to the council and their
management; performance is not on track in most areas

Page 121

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
SIGNIFICANT PARTNERSHIPS GOVERNANCE HEALTH CHECK 2013
In consultation with your partnership, please complete the tables below. Once the details have been agreed by the partnership
please return them to alice.johnson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. If you require any assistance please contact Alice Johnson, Policy
Officer, Nottingham City Council, on 0115 87 63372.
Name of Partnership: Castle Cavendish Foundation (formerly NDC)
NCC Lead Councillor:
NCC Corporate Director: John Kelly, Interim Corporate Director for Communities
NCC Lead Officer: John Marsh, Locality Manager
Partnership Chief Executive/Manager (if appropriate): Dave Brennan

Page 122

We have identified 8 areas of good governance. In each area we have provided a number of clear statements to illustrate what
‘excellent’ looks like for that area of governance. Using the criteria where 1 is ‘excellent’ and 4 is ‘many key weaknesses’ (page 1),
please record a score (1-4) for each area of good governance for your significant partnership, making relevant notes on how the
score could be improved.

Good governance

1. Aims and objectives
• The partnership has clear aims and SMART
objectives clearly set out and understandable
• Strong alignment between the partnership’s and The
Nottingham Plan and 2030 vision
• In pursuing the 2030 vision, the partnership has a set
of values against which decision making and actions
can be judged (e.g. code of conduct)
• The partnership achieves more than the sum of its
parts. It delivers the benefits identified in the business
case

Health
assessment
(score 1-4)
2-3

Notes

•
•
•
•

•
•

Castle Cavendish are a local registered charity working in one
areas within Nottingham City.
It is not a partnership so a number of points are not relevant.
The proposed merger with the Partnership Council is no longer on
the agenda.
CCF has a new 5 year Strategic Development Plan (April 2012)
with 4 key aims http://www.castlecavendish.org.uk/home/ourstrategic-plan/.
It is also developing an Asset Development Strategy.
It is not directly linked to the Nottingham Plan

Page 123

2. Membership and structure
• The structure is clear, is set out in Terms of
Reference, a Memorandum of Agreement or other
governing documents and is regularly reviewed.
• Roles, responsibilities and contributions are defined
for all partners and set out in the governing
documents, including whistle-blowing, responding to
compliments and complaints, risk assessment,
personnel and financial management and financial
and performance reporting.
• Key partners provide effective leadership. Their
leadership roles and responsibilities are understood
and fulfilled.
• The membership provides the necessary knowledge,
skills and experience to do the job. Partners ensure
that the right people are in the right place at the right
time.
• The partners are committed at the highest level to
deliver the partnership’s objectives. There are
constructive working relationships between all
partners, the right people attend the meetings, and
these are supported by lead officers within partner
agencies.
• Changes to membership and exit strategies are
considered and the governing documents say what
will happen if/when a partner wishes to leave.
• The NCC lead officer is actively engaged

2

•
•

•

•

•

•
•
•

•

Castle Cavendish acts as a local regeneration charity, with a focus
around Hyson Green, Radford, Arboretum, Lenton & Dunkirk.
The organisation is made up of Castle Cavendish Foundation,
which is a company by guarantee with charitable status; and a
wholly-owned trading subsidiary, Castle Cavendish Ltd.
The charity is governed by a Board of Trustees, and the trading
subsidiary has non-executive directors that report through to the
charity.
It is important to re-iterate that Castle Cavendish is now an
independent charitable body (company limited by guarantee with
charitable status), governed through a Board of Trustees who are
also the members of the company. It currently has 9 Trustees that
have been recruited since the end of the NDC Programme in
2010, and their selection process has been strengthened to reflect
skills, knowledge and competency. This includes a Nottingham
City Councillor, Councillor Toby Neal
As reported last year, CCF continues to have robust membership
and structure. The Trustees appear unchanged from previous
year. There is Councillor representative on the Trustees Cllr Toby
Neal. Whilst CCF receives no direct funding from NCC, it
distributes funds to organisations within Area 4 through its role as
Lead Body.
CCF is a charity with a trading subsidiary. All profits are directed
back through the Charitable arm community fund..
Point 2 is not relevant as CCF is not a partnership
New Trustees are provided with a Trustee Handbook, and undergo
an orientation process to brief them on the Charity and their role as
a Trustee, including:
- legal obligations under Charity and company law;
- the content of the Memorandum and Articles of Association;
- the committee and decision making process;
- the latest business plan; and the performance of the Charity.
Trustees are encouraged to attend appropriate external training

•

•

Page 124

3. Decision making and accountability
1
• Decision making is clear and transparent. Authority
and delegations are set out in governing documents
including
o Who can make what decisions
o Delegated responsibilities
• The partnership has a clear procedure for dealing
with conflicts of interest
• Those making decisions are provided with information
that is fit for the purpose – relevant, timely and give
clear explanations of technical issues and their
implications
• Decisions are properly recorded and notified promptly
to those who are affected by them.
• The partnership has a communication plan to inform
service users, members and the public about the
partnership, its decisions, its achievements and
successes, who is accountable and responsible for
what. It provides routes for people to

•

•

•
•

•

events where these will facilitate the undertaking of their role.
Nottingham City Council has an arrangement with Castle
Cavendish is via the grant aid agreement, which makes them
responsible for using Area Based Grant with Area 4 to work with a
range of local providers to deliver community outcomes as
described in the grant agreement. Any reputational risk associated
with not delivering on the commitments of this grant agreement is
being managed by the Quality & Commissioning Team through
ongoing regulation and monitoring
Castle Cavendish report performance against delivery as Lead
Body of the grant for Area 4 to the Area 4 Committee. They are
also monitored on delivery of the grants. Further information on
delivery of the grant can be found at
http://www.castlecavendish.org.uk/area-4-grant/
The Council is not the accountable body for Castle Cavendish.
The financial status of Castle Cavendish is solely the responsibility
of the Trustees and regulated by the Charities Commission.
There is a strong culture of performance management particularly
in regard to business elements of work and within its role as a Lead
Body.
There is a clear structure of meetings with agendas and minutes
Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements
for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources
and application of resources, including the income and
expenditure, of the charitable company for the year.
The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

comment/contribute to the partnership’s work.
• The partnership has clear lines of accountability and
arrangements for reporting performance
• Arrangements are in place for the partnership to
report in a timely way on its work and achievements
to Council officers and Councillors. Decisions and
activities are scrutinized at the appropriate level.
• There are clear routes for members and partners to
raise concerns.
1
4. Performance management
• The partnership reviews its progress and delivery
against clear outcomes, outputs and milestones and
takes prompt corrective action if necessary.
• Delivery contracts and agreements are monitored and
poor performance is tackled.

•

In terms of reporting Castle Cavendish produces a report on the
distribution of grants to Area 4 Committee.

•

There is a strong culture of performance management particularly
in regard to business elements of work
In terms of reporting Castle Cavendish produces a report on the
distribution of grants to Area 4 Committee.
An Annual report is also produced.
The grant aid from the City Council is regulated and monitored by
the Quality and Commissioning Team through a Grant Agreement
and does not constitute a substantial financial contribution. The
leasehold agreement is a standard commercial transaction held
with Property Service
No particular issues need to be highlighted.
An Annual report is produced.
The Board regularly reviews policies, strategies, membership, use
of resources and progress on the 5 year Strategic Development
Plan

•
•
•

Page 125
1
5. Evaluation and review
• The partnership regularly reviews its policies,
strategies, membership and use of resources against
its objectives and targets.
• The partnership reviews its progress and delivery
against clear outcomes, outputs and milestones and
takes prompt corrective action if necessary.
• Delivery contracts and agreements are monitored and
poor performance is tackled.
• Arrangements for responding to complaints and
dealing with unforeseen problems needing a prompt
response are in place and clearly stated.
• There are clearly stated procedures to deal with
disputes within the partnership and these are followed

•
•
•

when necessary.
6. Equalities
• The partnership assesses its policies and
programmes for their impact on equalities.
• The partnership considers impact on inequality and
deprivation as part of its performance management.

2

•
•

•

Page 126
7. Finance
• The partnership has access to resources to support
delivery of its aims and objectives. It has a financial
and /or procurement plan that identifies how it
proposes to use these funding to achieve its
objectives.
• The role of the partnership in relation to finance and
the extent of its powers to make financial decisions
and approvals are stated and understood.

1

•

•

No particular issues raised at meetings with Castle Cavendish
Chief Executive.
Castle Cavendish Foundation is a charitable organisation that
exists to support the communities of Radford and Hyson Green. It
is committed to the long-term regeneration of the area, reinvesting
the proceeds from its property portfolio, improving services,
improving the infrastructure, and improving the ‘quality of life’ for
generations to come.
The object of the Charity is the promotion for the benefit of the
public of urban regeneration in areas of social and economic
deprivation (and in particular in Radford and Hyson Green) by all or
any of the following means:
- the relief of those in need, by reason of youth, age, ill-health,
disability, financial hardship or other disadvantages;
- the relief of unemployment;
- the advancement of education and training, particularly among
unemployed people, and providing unemployed people with work
experience;
- the provision of financial assistance, technical assistance or
business advice or consultancy in order to provide training and
employment opportunities for unemployed people in cases of
financial or other charitable need through help: (i) in setting up
their own business, or (ii) to existing businesses;
The financial position appears secure as all assets are free of any
legal charge. The organisation is not involved in service delivery –
they just manage assets or distribute grants.
Link to Annual Accounts independently audited by Rogers Spencer
http://www.castlecavendish.org.uk/home/about-us/annual-reports/

The partnership has effective arrangements for
financial monitoring and reporting.
• The partnership uses its resources well and
demonstrates how it uses them to add value. It
ensures that it uses resources to complement and
enhance the work of individual partners.
• Where applicable, for the most recent financial year
the partnership has had “unqualified audit opinion”
(i.e. it has passed audit without any qualifications)
and any recommendations raised by auditors have
been actioned
8. Partnership Risk Management
• Key people are aware of areas of potential risk in
partnerships and the need to allocate resources to
manage risk.
• The partnership has an agreed mechanism for
identifying, assessing and managing risks.
• Appropriate tools have been developed and
resources are in place to manage risk.
• Partnership risks are well managed across
organisational boundaries.
• There is clear evidence of improved partnership
delivery through risk management.
•

2

•
•

Page 127

•
•

The organisation now has a settled Chief Executive in place. This
has been the case now for over 2 years
The organisation has redefined its role following the collapse of the
merger with Partnership Council.
The Strategic Development Plan includes a range of short, medium
and long term goals.
The Board of Trustees conducts a review of the major risks to
which the Charity is exposed. A Risk Management Framework is in
place, which acts as the Charity’s risk register, and is updated at
least annually. Where appropriate, various procedures and
systems have been established to mitigate the risks the Charity
may face. Significant external risks have led to the development of
a Strategic Plan which will allow for the diversification of funding
and activities. Internal control risks are minimised by the
implementation of procedures for authorisation of all transactions
and projects. Procedures are also in place to ensure compliance
with health and safety of staff, clients customers, tenants and
visitors.

Overall Headline Risk
Please fill in the table below the most significant risks which the Council needs to be aware of in terms of our involvement with this
partnership. These can include strategic, financial and reputational risks. An example risk has been included to guide you.
Some partnerships may not face any risks, whereas others may face many. For those which face many risks, please note only the
three most significant risks.
Please write a brief description of the risk, give each risk a rating for likelihood and impact using the criteria below, and bullet point
the mitigating actions which will help mitigate the risk.

Page 128

Risk Description

Impact
Rating

Board fails to agree consensus on
aims and objectives
Property income insufficient to support
charitable and other aims

3

Likelihood Total Risk Mitigating actions
Rating
Rating
(Impact x
Likelihood)
1
3
• Ensure aims and objectives are agreed

4

1

4

•
•

Likelihood rating scale:
1. Remote
2. Unlikely
3. Possible
4. Likely
5. Almost Certain
Impact rating scale:
1. Negligible
2. Minor
3. Moderate
4. Major
5. Catastrophic

Research and consider alternatives

Appendix 2
Analysis of Castle Cavendish’s position on the Register of Significant Partnership
Castle Cavendish is a local regeneration charity (Registered charity number: 1119003), with
a focus around Hyson Green, Radford, Arboretum, Lenton & Dunkirk. Castle Cavendish
owns and manages £2 million of commercial property, ranging from managed office-space to
retail to light industrial. The net income that is generated from these properties is then
reinvested to support a range of good causes and local initiatives.
This paper sets out our brief analysis of why Castle Cavendish does not meet the criteria for
remaining on the Register of Significant Partnerships.
1. Strategic Importance
Criteria: The partnership is critical to the delivery of the Council’s key objectives or statutory
obligations. The success of the partnership is therefore fundamental to the Council’s priorities
and functions.
Does Castle Cavendish meet the criteria?: No.
Castle Cavendish is a local registered charity, working in only one area of Nottingham City. It
does not represent a partnership body, and has no formal ties to the City Council’s
governance framework. It acts as an independent community anchor and development trust,
firmly rooted in the voluntary sector, similar to other likeminded bodies, such as The Renewal
Trust. While their aims chime with the broader Council objectives, it is hard to conclude that
they are critical to the delivery of the Council’s objectives.
Our judgement is therefore that they are not of significant strategic importance to the Council.
2. Reputational Importance
Criteria: The Council’s reputation could be damaged by failure of the partnership to deliver.
Does Castle Cavendish meet the criteria?: No.
Castle Cavendish is not critical to the delivery of the Council’s key objectives; therefore they
are not of sufficient significance to pose a significant reputational risk.
It is important to re-iterate that Castle Cavendish is now an independent charitable body
(company limited by guarantee with charitable status), governed through a Board of Trustees
who are also the members of the company. It currently has 9 Trustees that have been
recruited since the end of the NDC Programme in 2010, and their selection process has been
strengthened to reflect skills, knowledge and competency. This includes a Nottingham City
Councillor, Councillor Toby Neal.
Nottingham City Council has an arrangement with Castle Cavendish via the grant aid
agreement, which makes them responsible for using Area Based Grant with Area 4 to work
with a range of local providers to deliver community outcomes as described in the grant
agreement. Any reputational risk associated with not delivering on the commitments of this
grant agreement is being managed by the Quality & Commissioning Team through ongoing
regulation and monitoring.

Page 129

3. Financial Importance
Criteria: Currently or potentially managing/directing resources that include a substantial
financial contribution from the Council or for which the Council is the Accountable Body.
Does Castle Cavendish meet the criteria?: No.
The Council is not the Accountable Body for Castle Cavendish. The financial status of Castle
Cavendish is the solely the responsibility of the Trustees, and regulated by the Charities
Commission.
There are 2 financial relationships that exist between the two parties are:
Firstly, the City Council provide Castle Cavendish with grant to support the Area Based
approach to support the voluntary sector, through the grant aid agreement that was made as
part of the appointment as Lead Organisation for Area 4; and
Secondly, Castle Cavendish provides a head-lease payment to the City Council regarding
the Leasehold Agreements for commercial property at Hartley Court and Alfreton Road.
The grant aid from the City Council is regulated and monitored by the Quality and
Commissioning Team through a Grant Agreement and does not constitute a substantial
financial contribution. The leasehold agreement is a standard commercial transaction held
with Property Services.

Page 130

Agenda Item 11

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 28 February 2014
Title of paper:

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT – PROGRESS MADE
TO DATE ON ISSUES REPORTED 2012/13 AND PROCESS
FOR PRODUCING 2013/14 STATEMENT

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):

DIRECTOR
FINANCE

Report author(s) and
contact details:

Shail Shah
Head of Internal Audit
( 0115-8764245
* shail.shah@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

OF

STRATEGIC Wards affected: All

Other colleagues who
have provided input:
Recommendation(s):
1
Note the progress made to date in addressing the issues reported in the 2012/13 AGS,
as detailed in Appendix 1
2
Note the process and timetable for compiling and completing the 2013/14 AGS, as
detailed in Appendix 2

1.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

This report sets out the current position in respect of those issues reported in the 2012/13
Annual Governance Statement (AGS), and the process for compiling the 2013/14 AGS.
1.1 Update of Issues Reported
Issues identified in the AGS have been revisited and an update of the latest position
established. Issues not resolved are shown at Appendix 1.
1.1.1 Single Status
Single Status has now been implemented for all Nottingham City Council schools based
staff, including casual workers in schools. Work continues to look at the pay and terms
and conditions of a small group of employees.
1.1.2 Central Government Review of Local Government Funding
Council’s Budget

& Balancing the

The Medium Term Financial Plan has been reviewed to reassess pressures in future
years as part of this process and reflects the culmination of the extensive work of
councillors, colleagues and other stakeholders to fulfil a legal obligation to enable the
setting of a balanced budget. Resources have been redirected by Identifying cost
reductions arising from both efficiencies and policy issues.

Page 131

1.1.3 Children in Care
There is a renewed focus which is the subject of a Big Ticket Project regarding reducing
the numbers of children in care and speeding up the adoption process by tackling delay.
Work in 2012 was undertaken to realign the children in care placements budget and to
ensure that the use of a regional framework for all care registered and 16 plus
accommodation was robust. There is strong collaboration between partners in
Nottingham city, most notably between Health, LA, Police, Foster Carers and providers of
residential accommodation. Performance against children in care targets in many areas
continues to be strong.
The Council is about to embark on a further strategy to reduce the numbers of children
coming into care. The Edge of Care Intervention Hub was launched in September 2013
which is for an initial 6 month pilot project, located and managed within the Targeted
Support Team.
1.1.4 EMSS
No major concerns have yet arisen in this regard. Some issues have been faced in terms
of financial management since the implementation, and delays have been experienced in
making payments to certain suppliers. The causes of this issue have been addressed and
the resulting payment backlog is being cleared.

1.1.5 Nottingham Express Transit (NET)
Construction of NET Phase Two is underway. The NET concession contract, including
project risks remaining with the City Council, is being managed by an experienced inhouse project team and overseen by a dedicated Project Board.

1.1.6 Workplace Parking Levy (WPL)
The WPL income projections will be continually updated to reflect the latest information
available from the WPL team. In the event that over the life of the NET Phase 2 contract,
insufficient WPL income is generated, decisions may be made in respect of the ongoing
contributions to the Link Bus network and/or extending the WPL scheme beyond the life
of the NET Phase 2 contract
1.1.7 Icelandic Banks
Since the banks went into administration in 2008, the Council has received a series of
dividends form the administrators of the individual banks. The final sum to be received
remains dependant on a number of factors including the exchange rate applied in
converting payments received in currencies other than sterling, and the release from
escrow of monies paid in Icelandic Krone.

Page 132

1.2 Process for the Production of the AGS 2013/14
1.2.1 It is intended that the production of the AGS 2013/14 will closely follow the process
of previous years noted by this committee, and the timetable is given at Appendix
2. The process will be managed by the Corporate Governance Steering Group
(CGSG) as endorsed by the Executive Board on 20 May 2008 and which consists
of senior colleagues representing Council services. A set of assurances will be
obtained from the Leader of the Council, key colleagues including Corporate
Directors, individuals with statutory roles, significant groups and significant
partnerships
1.2.2 . The assurance will come from a self assessment based on customised
questionnaires targeted at the appropriate assurance givers, together with other
information provided in support of the AGS. The questionnaires will be based on
the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance. Support throughout the process will
be given by Internal Audit and the Head of Internal Audit who will visit all
departmental management teams to discuss audit plans and introduce the 2013/14
AGS.
1.2.3 The questionnaires will be supported by a comprehensive guidance document
provided by Internal Audit. Completed questionnaires will be supplemented by
other governance related information extracted from Council policies and
strategies, internal and external assurance providers, Council, Board and
committee minutes, and the annual review of governance arrangements in
significant partnerships.
1.2.4 The final AGS will be an account of the Council’s governance arrangements in a
format addressing the principle embodied in the Local Code of Corporate
Governance. It will reflect the failings identified and note actions put in place to
address them. This will be discussed by members of the CGSG and will be
presented to the Audit Committee for approval, and the document when approved
will be published with the City Council’s Statement of Accounts.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1 The Council’s governance arrangements aim to ensure that objectives and
responsibilities are set out and met in a timely, open, inclusive, and honest manner.
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values
by which it is directed and controlled, and through which it engages with and leads
the community to which it is accountable. Every council and large organisation
operates within a similar framework, which brings together an underlying set of
legislative requirements, good practice principles and management processes.
2.2 The publication of an AGS is required by the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2011.
The Council is required to conduct a review, at least annually, of the effectiveness of
its internal control and prepare a statement in accordance with proper practices.
The 2007 CIPFA/SOLACE (updated 2012) publication “Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government Framework” provided the principles by which good governance
should be measured. This was adopted as the Council’s Local Code of Corporate
Governance at the Executive Board meeting of 20 May 2008.

Page 133

2.3 Included in this Committee’s terms of reference is the core function that it should be
“satisfied that the Authority’s assurance statements, including the AGS, properly
reflect the risk environment and any actions required to improve it.”
2.4 In order to produce the AGS an annual timetable is required to ensure key tasks are
undertaken in time to deliver it alongside the Council’s Statement of Accounts. The
timetable (Appendix 2) will be used to monitor the progress of the AGS.
2.5 The Committee has delegated authority for the formal approval of the AGS and
approved the AGS for 2012/13 on 27 September 2012. It was signed by the Leader
of the Council and Chief Executive and was published alongside the Statement of
Accounts.
2.6 The AGS reflects the governance framework operating within the Council and its
significant partnerships. The issues identified and the consequent plans for their
mitigation are used to direct corporate resources, including those of Internal Audit.
2.7 Part of the 2012/13 AGS reported on significant control issues affecting the Council
and the action plans put in place to address them. In ascertaining the significance of
the control issues, CIPFA defines a series of factors to be considered, as follows:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal objective
The issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be resolved,
or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another aspect of the
business
The issue has led to a material impact on the accounts.
The Audit Committee, or equivalent, has advised that it should be considered
significant for this purpose.
The Head of Internal Audit has reported on it as significant, for this purpose, in the
annual opinion on the internal control environment.
The issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has seriously
damaged the reputation of the organisation.
The issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial Officer
and/or the Monitoring Officer.
The 2012/13 AGS also reported on issues of note which do not merit categorising as
significant but require attention and monitoring to maintain and improve the system of
internal control. As with significant issues these may have been brought forward from
previous statements if the issues have not been finally resolved.

3.

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR THOSE
DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

None

Page 134

4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

Accounts & Audit Regulations 2011
CIPFA/SOLACE - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework,
2007
CIPFA/SOLACE - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance
Note, 2012
Executive Board 20 May 2008 - Local Code of Corporate Governance
Nottingham City Council - Statement of Accounts 2012/13
Annual Governance Statement 2012/13

Page 135

APPENDIX 1
AUDIT COMMITTEE – FEBRUARY 2014 –ITEMS TO FOLLOW UP.
Single Status
As part of Central Government’s Single Status initiative to deal with equal pay issues, a
major change in the remuneration structure for schools-based support staff is in progress.
“Single Status”, a new harmonised set of terms and conditions and pay and grade
structure, was introduced for the majority of centrally based employees in November
2010 and the current exercise is designed to bring schools staff in line with this. There is
a prospect of potential disruption and legal challenge to the decisions made to implement
the new pay structure in schools (grading appeals and backdating of awards).
Updated Position
Single Status has now been implemented for all Nottingham City Council schools based
staff, including casual workers in schools. This means that all central and school based
NCC employees on Local Government Service (LGS) terms and conditions are now on
one harmonised set of terms and conditions and one pay and grade structure. Work
continues to look at the pay and terms and conditions of a small group of employees at
the Royal Centre, who are currently working to BECTU terms and conditions.

Central Government Review of Local Government Funding & Balancing the
Council’s Budget)
As the coalition Government has undertaken a fundamental review of public spending
which has reduced the level of funding available to the Council from 2010/11 onwards.
The combination of the impact of the global recession and the need for a significant
investment in some services placed severe pressure on the Council’s financial resources.
The 2009 budget process, through the in depth analysis of spending requirements and
the opportunities to generate income, highlighted the need to reduce net expenditure
across the City Council.
Updated Position
The Council responded to consultation documents highlighting concerns that a
disproportionate share of the financial risk is being passed to local authorities and that the
mechanisms create a questionable link between growth in businesses in an area and the
need to fund demand led services such as social care.
The Medium Term Financial Plan has been reviewed to reassess pressures in future
years as part of this process and reflects the culmination of the extensive work of
councillors, colleagues and other stakeholders to fulfil a legal obligation to enable the
setting of a balanced budget. Resources have been redirected by Identifying cost
reductions arising from both efficiencies and policy issues, especially:
§ Reviewing priorities and services and restructuring accordingly;
§ Optimising external funding;

Page 136

§ Reviewing income streams;
§ Implementing new ways of working and providing services
Children in Care
The Children in Care service exists primarily to ensure that children have permanent
plans for where they live. Nottingham’s priority for its children in care is to ensure that
where possible, children live with their birth families. If that is not achievable then
adoption and fostering are the next preferred options.
Children in care arrangements and associated budget pressures are key issues facing
the service. There is a need to recruit and retain Social Workers to maintain stable
safeguarding arrangements. Nottingham has seen, as in other areas across the country,
a significant increase in the number of children in care over the past two years.
Updated Position
A plan is in place to reduce the numbers of children who remain in care over the
forthcoming year. Part of this work involves systematic use of tools to help return young
people to their birth families, having detailed exit plans for each young person,
benchmarking all data against our statistical neighbours and ensuring a full complement
of staff to deliver the business. Work is underway to match children and young people to
adopters at an earlier point in the adoption process to ensure a stable and permanent
family home for all our children in care. The renewed focus is the subject of a Big Ticket
Project regarding reducing the numbers of children in care and speeding up the adoption
process by tackling delay. Work in 2012 was undertaken to realign the children in care
placements budget and to ensure that the use of a regional framework for all care
registered and 16 plus accommodation was robust. This has resulted in some continued
net savings on placement costs. Performance against placement stability and recording
the wishes and feelings of children and young people continues to be strong.
There is strong collaboration between partners in Nottingham city, most notably between
Health, LA, Police, Foster Carers and providers of residential accommodation. The
Council has created a 'permanence team' which is the Children in Care Team. This
became operational in April 2012. Further resources have since been agreed to support
the effectiveness of the team to place children in permanency placements in a more
timely way, and ensure delays are kept to a minimum. This is central to the strategy of
ensuring better outcomes for our children in care population.
Performance against children in care targets in many areas continues to be strong and
NCC largely out performs against its statistical neighbours. An area for growth and
development against key performance targets is in ensuring the health of children in care
is robustly monitored and action taken where appropriate. Speeding up adoptions and
tackling delay is the second priority area. NCC does better than its statistical neighbours
(with the exception of Middlesbrough) in the recently published adoption scorecard.
There was a significant increase in the number of adoptions in 2012/13 compared with
the previous year. Resources have been realigned to build on that progress, based on
evidence of what works well. The authority has an ambitious target of 55 adoptions for
2013/14.

Page 137

The Targeted Support Team continues to offer the effective delivery of services to
children, young people and their families/carers. The reconfiguration of Nottingham City
Council’s Residential Services into Small Group Homes has served to support children
and young people to be better placed, have improved outcomes in a cost effective
manner and ensure young people receive a quality service that keeps them safe. All
homes have met and exceeded minimum standards with 2 homes receiving an OFSTED
rating of outstanding (Vivian Ave and Edwards Lane).
The Council is about to embark on a further strategy to reduce the numbers of children
coming into care. The Edge of Care Intervention Hub was launched in September 2013
which is for an initial 6 month pilot project, located and managed within the Targeted
Support Team. To date 13 children who have been seen by the intervention hub have not
come into care providing a budget relief of between £276k and £549k (based on
placement type).

East Midlands Shared Service (EMSS)
Leicestershire County Council (LCC) and Nottingham City Council (NCC) have been
working in partnership to develop and implement an East Midlands Shared Service to
support both transactional finance and HR administration/payroll processes. The shared
service is supported by an implementation of the Oracle E-Business Suite. As is usual
with this type of extensive system implementation, a great deal of focus has been applied
to the financial control processes requiring review and redesign. Much of the risk for
NCC has been mitigated by the fact that the Council was migrating to an existing LCC
platform.
Latest Position
The Council’s Accountancy and Audit services continue to closely monitor the activity and
performance of the Oracle system closely. No major concerns have yet arisen in this
regard. Issues have been faced in terms of financial management since the
implementation on 2 April 2013, and delays have been experienced in making payments
to certain suppliers. The causes of this issue have been addressed and the resulting
payment backlog is being cleared.
Nottingham Express Transit (NET)
Nottingham City Council entered into a 22 year Private Finance Initiative concession
contract with Tramlink Nottingham Limited (“Tramlink”) in December 2011 to extend and
operate Nottingham’s tram network. The concession contract passes the key design,
build and construction risks, to Tramlink, the private sector concession company.
Latest Position
Construction of NET Phase Two is underway with an anticipated date for the operation of
the extended network of December 2014. The NET concession contract, including project
risks remaining with the City Council, is being managed by an experienced in-house
project team and overseen by a dedicated Project Board.

Page 138

Workplace Parking Levy (WPL)
The WPL is a levy which applies to all employers within the Nottingham City Council
administrative boundary. Employers that provide any workplace parking places are
required to get a WPL licence and those with 11 or more chargeable places, to pay a
charge, from 1 April 2012. An important issue focuses on the ability of WPL to raise
revenue to meet the Council’s contribution to the NET Phase 2, the HUB and Link Bus
network. The scheme was introduced on 1st October 2011 and charging commenced in
April 2012.

Latest Position
There has been concern regarding the ability of WPL to meet funding requirements. The
WPL income projections will be continually updated to reflect the latest information
available from the WPL team as the income collection is still in its infancy. In the event
that over the 23 year life of the NET Phase 2 contract, insufficient WPL income is
generated, decisions may be made in respect of the ongoing contributions to the Link Bus
network and/or extending the WPL scheme beyond the life of the NET Phase 2 contract.
SIGNIFICANT ISSUES REPORTED
Icelandic Banks
In October 2008, as a consequence of the global financial crisis, the Icelandic banking
system collapsed, with four of its banks going into administration. This impacted directly
on the Council, which had a total of £41.6m deposited with three of the banks involved
(Heritable, Landsbanki and Glitnir), at the time of the collapse.
Recovery of monies
More than 120 local authorities had similar deposits with Icelandic banks at that time,
totalling some £920m. All these authorities joined forces, through the Local Government
Association, to co-ordinate the recovery of the monies. In particular, lawyers were
appointed to represent UK local authorities in the Icelandic Courts, whose role was to
decide whether UK local authority deposits were treated as priority creditors in the
administration process of Glitnir and Landsbanki banks.
Following a series of court cases in Iceland, the Council was confirmed as a priority
creditor, with sufficient funds being identified within Glitnir and Landsbanki banks to
enable, in principle, full repayment, albeit over a number of years and subject to foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations and future legislation changes.
Separately, the administration of the London-based Heritable Bank has been managed
within the UK, with regular dividend payments to all creditors being made over the last 5
years.

Page 139

Latest position
Since the banks went into administration in 2008, the Council has received a series of
dividends from the administrators of the individual banks. The latest position in respect of
the Council’s deposits with each bank is:
a) Heritable Bank: original deposit £15.600m. Dividend payments to date total
£14.982m, including interest. The final sum to be recovered is currently estimated
as £15.380m.
b) Glitnir Bank: original deposit £11.000m. Dividend payments received to date total
£9.210m, including interest. The balance of the monies paid was made in Icelandic
krone and is currently in an interest-bearing escrow bank account in Iceland,
pending the relaxation of currency controls by the Icelandic government. The final
sum to be recovered, including interest is currently estimated as £11.324m.
c) Landsbanki Bank: original deposit £15.000m. The banks administrators have made
dividend payments totalling £8.197m to date, including interest. The balance of the
monies is scheduled to be paid to all priority creditors over the next 5-6 years,
although uncertainties exist regarding actual timing, currency exchange rate
fluctuations and future Icelandic legislation. To mitigate these risks, the Council
participated in a group auction of UK local authority creditor claims in January
2014 which resulted in the sale of the balance of its creditor claim. The payment
received was £6.127m, giving a total receipt of £14.324m, including interest.
The following table details the amount of the Council’s funds that have been returned to
date, plus the current forecasted total recovery figure:
BANK

Heritable
Landsbanki
Glitnir

ORIGINAL
DEPOSIT

£m
15.600
15.000
11.000
41.600

TOTAL RECOVERED TO DATE

ESTIMATED FINAL RECOVERY

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

TOTAL

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

TOTAL

£m
14.667
13.689
8.694
37.049

£m
0.315
0.635
0.516
1.466

£m
14.982
14.324
9.210
38.515

£m
15.057
13.689
10.690
39.435

£m
0.323
0.635
0.635
1.593

£m
15.380
14.324
11.324
41.028

Page 140

Confirm significant partners and groups
Revise and circulate questionnaires to
obtain assurance
Receive Internal Audit Annual Report
with Head of Audit opinion
Consider extent to which the Council
complies with the Local Code
Review Assurance - Partnership
arrangements
Review Assurance - Corporate Director
Assurance Statements
Review Assurance - Statutory Officers
Obtain assurances from other parties, inc
S151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and
Head of Internal Audit
Review other sources of assurance
Draft AGS, outlining the governance
environment and any significant
governance issues that need to be
disclosed
Take report to Audit Committee as the
committee responsible for monitoring
compliance with the Local Code
Consider Issues from External Audit
Annual Letter
Report Final AGS to Audit Committee
with Statement of Accounts
Prepare / follow-up mid year report to
Audit Committee for first meeting of new
year

Page 141

Mar 2015

Feb 2015

Oct 2014

Sept 2014

Jul 2014

Jun 2014

May 2014

Apr 2014

Action
Head of Internal Audit to meet all
Departmental Management Teams
Plan the process for obtaining
assurances from Corporate Directors and
other significant partners
Review 2012/13 AGS and take update to
Audit Committee
Update to Corporate Governance
Steering Group

Mar 2014

APPENDIX 2
Feb 2014

AGS Process 2013/2014

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142

Agenda Item 12
AUDIT COMMITTEE - 28 February 2014
Title of paper:

INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PLAN FOR EAST MIDLANDS
SHARED SERVICES

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):

DIRECTOR
FINANCE

Report author(s) and
contact details:

Shail Shah
Head of Internal Audit
( 0115-8764245
* shail.shah@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

OF

STRATEGIC Wards affected: All

Other colleagues who
have provided input:
Recommendation(s):
1
Note the progress on 2013/14 audit work planned and completed to date

2

Note the proposed EMSS 2014/15 Audit Plan

1.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

This report follows the report presented to the 29 November 2013 Audit Committee
and outlines the work undertaken to date by Nottingham City Internal Audit (NCCIA)
for East Midlands Shared Services (EMSS), and the Internal Audit Plan for EMSS
2014/15
Appendix 1 contains the 2013/14 Internal Audit plan for EMSS with planned
timings and where appropriate status of the work. The plan is on target.
Appendix 2 is the proposed audit plan for 2014/15

•
•
2.

BACKGROUND

2.1. Nottingham City Council (NCC) and Leicestershire County Council (LCC)
formed a partnership (EMSS) in 2011 to deliver HR, payroll and finance
transactional shared services. It will be supported by state of the art
technology and intends to offer a sustainable solution through new ways of
working to deliver more efficient and cost effective services. It will also form
the base from which other services can be added and other councils taken on
board.
2.2. The change to EMSS requires significant changes in both organisations
operational procedures and culture.
2.3. Both organisations have agreed that NCCIA will conduct the required audit
project work both during the transition and when the service is in full
operation.
2.4. The Committee’s Terms of Reference include receiving reports on the work
planned and undertaken by NCCIA.
Page 143

2.5. The Committee has considered and endorsed the work planned for EMSS at
previous meetings.
2.6. This report updates the Committee on the work undertaken regarding the
2013/14 audit plan and presents the proposed 2014/15 audit plan.

3.

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR THOSE
DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

None
4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

Audit Committee 15 February 2013 - Combined Internal Audit Work Plan for East
Midlands Shared Services

Page 144

Appendix 1

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit

East Midlands Shared Services
Page 145

2013 / 2014
Internal Audit Plan

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit
ASSURANCE RELATED A UDITS 2013/14
Description
Payroll Audit
Pensions Audit
Accounts receivable Audit
Page 146

Accounts Payable Audit

Outline / Service Delivery

Days

System Audit / Employee Service Centre

20

Start /
Status
In Progress

System Audit / Employee Service Centre (NCC only)

5

Completed

System Audit / Finance Service Centre

15

In Progress

System Audit / Finance Service Centre

18

In Progress

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit

EMSS - BUSINESS AUDITS
Audit

Description / Business Development Service Delivery

Days

EMSS IT Audit

•

Review of hosting and associated IT configurations

15

Contingency Planning

•
•

Review initial Contingency arrangements
Review Business Continuity Plans

3
3
40

•

Systems Administration Team

In Progress

•
•

BACS (June 2013)
Duplicate Payments NCC

Completed
Completed

•

LCC

Reviews requested by the Head of
EMSS

Start /
Status
In Progress

Jan ‘14
Jan ‘14

Page 147

Reviews requested by Section 151
Officers
o Waste Contractor

Velos-IT contract

•

NCC

•

o Accounts Receivable
Review performance in line with the contract with Velos-IT

20

Completed

20
3

Completed
In Progress

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit
NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL ACCOUNTS AND SYSTEMS RELATED AUDITS 2013/14

Description
NFI
Proactive Counter Fraud Work
Main Accounting Audit
Page 148

Budgetary Control Audit
Contact Details
Shail Shah
Head of Internal Audit - NCC
0115-8764245
shail.shah@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Outline / Service Delivery
Review of Payroll and Creditor Matches / Finance Service
Centre
Structure to Payroll / Creditors – EMSS
System Live 2013/14
System Audit / Finance Service Centre
System Audit / Finance Service Centre

Days
20
10
10
1

Start /
Status
Completed
On-Going
In Progress
In Progress

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit

Appendix 2

East Midlands Shared Services
Page 149

2014 / 2015
Proposed Internal Audit Plan

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit

ASSURANCE RELATED A UDITS 2014/15
Description
Payroll Audit
Accounts receivable Audit
Accounts Payable Audit
Page 150

Outline / Service Delivery

Days

System Audit / Employee Service Centre

20

Start /
Status
Oct 14

System Audit / Finance Service Centre

15

Oct 14

System Audit / Finance Service Centre

18

Oct 14

Days

Start /
Status
Oct 14
Nov 14

EMSS - BUSINESS AUDITS
Audit

Description / Business Development Service Delivery

EMSS IT Audit

•
•
•

Reviews requested by the Head
of EMSS

Systems Administration Follow up
Velos-IT contract Follow up
IT Audits

5
3
10
40

Potential Issues Brought Forward
•
•
•
•

EMSS payments and income from clients
Teachers Pensions
Payroll QA
Overpayments
o Skills
o Academy interface

As
Commissioned
As
Commissioned

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit
Audit

Description / Business Development Service Delivery

•

Recruitment Team
o CRB checks
o QA
File Management

•

External Customers / Academies – SLA’s

•

Reviews requested by Section
151 Officers

• Duplicate Payments NCC & LCC
§ LCC

Page 151

•

NCC

Days

20
20

Start /
Status

As
Commissioned

POST LIVE REVIEWS
Audit

Description / Business Development Service Delivery
•

Review SLA and contractual arrangements (Brought Forward)

Days
1

Start /
Status
Mar 15
TBC

Nottingham City Council
Internal Audit
NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL ACCOUNTS AND SYSTEMS RELATED AUDITS 2014/15

Description

Outline / Service Delivery

Days

NFI

Review of Payroll and Creditor Matches / Finance Service Centre

20

Start /
Status
Feb 15

Proactive Counter Fraud Work

Structure / Payroll / Creditors

6

Monthly

System Audit / Finance Service Centre

10

Oct 14

System Audit / Finance Service Centre

1

x

5

Main Accounting Audit
Page 152

Budgetary Control Audit
Pensions Audit

Contact Details
Shail Shah
Head of Internal Audit - NCC
0115-8764245
shail.shah@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Oct 14
Sept 14

Agenda Item 13

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 28 February 2014
Title of paper:

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT 2013/14 – 3RD
QUARTER

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):

DIRECTOR
FINANCE

Report author(s) and
contact details:

Author and contact officer
Shail Shah – Head of Internal Audit
( 0115 8764245
* shail.shah@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

OF

STRATEGIC Wards affected: All

Other colleagues who
have provided input:
Recommendation(s):
1
Note and gives views on the performance of IA during the period.
2

1.

Select up to two audits from Appendix 1 for examination at the June 2014 meeting.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
This report outlines the work of the Internal Audit service (IA) for the 3rd quarter of
2013/14.
•
•
•

4.1

Appendix 1 - List of final audit reports issued in the period with analysis of
recommendations and level of assurance
Appendix 2 - Summary of related audit reports completed in the period with
high risk recommendations and level of assurance
Appendix 3 - Overview of the work completed to date against the updated
Audit Plan

Standards

The service works to a Charter endorsed by the Audit Committee. This Charter governs the
work undertaken by the service, the standards it adopts and the way it interfaces with the
Council. IA colleagues are required to adhere to the code of ethics, standards and guidelines
of their relevant professional institutes and the relevant professional auditing standards. It
has adopted, and substantially complied with the principles contained in the PSIAS, and has
fulfilled the requirements of the Account and Audit Regulations 2011, and associated
regulations, in respect of the provision of an IA service. The service has internal quality
procedures and is ISO9001:2008 accredited.
4.2

Local Performance Indicators (PIs)
Performance against all PIs is illustrated in Table 1.

Page 153

Table 1 : Performance v PI Targets
Indicator
1
2
3
4
5
6
4.3

Target

Period

Actual
Year

Comments

% of all recommendations accepted.
95%
98%
98% Above target
% of high recommendations
100%
100%
100%
On Target
accepted.
Average number of working days from
draft agreed to the issue of the final
8 days
6 days
5 days
Above target
report
Number of key / high risk systems
15
13
13
On target for
year end
reviewed.
Systems Systems Systems
% of staff receiving at least three days
On target for
100%
54%
54%
training per year.
year end
% of customer feedback indicating
good or excellent service.

85%

95%

89%

Above target

Activity
Table 2 shows that actual days achieved are in line with planned days set out in the
updated Audit Plan and Appendix 3 shows progress against the individual audits. In
summary, after allowance for seasonal work patterns, the plan is on target.

Total Planned
Days
1567

TABLE 2: ACTUAL v PLANNED AUDIT DAYS
Planned
Actual to
Comments
Days
date
1158
1106
On track for year end.

Table 3 shows that in the year to date, acceptance of recommendations is above the
target of 95% for all recommendations and is acceptable for high recommendations
(100%).
TABLE 3: RECOMMENDATIONS ACCEPTED
2013/14
All
High
Total recommendations made
249
97
Rejected
4
0
Total recommendations accepted
245
97
% accepted
98%
100%

Period
All
High
59
29
0
0
59
29
98%
100%

Resources
The net budget for the service is £319,799. The predicted service outturn is in
accordance with the budget.
2.

BACKGROUND
The Audit Committee’s terms of reference include responsibility for receiving reports on
Page
154
the work undertaken by IA and for
monitoring
its performance. The Public Sector

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) set the responsibility for the management of Internal
Audit with the Board. In practical terms this Board responsibility is vested in the Audit
Committee and Section 151 Officer who exercise their Board responsibility via the
Constitution and the associated policies and procedures of the City council. This report
is one of the regular updates on work undertaken by the service and the Audit
Committee is invited to consider and comment on:
•
•
•

3.

The performance of the IA service against the annual plan in terms of number
of days and the balance and mix of the work.
The nature, scope and quality of the work undertaken.
The performance indicator results, including whether these indicators are
appropriate and the targets sufficiently stretching.

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR THOSE
DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

None
4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT
•
•
•

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011
Audit Plan 2013/14
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2012

Page 155

APPENDIX 1
Final Audit Reports Issued in Period

This list excludes any reports concerning irregularities
Department

Division

Activity Title

Assurance Level

Children & Families

School

Dunkirk Primary School 2014
Farnborough School
Technology College 2014

Significant Assurance

School Total
Quality & Commissioning
Quality & Commissioning Total

Caldicott Review

Page 156

Children & Families Total
Communities
Community Protection
Fines Processing
Community Protection Total
Sports, Culture & Parks
Wollaton Park 2014
Sports, Culture & Parks Total
Communities Total
Strategic Asset & Property
Development
Building Compliance
Management
Strategic Asset & Property Management Total
Housing Strategy & Partnerships
Housing Strategy 2014
Housing Strategy & Partnerships Total
Development Total
Resources
Strategic Finance
Troubled Families Grant
Housing Benefits
Housing Benefits 2014
Strategic Finance Total
Resources Total
Grand Total

Significant Assurance
Limited Assurance

Limited Assurance

Significant Assurance

Limited Assurance

Significant Assurance

Limited Assurance
Limited Assurance
Limited Assurance

Recommendations
Accepted
High Medium Low
1
0
0
3

2

4

4
3
3
7
8
8
3
3
11

2
6
6
8
6
6
0
0
6

4
0
0
4
0
0
0

2

2

0

2
1
1
3
2
2
4
8
8
29

2
2
2
4
3
0
1
4
4
22

0
0
0
0
1
0
3
4
4
8

0

APPENDIX 2
High Priority recommendations issued in Period
Action Ref
Audit Name

Dunkirk Primary School
2014

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Recommendations
Accepted

Agreed Action

High

Medium

Low

1

0

0

3

2

4

The purpose of this review was to
assess the standard of financial
management operating within the
school. The following areas were
examined during the course of
the audit :
• Leadership & Governance

Page 157

• People Management
• Policy & Strategy
• Processes

Significant
Assurance

A1159
(02)

The school should submit a
balanced Rec1 to the Local
Authority; any imbalances should
be fully explained.
Payroll costs should be allocated
in the correct month.

• Purchasing
• Invoice Processing
• Banking Arrangements
• School Fund
• Inventory

Farnborough School
Technology College
2014

The purpose of this review was to
assess the standard of financial
management operating within the
school. The following areas were
examined during the course of
the audit :
Leadership & Governance

Significant
Assurance

A1074
(03)

The school should ensure that
detailed minutes are taken at each
of the Governors sub-committee.
The approval of policies and key
decisions made by the Governors
should be clearly recorded in the
relevant meeting minutes.

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

People Management
• Policy & Strategy
• Processes
• Purchasing
• Invoice Processing
• Banking Arrangements
• School Fund
• Petty Cash

Page 158

• Inventory

A1059
(04)

A1087
(09)

For all purchases over £5,000, the
school should obtain at least 3
alternative quotations. These
should be considered by the
Finance Committee before
deciding which supplier to award
the contract to. This should be
documented in the minutes of the
meeting.
An up to date inventory should be
completed to include all portable,
desirable items within the school
The inventory should be
independently checked at least
annually. All discrepancies should
be investigated to the satisfaction
of the Head Teacher or nominated
staff member who should sign the
inventory as evidence of the

Medium

Low

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

Medium

Low

annual check. Written authority
should be obtained from the
Governors prior to the disposal of
any assets, or the deletion of items
from the inventory.

Fines Processing

1.1

Page 159

The objective of the audit was
to ensure that there are
sufficient controls within the
procedures to ensure that
fraud is minimised and
income is maximised.

Limited
Assurance

A1229
(01)

A1230
(02)

A1233
(04)

A1232
(04)

The Fixed Penalty Notice books
should be issued in sequential
number order.

An investigation should be carried
out into the missing fine books.

All paperwork should be forwarded
to the Processing and
Enforcement Team without delay.

An investigation should be carried
out into why fine paperwork is not
being sent to the Processing and
Enforcement Team.

8

6

0

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

A1235
(06)

A1236

When a fine is cancelled the
reason for cancellation should be
recorded in the book with all
copies retained in the book. Rejected
There should be regular reporting
and review of FPN cancellations.

(07)

Page 160

There should be a quarterly review
carried out to ensure that all fine
numbers can be accounted for.

A1238 –
A1240
(08)

The Processing and Enforcement
Team should be notified of any
fines that are cancelled at the time
of issue to enable the above
review to be carried out.

An investigation should be carried
out into any fine numbers that
cannot be accounted for.

A1241
(09)

A periodic review should be carried
out of fines that have been written
off following bailiff referral.

Medium

Low

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

Wollaton Park 2014

Low

The old pay and display machines
should be replaced.
A review has been carried out of
the income collection arrangements
in place for the car parking at
Wollaton Park.

Significant
Assurance

A1277 &
A1278
(01)

Page 161

A1279
(02)

Building Compliance

Medium

Once the machines have been
replaced there should be regular
monitoring of discrepancies with
appropriate action taken where
necessary.

3

0

0

2

2

0

G4S should be requested to
forward the pay and display
readings so these can be verified
to actual income collected from
each machine.

The scope of this audit was set to
cover the following aspects of
operation:
• The process for ensuring all
investment properties are
identified and included in a
program of statutory and
servicing works.
• Arrangements for identifying
properties
with
multiple
tenants and the identification
of landlord responsibilities
for such properties.
• Reviewing lease content for
various types of investment
properties and clarification of
responsibilities
for
the

Limited
Assurance

A1190
(1)

The project to implement a new
asset register should ensure that
the information required for the
identification
of
investment
properties and the installed utilities
is included.
The information on the asset
register for investment properties
should then drive the ordering of
inspections required as part of the
Councils statutory duties.

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

Medium

Low

arrangement and payment
for the statutory inspection of
utilities.

A1191
(2)

Page 162

Housing Strategy 2014

Responsibility for carrying out fire
risk assessments at multi occupied
properties should be established.
The legal or good practise
frequency of carrying out fire risk
assessments should be
determined and applied.

The scope of this audit was set to
look at the Housing Strategy
section’s role in commissioning
services from NCH under its
partnering arrangement with the
Council. The audit reviewed the
following aspects of operation:
•

•

•

Establishing that there are
effective
governance
arrangements within NCH.
Ensuring
continuing
relevance of the partnering
agreement to the strategic
and economic circumstances
of the Council and its tenants.
NCH sets objectives that
align with the Council’s
priorities and these are
subject to review through
partnership meetings and

Significant
Assurance

A1181
(1)

A review of the NCH Annual
Performance Report should be
included in the work undertaken by
the NCC/NCH Housing
Partnership Forum meeting.
The outcome of the review should
be recorded in the minutes.

1

2

0

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

Medium

Low

forums.

Page 163
Caldicott Review

•

Performance of NCH is
measured against a set of
indicators that are aligned to
Council and NCH plans.

•

NCH performance is reported
and benchmarked and is
subject to review with the
Council. If necessary, plans
are
set
in
place
for
improvements
and
the
Council obtains sufficient
information
about
the
problems and progress with
improvements to be able to
understand, support and take
action itself.

The agreed scope covered the
following:
• Policies and responsibility of
the Caldicott Guardian
• Requirements of Caldicott 2
• Reporting of breaches of IT
security relating to social
care systems
• Reporting of misuse of
manual information
• Reviews of data sharing
agreements

Limited
Assurance

A1186
(R1)

Risks identified at a corporate level
should be incorporated into and
linked to strategic risk registers
and departmental risk registers to
ensure that there is action within
all areas to mitigate the risks that
have been identified and to ensure
that positive steps are taken at a
local level in line with relevant
policies.

3

6

0

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

Medium

Low

• Communication of and
training in the Caldicott
Principles and the Data
Protection Act

A1188
(R3)

Page 164

A1200
(R9)

Troubled Families Grant

The IT Password policy should be
enforced in CareFirst in order to
increase the level of security over
sensitive data.
Access to CareFirst and Castle
should be reviewed to ensure that
it remains relevant to roles being
performed.

The agreed scope covered the
following:
•

Identification of families that
meet the criteria

•

Reporting
outcomes

and

validity

•

Receipt of funding

•

Performance management

of

Limited
Assurance

A1201
(02)

A1204
(05)

Each PBR claim should be
reviewed at management level to
approve the principals involved in
the identification of eligible families
and to carry out sample checking
of the results, prior to making the
claim

Management should consider
whether to review all of the 318
claims in the return involving
school attendance data and the
implications regarding the

2

3

1

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

Medium

Low

adjustment to future claims

Housing Benefits

The agreed scope covered the
following:

Page 165

•

Subsidy Monitoring (this
looks at managing financial
risk)

•

Reconciliations

•

Interventions

•

Overpayments

•

Quality Control and
payments

Limited
Assurance

(2013-01)

For a limited period colleagues
completing input of intervention
results should confirm with
colleagues from Training &
Support that the input is correct.

A report was issued in 2 October
2012 concerning the Housing
Benefit System Set-up for 2012/13.

(2013-02)

Further additional training in
assessing benefit and creating
overpayments should be provided
including correctly entering
information received dates. This
should be followed by a period
when the colleagues concerned
are required to confirm the input to
create an overpayment with
colleagues from the Training &
Support team. Consideration
should be given to post checking

2

0

0

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

Medium

Low

overpayments given the level of
error found.

Housing Benefits 2014
Please refer to Above

Limited
Assurance

Page 166

2013-04

The service should identify and
implement ways to ensure greater
use of Support by colleagues to
confirm processing.

2013-05

The service should consider
deploying additional resources to
reduce the level of overpayments
and increase the gross recovery
rate for overpayments both of
which would save the Council
money.

1213-06

Whilst processing remains
relatively inaccurate a much higher
level of payment run check should
take place.
The service should optimise
resources so as to minimise losses
due to backlogs and workload
prioritisation, error and fraud. This
optimisation should include:

1213-07

•

modelling of what
additional variable resource
can be shown to be cost
effective in optimising
losses of subsidy,
recovered overpayments

4

1

3

Action Ref
Audit Name

Scope

Opinion

(Report
Ref)

Agreed Action

Recommendations
Accepted
High

and cost of resource in
order to support
preapproval of timely
access to the optimal level
of variable resources.

Page 167

•

identifying the subsidy
savings attributable to
check in order to optimise
level and focus of check.

•

using continuous
computerised analysis of
workload against cases to
identify cases where there
is significant risk of
accumulating error, so as
to prioritise these cases
within workload.

Medium

Low

APPENDIX 3
SUMMARY OF PROGRESS ON THE UPDATED AUDIT PLAN TO 31ST DECEMBER 2013
Audit Title

Audit Outline / Management Direction

Days

Expected
Days

Actuals

1. Strategic Risk Register
Strategic Risks

Review of evidence in place to mitigate risks. Specific strategic
risks are listed under departmental headings

10

0

0

Caldicott Review (SR6, SR5a, SR8a)

Review requested by management

20

20

21

0

0

0

35

25

36

25

10

3

25

20

12

22

22

18

21

21

21

28

5

2

22

22

16

18

18

19

2. Resources
Single Status / Equal Pay

Page 168

Treasury Management
Capital

Council Tax

Business Rates

Benefits

Pensions
Cash Collection

Further assistance with next phase
Assessing high level controls supported by compliance testing to
give assurance over the operation of the control environment
Assessment of high level controls supported by compliance
testing to give assurance over the operation of the control
environment (Key System) To include Additions and Disposals
Assessment of high-level controls supported by compliance
testing to give assurance over the operation of the control
environment (Key System)
Assessment of high-level controls supported by compliance
testing to give assurance over the operation of the control
environment (Key System)
Assessment of high-level controls supported by compliance
testing to give assurance over the operation of the control
environment (Key System)
Assessment of high-level controls supported by compliance
testing to give assurance over the operation of the control
environment.
Assessment of new system / control environment.

Audit Title

Audit Outline / Management Direction

Days

Expected
Days

Actuals

Bank Reconciliation

Review of accounts to ensure reconciliations are both complete
and accurate. Requirement for external auditors

6

6

2

Fairer Charging

To ensure service users are being charged in line with corporate
policy and national guidance

22

0

1

Social and Local Welfare Assistance
(SR26)

Liaison with colleagues regarding new systems/fraud risks

1

1

1

0

0

0

3. Chief Executive
Review of Partnership Health Checks and Framework

15

15

7

Public Health (SR29)

Ensure governance arrangements are in place for the transfer of
contracts, staff and funding.

10

10

0

0

0

0

90

70

80

25

0

0

18

5

0

Page 169

Partnerships (SR16a)

4. Children & Families
Schools assessments
Commissioning (SR25a)
Case Management (SR28)

Rolling assessment of the financial arrangements within schools.
Assessment of arrangements in place for strategic
commissioning and market management. Include the role of the
continuing care panel
Assessment of the arrangements in place to manage and report
on the client review process

Children’s Placements (SR6)

Review of budget management arrangements

20

20

20

Joint Funding of Care

Assessment of processes for identifying the need for joint
funding; approval arrangements and income collection

18

18

21

ContrOCC Project

Ongoing input and advice with the project as it develops

2

2

2

Care First

Review of adoption data modelling proposal

5

5

0

Audit Title

Audit Outline / Management Direction

5. Communities

Days

Expected
Days

Actuals

0

0

0

Review of governance arrangements & VFM

25

15

12

Parking Services

Follow up and testing on implementation of recommendations

5

0

0

Workplace Parking Levy (SR27)

Management Request - Review the collection arrangements

15

0

0

Waste Management

Management Request - Assessment of management
arrangements

30

30

31

Catering and Cleaning

Management Request - Assessment of management
arrangements

22

22

23

15

15

15

10

10

9

15

0

0

Page 170

Local Authority Companies

Events Management

Markets / Car Boot Sales
Neighbourhood Enforcement

Cyclical review to cover management arrangements including
H&S risks/income collection/market testing
Scope to be agreed with management but to include
management arrangements including H&S risks/income
collection
Management Request - Review of recovery and allocation of
costs

Environmental Health

Management Request - Assessment of management
arrangements

15

15

0

Community Buildings

Management of buildings / H&S risks / Usage of buildings

20

20

21

Carbon Reduction Commitment

Review to ensure the scheme is managed properly and
effectively.

10

10

12

0

0

0

20

0

15

6. Development
Housing Rents

Assessment of high level controls within Rents System (Key
System)

Audit Title
Housing Revenue Account
Economic Development Funding Streams

Building Compliance (SR24)

Procurement / Major Programmes
Woodfield Industries

Page 171

Corporate Maintenance Framework

Audit Outline / Management Direction
Management Request - Review of the commissioning role in
respect of NCH
Management Request - Assessment of management
arrangements in respect of significant funding streams City Deal,
etc. To include further review of Nottingham Jobs Fund
Assessment of the arrangements in place to ensure NCC
complies with its statutory obligations, re corporate and
investment buildings
Management Request - Review of financial arrangements
including assessment robustness of NCC processes for
preventing fraud and obtaining VFM.
Management Request - Assessment of management
arrangements / scope to be agreed
Follow up on previous work

7. Corporate Audits

Days

Expected
Days

Actuals

10

10

12

25

25

16

25

25

28

20

0

0

15

15

0

10

10

10

0

0

0

Governance Statement (SR10)

AGS preparation and publication

30

25

30

Risk Management

Audit of arrangements in place / ongoing liaison with risk
champions

10

7

0

IT Audit (SR8a)

Ongoing audit of key IT risks including systems access/security

40

30

19

Contracts Audit

Testing of a sample of final accounts

20

5

3

40

40

41

10

0

0

15

0

19

Grants Audits
Councillors Allowances
Colleagues Expenses

Review of management arrangements over grant claims and
returns as well as ongoing work on a number of specific grant
claims
Assessment of compliance with the councillors allowance
scheme
Sample testing of claims submitted by colleagues, including new
staff travel arrangements

Audit Title
NCC Authorisation Processes

Audit Outline / Management Direction
Testing of NCC authorisation processes (Oracle Payroll/AP etc)

8. Counter Fraud

Days

Expected
Days

Actuals

40

40

8

0

0

0

Review of strategy / current arrangements and compliance with
best practice (FFL/PPP)

20

20

17

Training / awareness

Initiatives to increase awareness amongst colleagues

10

7

6

Counter Fraud Monitoring / Liaison

Co-ordinate counter fraud activities and liaison with KPMG and
partners regarding annual fraud reporting requirements

35

25

28

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

Co-ordinate the City's response to the next NFI exercise

30

25

20

Departmental Activities

Programme of pro-active testing of transactions with a view to
identifying non-compliance / fraud / error, including emerging
risks as identified by PPP

20

15

11

Income Collection (Wollaton Parking /
Woodthorpe Grange)

Management Request – Income Collection arrangements

10

10

11

Personal Budgets - Adults (SR28)

Assess current financial arrangements against CIPFA guidance.
Contributes to the City's response to "Protecting the Public
Purse"

20

0

1

0

0

0

Page 172

Counter Fraud Strategy / Arrangements

9. Companies etc
East Midlands Shared Services

See separate plan (includes work on key financial systems)

200

167

166

Responsible Officer

To assist academies with the Responsible Officer role

10

10

12

Other Bodies

Provision of Internal Audit services

50

40

39

0

0

0

10. Consultancy, Advice and Support

Audit Title

Audit Outline / Management Direction

Days

Expected
Days

Actuals

General Contingency – ad hoc work

To allow for requests from senior management or the need to
undertake ad hoc assignments as they arise

40

30

47

Fraud & Irregularity Contingency

Separate contingency to investigate non-Housing Benefit fraud

25

20

17

Advice

Liaison with departments including advice re capital projects

35

26

37

Audit Committee

Support and development of Audit Committee

30

23

34

0

0

0

Ongoing follow up and monitoring of implementation of
recommendations

40

30

35

Audit of Charity and other Accounts

Lord Mayor's, Hanley & Gellesthrope, Highfields, Harvey Haddon

10

10

9

Bridge Estate

Management Request - Assessment of how current risks are
managed

10

10

7

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

Further work to ensure compliance with new standards

2

2

3

1567

1158

1106

11. Other Work
Recommendations Monitoring / s151
Assurance Reporting

Page 173

Total Days

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174

Agenda Item 14

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 28 February 2014
Title of paper:

AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND
ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME

Director(s)/
Corporate Director(s):

DIRECTOR
FINANCE

Report author(s) and
contact details:

Shail Shah - Head of Internal Audit
( 0115-8764245
* shail.shah@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

OF

STRATEGIC Wards affected: All

Other colleagues who
have provided input:
Recommendation(s):
1
Note the functions of the Audit Committee and the benefits arising from its
existence
2

1.

Endorse the outline work programme at Appendix 1 and the terms of reference at
Appendix 2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Although an Audit Committee is not a legal requirement it reflects best
practice reinforces the importance of probity, and performance and risk
management. This report outlines the core functions of the Audit Committee,
the benefits that will arise for the City Council and an outline annual work
programme.
Role of the Audit Committee
The purpose of an Audit Committee is to provide independent
assurance on the adequacy of the governance and control
environment, effectiveness of the Risk Management Framework, and
to oversee the annual financial reporting process.
Benefits of the Audit Committee
The benefits to be gained from operating an effective Audit Committee
are that it:
• Raises greater awareness of the need for internal control and the
implementation of audit recommendations;
• Increases public confidence in the objectivity and fairness of financial
and other reporting;

Page 175

• Reinforces the importance and independence of internal and external
audit and any other similar review process eg providing a view on the
annual governance statement;
• Provides additional assurance through a process of independent and
objective review.
Governance Role
The Audit Committee aims to improve corporate focus on governance
by:
• Providing assurance on the adequacy of the Risk Management
Framework and the associated control environment;
• Scrutinising the Council’s financial and non-financial performance to
the extent that it affects the Council’s exposure to risk and weakens
the control environment;
• Overseeing the financial reporting process
• Approving the Council’s Statement of Accounts;
• Commenting on the scope and nature of external audit;
• Overseeing proposed and actual changes to the Council’s policies
and procedures pertaining to governance

2.

BACKGROUND

3.1

An Audit Committee is central to the provision of effective corporate
governance, which partly depends on a systematic strategy, clear
framework and processes for managing risk. Good governance also
maintains and increases public confidence in the objectivity and
fairness of financial and other reporting as well as helping to deliver
improved services.
It is important that local authorities have
independent assurance about the mechanisms underpinning these
aspects of governance.

3.2

It is recognised that high performing councils develop effective financial
and non-financial control mechanisms. The development of expertise
made available by the establishment of an Audit Committee, meeting
on a regular cycle, and with Terms of Reference focussed on the key
audit control and risk management areas critical to the Council’s
performance is a key part of these mechanisms.

3.3

The Committee’s outline work programme is attached as Appendix 1.
The work programme supports the Council’s aim to improve its
efficiency and effectiveness and has been developed to address the
Terms of Reference for the Committee approved by the City Council
included as Appendix 2. In accordance with CIPFA guidance, the
Page 176

Committee is politically balanced and will not have Executive
membership.
Membership will continue to be reviewed in accordance with guidance
from the Department of Communities & Local Government (DCLG).

3.

BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR
THOSE DISCLOSING EXEMPT OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

None
4.

PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS
REPORT

Advice note from CIPFA Technical Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for
Local Authorities (CIPFA)

Page 177

Annual Governance Statement
Interim Report
Annual Governance Statement

Appendix 1

24.04.15

27.02.15

28.11.14

19.09.14

25.07.14

LEAD


27.06.14

REPORT TITLE

25.04.14

DATE


Audit Committee
Programme of
work 2014 / 2015

TK/SS
TK/SS

Internal Audit Plan
Annual Governance Statement Mid
Year Update
Audit Committee Annual Report
Audit Committee Role & Annual
Work Programme

TK/SS

TK/SS

Cllr P

Audit Committee Training Activity

TK/SS

CR

Counter Fraud Strategy

TK/SS

JA

Claire
Richmond
Jeff Abbott

EMSS Update
Internal Audit Annual Report &
Audit Charter
Internal Audit Performance Report
Internal Audit Reports Selected for
Examination
KPMG – External Audit Protocol
KPMG – Annual Audit Letter
KPMG – Certification of Claims &
Returns Annual Report
KPMG – Report to Those Charged
with Governance
KPMG – Regular update/statement
of audit progress
KPMG – External Audit Plan

TK/SS

KPMG

External Auditor

TK/SS

LJ

Liz Jones

TK/SS

LN

Lynne North

TK/SS

SB

Simon Burton

KPMG
KPMG

SS
TK

Shail Shah
Tony Kirkham

KPMG

TL

Tracy Laxton

TK/SS

KEY : PEOPLE

Cllr P

Councillor Piper

KPMG
KPMG
KPMG

KEY : PURPOSE

LGO Annual Report

CR/TL
/LN

As required

Partnership Governance
Framework

CR/LJ

For approval

Risk Management Annual Report

TK/SB

Reviewing
performance

Risk Management Quarterly Report
Risk Management
Strategy/Framework
Risk Management Training
Statements of Accounts
Treasury Management Annual
Report
Treasury Management Strategy &
Key Issues Update

TK/SB
TK/SB
TK/SB

TK/JA
TK/JA
TK/JA

Page 178

Appendix 2
Audit Committee Terms of Reference
TITLE
POWERS / REMIT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(a) Main Purposes:
1. Provide assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and
the associated control environment;
2. Scrutinise the council’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent
that it affects the council’s exposure to risk and weakens the control
environment;
3. Oversee the financial reporting process;
4. Approve the council’s statement of accounts;
5. Comment on the scope and nature of external audit;
6. Oversee proposed and actual changes to the council’s policies and
procedures pertaining to governance.
(B) Main Functions:
1. Reviewing the mechanisms for the assessment and management of risk;
2. Approving the council’s statement of accounts;
3. Receiving the council’s reports on the statement on the annual governance
statement and recommending their adoption;
4. Approving internal audit’s strategy, planning and monitoring performance;
5. Receiving the annual report and other reports on the work of internal audit;
6. Considering the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports and the
report to those charged with governance and the council’s responses to
them;
7. Considering arrangements for and the merits of operating quality assurance
and performance management processes;
8. Considering the exercise of officers’ statutory responsibilities and of functions
delegated to officers;
9. To recommend external audit arrangements for the council;
10. To receive and consider the results of reports from external inspectors,
ombudsman and similar bodies and from statutory officers;
11. Overseeing the partnership governance framework, including annual health
checks and the register of significant partnerships.
ACCOUNTABLE TO: Council
MEETINGS: Normally six per annum plus specials where required
MEMBERSHIP: 9 non-executive members (politically balanced) plus 1 independent
member, and normally has 6 meetings per annum.
ESTABLISHED SUB COMMITTEES: None.

Page 179

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 180

